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STATE bF“SOUTB DAROTA ) IN- CIRCUIT COURT
COUNTY OF PENNINGTON } BEVEN?H JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA,

Plaintiff,
, v. ' | JURY TRIAL
CHARLES RUSSELL RRINES, . e3-s1
| Defendant. VOLUME II OF

PROCEEDINGS: The following matters were had before the
HONORABLE JOHN K. KONENKAMP, Circuit Judge at
Rapid City, South Dakota, on the 5th day of

January, 1993,

APPEARANCES:. MR. DENNIS GROFF, MR. JAY MILLER, and.

MR. MARK VARGO
State's Attorney's Office

Pennington County
Rapid city, South Dakota

~FOR "THE STATE = -

-STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

UPREME COURT

firrn
MR. JOSEPH BUTLER
UNO 8 1995 At'torney at Law
‘ PO Box 2670

' 5{&% / Rapid City, South Dakota : and
MR. WAYNE GILBERT
Attorney at Law

3202 West Main Street
Rapid city, South Dakota and

MR. MICHAEL STONEFIELD
ublic Defender
County, § ennington County

Wﬂgc{mléun coupkepid City, South Dakota
AR 8 1893 FOR TEE DEFENDANT
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MR.

THE

' {Progpective Juror, DELIGHT MCGRIFF, having previously

EXAMINATION BY MR. STONEFIELD:

)
A

Q

One other area. Do you have any particular feelings
about the death penalty?
I kind a feel that in a case like this where it's s0-

gsevere, that's it's Jjust.

STONEFIELD: Your Honor, I move for cause 6n the
earlier answers of haviné formed an opinioﬁ.

GRQFF: No objection. ‘

COURT: Mr. Cofoid, T will excﬁbe you on this case.
Clerk may call in another jurorl

You have been previcusly sworn and you are still

undar ocath. Defense make inquire.
been sworn, testified aa follows:)

Tell us your name.
Delight McGriff. o
My name is Mike Stonefield, and I'm one of the

attorneys that is representing Mr. Charles Rhines.

Mr. Rhines is the man seated in the middie of the

table here and this man to his left is Mr. Butler and

this is Mr. Gilbert. These are the other attorneys
that are working on this case. You sat through .the

procedure yesterday and had explained to you wpat we
are doing here today?

Yes.
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0 I would like to reiterate Just a little bit that the
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law allows us to ask these gueéstions or try and get
to whether you have any par;fqul;r knowledge or
biases about this case and I'm not attempting to ask
You anything that would be embarrassing to You or to
PYY into your personal life or anything like that,
but I would appreciate your complete hohasty on any
questions. Do you know any of the people seated here
in the courtroom, any of the six attorneys, the
dafense attorney, the Judge orlcﬁurt reporter?

No.

Did you know or do you have §gf khowlgdqe of Donnivan
Schaeffer or his family? |

Neo. ]

Do you know or have any knowledge of Mr. Rhines?

No. _
Were you familiar with the Dig ‘Em Donut business

here in Rapid City?

No.
Ag I'm sure you would understand, when you filled out

the questionnaire that was sent to you a month or se
ago, it came back to us and-the attorneys have had a
ch;nce to read over the answars;that You gave us.

I'd like to ask you a few thiﬁg; about you, yourself,

You have three children, is that right?
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. You are ﬁorking here now at tﬁp different jobs, is
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Yes.
Have you lived in this area for a long time?

Yeah. I lived in Colorade for about three years,
three years ago, but I iived in Rapid city since I
was about 19, o

Did yeu go to school here?

No, I went to school in Louisiana.

that right?

Yes. -
Are your children gtill living around this area?

Two of them and I have one thaf lives in California.

Did they all grow up and go to school here too?

Yes.
Do you have any other family around these parts?

No ~- I have two daughters here in Rapid.
Other than your children? '

No. o,

The jobs you worked at you have been there, at one of

then you have been there for three years or so?

Yes.
Could you tell us, are there joﬁa you have had other

Places you have worked?

Mainly I work for gold companies here in Rapid.

What kind of work have you done?
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about the case; regularly?

When would you say that you have read or heard

Everything associated with making Black Hills gold.
Has that's been for a good part of your adult life
You have done that? R

Yes.
Do you know anything in partiéular‘about this case,

what this case is about? ’

The only thing I kneow is what I read in the paper
that the kid was killed at the donut shop and they
had picked up someons, but that's all I know about

it.
How often would you say that you have read articles

Ne, because I don't get to read the newspaper a lot.

something -- what would be the?last thing that you
have read or heird about thiggﬁﬁsc?

Right when it happened.

Back several menths ago?

Yes.
So, it would be fair to say that you haven't followed

it regularly in the media?

No. :
Have yau ever talked abount it with anybody?

No, not really. I don't have a lot of time to —- it

might have been brought up ag'the time we read it in
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the paper and we felt bad aboﬁé.it. but other than
that... ‘

Do you khow, do you remember reading anything
recently about it or hearing anything recently about
the incident or this trial? |

The only thing I heard last night said on the naws
that the tria]l was coming up and that's all they
said, _

8o you were lisﬁening to the:ﬁgws about this laat
night? o

Just for a few minutes at work.

Over the period of months, hbﬁjﬁhny times would you
eatimate that you read ér heafa something about the
case? ‘

That was the first time last night. that I heard
anything.

For a long time?

Yeah. (
When you got the notice a month or so ago and got

this guestionnaire that you'd bgﬂcalled as a juror in

this case, did you talk to anybody about it at that

point? ‘ .
At my job I told them it could be a poasibility and

that was it. )
Just job-related and no other context? '
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Right.

Would you say that from what you have heard or baen
made aware of ovér the months, have jbu formed any
kind of opinion about Mr. Rhines? |

No, beeﬁnse really I haven't heard anything.

Would you say that you formad any opinion about the

G!ﬂﬂ?l

' No.

Any opinien a#ant whether he's guilty oxr not guilty
of thase charges?

No, T haven't formed any.

Have you ever heard any opinions expressed that way
by anybody else that you have sbokan to? '

No,

One of the things that was ;g;gfd about yesterday
during the orientation was'thaﬁlundar the law ¥Mr.
Rhines is presumed to be iﬁnogﬁgt og these charges.
Ia that gsomething that yom are familiar with; have
you ever heard that term before?

Yes,

Is that something that you feel you can apply in this
cage?

Yeas.

You can presume him to be innocent as he sits here

now?
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'Would'you feel that he would have to present evidence

- ¥es. You would expect to.

i g MR 1 ¢ ety aopp———

Yeg. .
Would you feel that he would have to prove himself

innocent?

No, he would have to be:provén guilty.

on hls own behalf?
Ris attorneys do that, don't they? I don't know,.

What T am getting at is, if he were to, just as a
hypothetical, if he were to usé;‘to rely on his, for
his defense on the inability of the State to prove -
its case, simply to argue that the State has not
proven its case, do you think that's something he
should be able to do or would }ﬁu expect to hea;

something from him, testimon&‘&i evidence from him on

his own behalf?
It would depend. I'm not

too familiar with this sort of thing.

If the Judge wera to inntrucg you that he has no
obligation to testify and that he can rely for his
defense on the inability of the State to prove its
case and if the Judge told you that that is what the
law is, could.you follow thagg‘é

Yes,
Doces that seem fair to you or should he have to

present somathing? LU
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That would seem fair.

I have another question about that area. If you were
to #it on this case and you were to listen to
everything that was presented for however long it.
took to present all the evidence and you thought to
yourself later on, maybe toward the end of the case
or while you were delibarntiné‘that I have heard
something else or I rememher\hé;ring something else
or reading something alse in tﬁa media, and we didn't
hear anything about ii in the trial, how would you
handle that? Would you cons;der those things that
yoﬁ read or heard elsewhere or‘do you think you'ad be
able to not consider them? ‘
Yes. I know we wouldn't be able to read about it and
I haven't really read anything gbout it so far, so I
probébly wouldn't, because I don't have allot of time
to read anyﬁay. [ o -
You don't think that would_héj;:problem because you

really don‘t have any other qug?ide knowl&dce of the
case? : i

Ne. _
80, you are telling us basically that you feel that

you could sit here and be an impartial juror om this

casa?

Yes.
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A few other ganeral éuostions for vyou, ma'am. Tha
Judge talked resterﬁay at séﬁﬁ}length about the.
length of the trial and I aa@@me that if you were
required to sit for two or thf&e waeks or something

like that, it wouldn't be a problem with your job or

your home life?

No. _

If it came to a point where you had to be
sequestarad, which is basically reqﬁired to stay in a
mdtel for a period of time or not go home that kind

of thing, would that present a problem?

Na. C
You have not ever served as a juror before?

No.
You don't have any knowledge of anybody that works inm
law enforcement, is that right? ‘

No.

Have you ever merved in the military?

No.

STONEFIELD: Your Honor, earlier this morming I had

our office draw up a list of the witnesses who the
State had given notice to us aq_their potential
witnesses and I thought rather than go through each
name individually if we could_shnw the prospective

juror the 1ist and see if théy“kndw anybody on it,

27
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MR.

THE

MR.

MR.

THE

‘names on here and take a 1itt1g bit of time to review

GROFF: I wish to have the r;cord reflact that first
of all that was not part of anf bretrial natters,
that was just presented as a matter of égnvenience
for counsel. Deabiga the fact that that liat iwm
there, certainly that wouldn't preclude other
officers that were mnde'a part of this to appear. It
was juat a chromologieal linf-that I wished to
present, so there may need to be additional questions
about lnwrentofcamant officers as well. .
COURT:l You don't have any ohjéption‘to showing this
1ist, at least to the prospectiveﬂjuroru?

GROFF: No. I wantad.tulmake.sure at this stage of
the proceedings that there was no misconception of
the racord that we had limited fhu State's case to
Just those witnesses. -
STONEFIELD: I understand that. I thought this would
be a time saver, . ' '
COURT: I think it is.

(By Mr, Stonefield:) Take a_;qok at this list and

can you tell me i! you ara fimiliar with any of tha_

and ses if any of thone‘namegqq§em faniliar to ¥ou.
No; none of them lock familiar to me.
I believe you said you don'trhgﬁé any knowledge of

anybody that works in law enforcement in the Rapid
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.Could you tell us what c¢hurch?

City araeaa?

Bo. _
Ancother area I want to discuss with you briefly and

see if you have any feelings ﬁ@out this. You are
going to hear evidence that ﬁf.'nhines is gay, he's a
homosaxual, and you are going to henr that at iaast a
couple of the people testifying in this case alsc are
gay. Does that change your feelings about this case
or sitting on this case in any way?

No;l ‘

Do you know any gay people?

Not at pfasant, no.

Have you ever in vour life?

I used te work with some. ;
Do you have any particular fgqgingp one way are or
another about the subjaet? -

It raally makas ne no difrerence.:

on the questinnnaira here you. listed that you are not
a member of any particular chuxgh, is that correct?
No.

Do you ever attend churcﬁ?

Oceasionally I do.

Four Square.

Ia that in town here?
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staga that happens in any criminal trial where

Yaah. ‘It'a Assembly of dod,-gnd I have been there.
Would you say that you attand ?egu1ar1y? )

No, actually I don't. I go tﬁicé a year.

Do you conmider yourself just‘génerally to be a
religlous person?

Yeah -- well, my way of thinkinﬁ, vaah.

One of the things that‘was discussed yesterday that
you probably are aﬁare of in this case, as ig any
case that is charged as fifst degree murder or
premaditated murder, the State has the opportunity to
ask the jury if they convicted the Defendant to
impose the death penal;y. nnﬁwtha procedure under
which such a trial like thislééfheld is different
than just about amny other kihdﬁﬁf a trial in this
State, any other criminal trial; We go throngh two

stages. We go through the firast stage which is the

evidence is presented and a décision is made by the
jury as to whether the pDefendant is guilty or not
guilty. In this partic¢ular cagé, should the jury
find ¥r. Rhines to be guilty, thén there is a second
part of the proceedings, a segppd_trial basically at
which new evidence can be presented agaln and
argunents can be made to you»aiﬁtg what the

appropriate sentence would hé7hﬁd there are two
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sentencing possibilities, either a life imprisonment
or the death sentence. What you would be raequired to
do as a jurer in that second phase, if we would get
to it, would be to dcﬁermine, first of all, whether
or not there are special cixcumstanqes which exist
concerning this case, and if you find that those
circumstances exist, then you'the to make a second
determination as to whether or not the death penalty
is appropriqﬁé. Knowing that{?}nowinq how this
procedure woris, can you tell us whether you have any
particular feelings one way or‘tha other about the

denth penalty?
No, I don't. I have never really thought about it a

lot.
Have you ever talked about it with anybody?

Ko.

You would say basgically that you are neufral on it?

Yeah, I would smay that. L
You are saying that you feel that in certain cases

you could impose it? S

Yes,

Or you could consider imposing 1t? .

Yes. ‘ _
Kave you ever discussed it or heard it discussed in

ragard to this particular case?

lo01
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. How violent the crime was -- I don't really know.

Nq. _
Since the time that you becimaiaware that you might
be & juror in this case, havéniou aver thought about

it youxrself? o
Well, actually -- I didn't until they brought it up

yésterddy in Court.
You wérelnot aware that that was a posuib1§ panalty
until_rasterdar? '
Probably. I just didn't think about it.

Would you say that your teeling‘wouid be such that
you would feel that the death penalty would be .
appropriate for any person found guilty of a
premeditated murder? L ‘

5

I think it would depend on the.circumstances. It's

hard to say.

What type of circumstances?

It*s hard for me to say.

Do you think you'd have to wait and see what was
presented? |

Yeah, _

You don't feel that it would be appropriate in every
case?

No.
From what you have heard ahbﬁgfqr what yeu may know

1e2

APPENDIX 250



b L - Y S TR TR Y

el
Ww N B D

12

i5

16

17
18
19
20
21
a3
23
24
25

about this case, have you forﬁad any kind of opinion
ag to whether it would be appropriate for the person
who committed this offense? 7 ‘
No, I haven't formed an opinion, because I havan't
heard a lot about this case.

Just a couple of other things. When we talk about

the penalty here of death or the penalty here of life
imprisonment, do you have any genlings whether thoss
things really mean wﬁat thaylﬁay or whether they
don't mean what Ehey BaY, forlinutunca, the panilty
of life imprisonment? Are yoﬁfwilling to accept, if
you are chosen as u'jurar,ahd-impnse that sentence,
that that's what the person would serve, they

wouldn't be paroled out in a few years oOr something

like that?

Yes.
Do you have any feelings or any kind of knowledge or

opinions about that 1ldea?

Not really, no.
You would be willing to agree that a sentence of life

imprisonment would be just that, that the person
would spend the rest of thei: ii£e in prison?

Yes. . : |
Conversely, vou wauld agree thét a sentence of death

would mean just that, that a pe;son would be
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EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

' STONEFIELD: Thank you, ma‘am. - We would pass, your

axecuted?

Yes.

Kind of a general question, would'you consider
yourself somebody who, ohca YQEHhave formed an
opinion that you think is rigﬁt, that you weuld:stick
to that opinion? Do you think that you are a person
that kind of gticks to their guna or im all honesty
_ﬁould you smay that ybu tend to be iwafed by other
people's opinions? o

Na, I form my own opinions.

And you'll stick to them?

Yes.

Do you think that there's anything else that we
should know about you or your knowledge of this case
as we go through this procedu;gf

Nq. I don't knpw really anything about thia case.

Honor.
I have just a few questions for you, ma'am. You have

to understand that we have to both ask guestions to

ame if we'éan have you as a juror. From listening to

Judge Konenkamp yesterday and that orientation that
he read to you, you understood that you are a

proapective juroxr in this case_of State versus

104
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'not this Defendant would receive a sentence of death

Charlea Russell khines?

Yes. )
Andrtrom that orientation do you understand that in
this case the State is seekinq:the death penalty?
No, X dién't. but now I do. | .

Do you understand fhat ~= let me make this a little
clearer. As Mr, Stonefield just told you, this is a
case where if you are selected on the jury, one of
the 12 peoﬁle on the jury, fbu'd first be called upon
to decide whether or not the Defendant was guilty or
not guilty, particularly of a;éharge of first deéree
murder. Okay? Now, just assuming that you found him|
guilty of that offense of first degree murder, then

there'd be a second stage of Eﬂé trial where, after

hearing additional evidence, you'd decide whether or

or a sentancelof life imprisonment. Do you

understand that?

Yes.
Now, to get back to what I was telling you before,

whether or not you understand the State was seeking
the death penalty, should yoy‘qst to that second

stage, as the attornéy rnpraﬁﬁ#ting the State, I will
be asking you as one of the ju?prq to impose the

death penalty on the De!andﬁn;t_that is, to put him

105
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to the death. Do you understand that now?

Yesn.

Before I go any further, how do you faesl about that?
Well, I don't have an opinion on it now, you know. '
Let me ask a couple of othexr queétionn ther. Before
that jury in the second stage could return either a
sentence of death or a santoncé_bf life imprisonment,
that jury would have to be uqqqimous; each one would
have to vote for the same thing; do you understand?
Yes. ll? ,

8o, 4if anyona voted differentiy; then they couldn‘'t
return a vardict one way or the other; do you
understand?

Yes. .
Do you understand why it's so important to both the

State and to the defense then to individually ask
these queastions to determine whether or not the

jurors could actually reach h)qeciaion one way or the

other?

qu. =

In other words, do you underst;ﬁd if.I selgetnd a
juror who in their own mind in all fairness could not
impose the death penalty, that in many ways in terms
of meeking the death penalty I'd be wasting my time

because I could never get a unanimous jary. Just
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- not you could actuslly imposé'the'death penalty if

_about the death penalty?

one, that's all it would taka, so I have to look at

you as one pfospeetive juror qn& decide whethar or

the qv;dénce'and law.convinced:you it should, ockay?
Okay. o | -

Do you.have any religious, perspnal or moral baliefs
that would cause you to be opposed to the death
penalty?

No. : .
You were talking with Mr. Stonefield and I believe
you told Mr. Stonefield that foq haven't thought

about it much?
The death penalty, ne. That's not something you

think about, you know.

And it's somathing you have never spoken tolyour
friends or relatives about? | |

It might have been brought up. .I don't recall
anything about talking about anything like that.
Without going into specific fases ar.anything like
that that we might have heaxd about, never has caughf

your attention as a point of conversation to talk

No.
Let's think about it for a momert then. Assuming we

are in this courtrcom and I want you to look at those
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- guilty, beyond a reasonable doﬁht, and if it's that

chairs over there and the seqénd thing I want you to
look at is the Defendant, Mr. Rhinah. who is at this
table. You see.Mr. Rhines?
Yes. )
First_thing I want to ask you is, just because he's

on trial here today, do you feal any sympathy for

him?

No.

Secondly, I need to ask you, éan you envision
youruélf lodking over at those chairs, being one of
the jurors ;ho would come back and retuin a verdict
or sentencing verdict putting H;; Rhines to death?
Yes. o '

One other question along those lines. Can you
envision yourself, if vou were polled, that is, if
the Judge asked each individgal Juror, is that your
sentence to put the Defendant tq,denﬁh, can you
envision yourself looking at the Judge or the
Defendant and. saying, ves, that's my verdict; that's
my sentence that that man be'pif to death?

Yes.

Now, again, how do you feel #y;ut thgt?

Well, what I feel is like if # person ia found

bad, I feel that that would be the right thing te do,
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Tha dasath penalty?

Yes.

the death penalty.
Ma'am, I want to ask you a few questions a little hi£ '

along the lines Mr. Stonefield was asking you. First
of all, just so I understand, you told Mr. Stonefisld
I think, whether or not you'wéﬁld impose the death

penalty that it would depend upon the circumstances

of the case,

Yes,
Now you have had a few more minutes to think about

this and I am going to ask you, as you have thought
about this sort af thing, even briefly over the years
the reading you have done or the conversations you
have had with othar people, have you tyaught of any

particular type of circumstances where you thought it

might be appropriate?

Well, I have heard a lot of heﬁi last night, if it's
proven fo be, depending on the circumstances. of the

thipng, it's hard for me -~ if it wam a really vicious

crime.
Now, you brought up something else in yvour rasponses

to. me that I want to ask you abeut. You know veary

well that this case is one where if you return a

verdict of guilty you are going to have to comnsider
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did you not, ma'am? .

What I'm curious about is this, just because you

‘certainty just becaunse this ﬁg?‘a.death penalty case?

whether or not you impose death or life. What I'm
curious about is this, as you ﬁnow, there are tuwo
stages to the trial, and the first stage is you
detefmine guilt or innocence. And this case, like

any other case that has to be decided, as the Judge

told you, it doesn't have to be to an absolute
certainty, but to a standard, our legal standard of

beyond a reasonable doubt. You heard that yestarday,

Yas,

might have to face the issue of death or life in the
second stage, do you think yQQEyopld somehow hold the
Btate of South Dakota, and pafticularly me the |

prosecutor, to a higher standaré of proof than just
proof beyond a reasonahle doubt to somehow maybe

avoid getting‘to that séaond stage where you'd have
£o determine.ﬂeath or life, or do you think you could
follow the instruﬁtiona of the Court and just leave

it at a standard of proof to just beyond a reasonable

doubt?

Yes.
You wouldn't elevate that standard to an absolute

No.
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. aouldn't serve as a juror imn this case?

MR.
THE

Do you know, ma'am, of anyone, I'm tnlkin§ about
friends, relatives or acquaintances, do you know of
anyone who, if you came back after that mecond stage
and returned a.death sentence, that someone might be
out there sort of who had strong opposition to death
sentencas, iho might.confront you and make it
difficult for you after you'refurned such a sentence?
No. | o

So, you feel if you did that §qd you felt that was
proper under the evidence aﬁd law, you could go out
without any reservation and lead rour'life and not
have to worry about anj retribution or retaliation
fﬁom friends or acquaintances or anything like that?
Yen. - .

Bow, can you think of any reason at all why you

No.

GROFF: That's all I have, Judge.

COURT: Thank you. All right,'ma'am, you are a
proapective juror on this ua-e;;.We are going to
excuse you temporarily. Do ﬁé.pgve har phone number,

is that correct? We would ask that if you have not

heard from us by a week from today that ydu call the

Clerk's Office to check in and make sure that we have

your locatiom.
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DELIGHT MCGRIFF: Okay.
THE COURT: I'll rapeat somethinq=i mantioned yesterday.

DELIGHT MCGRIFF: Yes. S 7
THE COURT: We will excuse you temporarily, s=o I*ll let

MR. GILBERT: Thank Yyou.
(Prospective Juror RONALD HILTON, having previously been

EXAMINATION: BY MR.AGILBERT:

Q
A

It's very important now that ybu not read any
newspaper articles or listen to any radio or watch
any television reports conoéinihg this case. It's
‘very important that rbu not allbw youfaelf to be
influeﬁead by these outaide sources of information ao
you ¢an hear the evidence in this courtroom and base
your decision on the evidence. Can you promise me
you'll not read any newspaper raports about this case

or listen to any other media reports on radic or

television?

you know when it's time to come back.

8ir, you were previously swornﬁjpd you are still

under oath. Counsel.

"sworn, testified as followa:)

Would you begin by stating yo#r:pgme?

My name 1ls Ronald Hilton. _

Good morning, Mr. Hilton. I'm Wayne Gllbert and
alang with me here is Joe Buﬁip%rahd nikevstonefield
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STATE OF SOUTH DAROTA ) " IN CIRCUIT COURT
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ETATE OF SGUTH DAKOTA,
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v, JURY TRIAL
CHARLES RUSSELL REINES, ' 93-81
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PROCEEDINGS: The folliowing mattefé were had before the
HEONORABLE JOHN K. KON*NKAMP, ‘Clrcuit Judge at
Rapid City, South Dakota, on the 8th day of

January, 1993.

APPEARANCES: MR. DENNIS GROFF, MR. JAY MILLER, and.
MR. MARK VARGO
State's Attorney's Office
Penpnington County
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FOR THE STATE

UPREME COURT MR. JOSEPH BUTLER
JFA % OF ROUTH DAKOTA  Attorney at Law
ElreEn PO Box 2670
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MR. WAYNE GILBERT
;? 5{ ] oL Attorney at Law
3202 West Main Street )
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MR. MICREAZL STONEFIELD
Public Dafendery .

CouflgIfington County
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inquire.
MR. GILBERT: Thank you, your Honor.
(Proapective Juror BENKETT BLAKE, hnvinq'ﬁrcvioully been

mworn, testifiad as follows:)
BXAMINATIOR BY MR. GILB!*T:
Q Stats your name please.

A Bannett Blake.
Q@ I'm Wayne Gilbert and I'm one of the attorneys for

Charles Rhines and he's sitting at the table here
with uik- Btonefiald and Joe Butler vhb ara xlso
' reprasenting him., Good morming, sir. You filled out
a questibnnaire-a month ago and ths lawreri for both
sides have had a chance tc leok at it. You have been

in the Air Force approximately eight years?

A Yes, air.

Q@ And were you born and raised in' Taxes?

A Yeah. _ K

@ 1Ia tﬁc eight years you hava besn in the Air Force
where hava you been? L

A Two yeafs in Germany. .

Q@ And six at Ellsworth?

A Yup.

Q T noticed you cbtained an Associate's Degree at a

college in Huntsville, Texas?
A I think ~- well, I cannot remesmber. I went to &
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. The fact that I liked thas atudy of the kehavior of

- Yas.

couple Aifferent collages and I ran track in college
and when my grade polnt average from a regular
eollege and junior college --~ my major was in

sociology.

Pefores you want in tha Air Porce?

y
Yas.

What attracted you to soclology?

peaople and trying to figure out what is inzide a
parson maybe, stuff like that.

What do you do in the Air Porce?

I‘m perlénnll specialiat and I_d%td to wetk on the
miputeman missles and T have this missing finger that
happened before I came in tho ;é§y£cn_at & summer joﬁ

when I went to school and now Ilubrk in the personnel

office out there.

What kind of things do you do? .

Separations. VWe have bhad a lot of that lately.

With the early-out type?

You have had a lot of activity and it's in the news
and ars you snowed under at vqu[ is that the kind of
tﬁinc if you were called upon tq}@;t as a juroer 1;
this case that would effect... | ‘

Not at all.
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" Not a problem,

go crass the bomrd; lat's make it a Democratic Party.

That wouldn't be & concern being called away from

your work a month orlno or four or five waseks?

You are also active in the Democratic Party amd is
therse a difference betwean a Texas Democrat and a

South Dakota Remocrat?
Texas was a Demoeratic state ﬁéd I said, hey, let's

Were your parents Democrats?

Yes, they were.
In front of you thexisa is a with-ia list of péoplo who

night be called as msome of the witnesses in this
case. Would you take look at that and see if there
Are any names you may recognize? ‘

Certainly; one for sure and one maybe.

Who is the for sure? L

Jerry Hammerguist, he's the Rapid Velley Iériqatian
dﬁétrvilor and Rarrold Plooltq;}:ny wife is from
sastern South Dakotm, and I c,nionly sssune that they
may be related. ‘d

Let me ask you about Harrold giopater first. If
Harrold Plooster were to testify in this case, would
there be any reason, 5-:-6 on tht you know,: that you

would believe...
No. T wouldn't sven know what he looked iike. I
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Not at all.

Just had a pusuinc‘ncqulintnnc. with hjs son. There
was a Plooster assigned and we might have had lunch
on a chance meeting, and it wi§~l'eh-ne- meeting that
wa atarted talking one day. But, no...

How about Jerry Hammerquist, wo#ld you tand to give
his testimony more or leas weiqﬁf bacause of any
contacts you have had with him?

Not a bit.
The evidence, there will be some avidence here that

will show that Mr. Rhines is :.honoln:unl, he's gay
and one or two of the witnesses who might be called
in this case are also gay and have had relationship
with Mr. Rhines. Knowing that, 403- that cauzs you

to view Mr. Rhines differently mt all?

Do you h-ppén to have any acquaintances or friends or.
ralatives that are gay?

Hot that I know of.
If you were to find out today that one of your

friends is gay, would it make any diffarence towards

you as far am your friendship 1sxconeorned?

Not raally. _
How do you feel about the proﬁog§1 to allow
homosexuals into the armed smervices?

I feel they have been there fqr#gppq time.

t
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You have never served on a juryubnfore?

To make it official wouldn't make sny difference to

you?

Hot at all.
Would you say you are in favor o!{that proposal?

Laaning more toward indifference than favorable, I
think if it's a deacision of our superiors, well let's

just say you'd have ﬁo live with it.

No, I haven't.
Have you heard over the ranrs-nibut the presusption’

of innocence and the burden of proof and reascnable

doubt? »
I have seen snough Perry Hason;fy
One thing aﬁout Perry Mascn is also a defense lawysr
and he always hil laucthihg to put on as svidence or
does something to show his clients are innocent.
How, do you undarstand that the burden of proof and
quilt.bcyond a reasonable doubt ;- actually on the

Stats at all stages of the case and the burden never

shifts?

That ‘s corxect. e 7
So that the Defendant is not obligated or expectsd to

put on any evidence of any kind at all; he has three
lawyers and we can decide not to put on a thing snd

you can't hold that against Mr. Rhines; do you agrea
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with that?
Yes, sir. Absolutely.

Have you had s chance, through your studias or over.

the years in your life, to give any thought to the

daath penalty?

Yes, I hava,
Hava you come to any opinionn'd;ﬁaonclusion?

¥ think it should be a case~by-case basis. I can't

‘say that it should be arbitrary for every crime.

On the othar hand, you ars not bﬁhosed to it, =o 1t.
should naver be permitted?

You could say thinm.
In South Dakota in & eriminal case where the State

his deaided that they want to aik~£o: the death
penalty, there could be two t;ia{a. 'Thcri is the
trial wh;ch the jurf is asked ﬁdl#étermine whether
th-y'think guilt h‘s been provéﬁ:beyond a rqasonnﬁla
doubt. Here Mr. Rhines isa ch-fqad with first dsgres

_murder, so it would be the statﬁ‘ﬁ obligation to

prove at the trial that we are now concerned with
tﬂgtshe'- guilty of first degree.nurder bayond a
reasonable doubt. If thay dun't'prove figst dagrae
murder beyond a reasonable doubt, then ch-'dqry‘l
funetion as far as Nr, Rhines 1nrgufth-r procaadings

is concerned is over, 1If thnx‘dq:prové guilt beyond
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‘are prasent, then the jury conaiders whether to

impose a death sentence. And we hear in the news

a reasonable doubt, then the Jjury is asked to
consider whether thare are cc:@giq-agqravnting
circunstances tﬁit the Judge wili instruct you sabout
and define for you, and if the jury in thi; second
part of the trial finds beyond a raulon;hlc doubt

that onm or mora of thase aggravating circumstances

about how people are sentenced to death and it goes
on for years and years and there are appeals and

commutations, but the fact im, the ﬂ.ath pesnalty in

South Dakota is carried out. 8o this is not a thing

that the jury could be thinkiq@ﬂiii we santence him
to death, sonething elsze willnﬁigpon; And the jury
iz not regquired to ssntence hin;;; douﬁh. even if
they find an aggravating eircuﬁifﬁnce. If the jury
finda an aggravating e;reustlnci but concludes the
death penalty is not appropriate, then there is 1life
iwprisonment. In_Southvnukoil that mesns life
without possibility of parole. If Mr. Rhines was
lontoneod te life, he'd novcf.getﬁaut and if the Jjury
finds that there are not nqgrnvnfiné circumstances
proved beyond a reasonable doﬁhﬁj then it wouid‘b.'-
life imprisonment situatien 1n-£§ad_ot the death .

penalty. Now, since you hav-,hég'i-chcncc to think
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' consideration to sn sggravating circumstance thet

I guess we would bave to wait and ses what is

about the death penalty over the years, d¢ you think
that there are any typas of cases that come to mind
whare it is appropriate?

Yen.
What comes to mind? ‘

Well, if it's indeed a heinous, let's say & crime
that goes beyond ~- I don't know what we'd comnsider
normal, maybe a normal, somethin& that society 13.
more in tune with, something thé#'s 80 bizarre and
outlandinh or something that bi;ignlly that the jury
warrants that the death penalty be imposed. |

It may be that if the jury ahould get to the sacond
phase after the trial and you listen to the Court
define and list these aggravating circumstances, it
may ba that mome of the aggravating circumstances
would be as bad as what you just described. It
wouldn't neceasarily havas to boua ﬁizsurc type of
thing or something that is juit §orr;b1e or somsthing
that's hard to deseribe; wouldi§ghlﬁo able to toliow

the gourt'l instructions and giv} serious
maybe doesn't rise to this horrible...

presented there.
After you had sesn what is presented; would ¥You be
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" execution might be doing a Defendant a favor?

able to follow the Court's instructions?

Yas. _

As long as you undcrstoodrthanigpu'd be able to
follow them? o

Yax, o

I txy to make -~ I just 1ntcriﬁié;d you.

Heck, no, don't worry about it. ‘I finished, I Just
wanted to say; yes, I could make a decision 1f =mo
ingtructed. |

And you'd be able to give seriocus consideration both
to the death penalty and the aqgr;vatinq
circumstances that you would be 1pltructed about as
wall aa.goinq the other way and iil- without parole?
Once the evidence is presented.

Have you got &n idea in your niné right now aa you
think would be the worse uentancé.ge give a person,
death or life without parole? -

In my opinion the werst sentence would be life

without parole,.
Do you hold that view so strongly that you think an

Not neceasarily. It depends on the circumatances,

you know. L
And maybe in your mind if you somehow hypothetically

were in a situation yéu might even want to be

837

APPENDIX 270



W ow N N s W o M

I Y R R O R T
L - "I T TR~ N ol e o

‘ Have you heard anything about this case?

axacuted instead of doing 1itthitﬁout parola?

Possibly.

Iniqinlly some stsndard stuff, but it just weant by
the.yaynido. We had a lot of work come up in the
voffice mnd worked a-lot of nights and I dAidn’"t keep
up with it in the last few months and to be honest it
was a surprise to get ecalled 1nﬂ.a real surprise.

When you got called in, did the name Charles Rhines

mean snything to you at all?

Ysah, it aid.

What do you feeal{ hearing about;ﬁr; Rhines before
you were called hgro for jury'ﬁdgf?'

The stuff that was in the news and stuff like that,
bringing him in from Hnuﬁinqton #t-ta back to be
Rapid City. -I.!iaurpd there'd So a trisl lt.nong
point, but as far as the specifics of it, no.

Any other more specifics or norgsd;tailnd things you
can recall as us sit here todny? |

No, just standard stuff. Again; I remenber it when
the night back in March it happaﬁ;d because I had to
drive to Colorade, and other than that just want into

kind of a blur. . _ o ,
How about since Monday, have ybuiﬁnard'anyfhing or

read qﬁythinq?

938

APPENDIX 271



I T R VI TR O T
C T -2 - T~ - M

A

Q
;

Q

A
MR. GILBEBRT: Thank you,

I followed the Judge's instructions when the local
news ceme on, and I went in the 6ther room and I
noticed that the nnwlpnﬁar r-nliy'cut down in today's

papar whlﬁ they had about it and I don't think there

was anything at all. I was more interested in the

sport's page to be honest with you,

Bacause of anything that you qiﬁ#ﬁ have read or heard
or discussed with friends or f;Qiij people at work,
do you come herea today with any ideas one way or the

othni whather Mr. Rhinesz im guilty or not guilty of
this offensa?

Not at all.
That's allAthn questions I have

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Mr. Bennett, I'm the State's Attornay?

Good morning, sir, R

It's going to ba my job during the next couple of
waaks to argus the case, T wup;?ﬁo ask you just a
faw gquestions. I was 1ntore:ti§fin.four sociology

degres. Before you pursusd that sociology dagree,

4id you think that was what you were going to go

into?
I went thers with general studies in mind.

I think what you told me, were you interested in the

bahavior of people and why they do things?
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- One of the things you get used to doing is folloninq

Yeah, basically, really interested in maybe like more
of the co-depandent -~ you see a lot of that and my
wife has a degras in sociology and we can get into |
some heatad conversations. :T

co—&ep-nqency is a very interesting concept, very
interesting. I want to talk te you a little bit
about the military, and you have besn in the military

.

for eight years?
Just went ovaer eight in November.

Military as you were tllkipq before has a lot of

rules?

Absolutely.

the rules?

Without a doubt. L
Maybe that's something that ties us in with the Court’

and tha Court has the rules which_wﬁ call
instxuctions and I think Mr. Gilbert cleared this
with you that no nltt;r what circumstances you
thought might bs circumstances which would justify
the imposition of ths death pupq;gr, you would follow
the Court's instructiohs =s to ﬁhut the aggravating
circumstances ars in South Dakota, 4s that right?

Yes, sir. o _
As I understand you wers down in Texas for how long?

p]
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X was born there in "60. I'hava'hoan in the service
24 years. '
Twanty-four yaara?

Yeah,
Reacalling when you were down in Texas, do you recall

hearing about death cazas?
Yes.
That's not something unusual for you?

No, sir.

Befors I go any further, I need to ask you about .
visualizing yourself on the sdfyi bht firat, could
You be a little more -pocitic?’.ioﬁ were telling Mr.
Gilbert about matters that came ﬁp.in your nind which
you thought could justify imposing the death penalty.
I think you used the word heinous?

Well, I believe that first of all I have to look at
ezaybe, was it a spontaneous erpe.ot thing or
premeditated type of thing or ihut would infliuence
me. Y |
Hhe# it comes to premeditation, ein you follow the
cOurh'l'in-tructlonl. what that ﬂpanl undcr.ﬁauth.
Dakota law? :

Well, I ean interpret it in ny_wai._ I‘'m not sure
what South Dakota law says, but y;dh, I could.

You were explaining, I'm sorry?
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A Again, this is an individual decision that I fael,

you know, and together it will coma together, if it
warranted it by the evidence th@f we will see, X

guess, yeah; just breaking 1t'd§jﬂ.

Q@ What you are saying is if the evidence warranted

imposing death on this Defendant, Mr. Rhinas, you

could visualizs yourself qoing'tgat?

A Yos.
MR. GROFF: That's all I have. Pass for cause.

THE COURT: All right, sir, you remain a prospective

juror on this case and we ﬁil;'ha in touch with you
when we need you to come back, and if you make tha
final jury panel. In the meantipe, it i= very
important that you continue not toe watch, read or
listen to any media accounts qqqééfqing this case and
that you not di-cu;- this casae iigh apnyone or allow '
anyone to discuss it with you ;éiin your pressnce.
~Can you promise me you'll not d;tthe-a,things?

BENNETT BLAKE: Certainly. :

THR COURT: 1If you have not honfd tgdi us by Tuesday at
noon, I'd ask that you call the Clerk's Office to
check in and make aure that w; lQn able to reach you.
Thank you, vary much. Let's take & ten minute

recess.

{(Recess was taken 9:25 to 9:40.}
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THE COURT: Defense may -:gxetiel—{lacord will show that

. the defense has exercised its tenth peremptory and

WILLIAM BLAIR: Yan.
THE COURT: ﬁetense may inguire.
{(Prospective Juror, WILLIAM BLAIR, having previously been

EXAIMINATION BY MR. GILBERT:

. No, I never have.

T 943

ths Clerk will summon another juror.

Good morning, Mr. Rlair. You wire previously sworn

in and you remain under oath now?

sworn, testified as followsa:)

For the reéord state your nn;clﬁlcuno.

¥illiam Blair. S

Mr. Blair, I'm Wayne Gilbart, iﬁéﬁr'n ene of the '
lawyers for Charlea Rhines and h; is the man sested
at the middle of the table, and ﬁhe other lawyers are |
Mike Stonefield and Joe Butler and thae three of us '
represent Mr., Rhines. The quastionnaire you filled
out a month ago we've had copies of that and have had

a chance to look at it and you have not served on

jury duty befora?

Have you ever been called at alij

No. _
Some of the questionm that you will be asked by both

sides this morring are probing and may seem kind of
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juror. Good afterncon, sir., We swore you in last

week 80 you remain under ocath. Defense may inguire,

{Progpetive Juror DARYL ANDERSON.:having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY MR. MIFKE STONEFIEhDéA

Q
A

Q

You are Paryl Aﬁderson?'

Yes.

I'm Mike Stonefield and 1I'm one of the attorneys
repreQentinq charles Rhines in this case. Mr. Rhines
is the man seated in the middlg ;f the table and this
is Mr. Wayne Gilbert one of the attﬁrneys and Mr. Joe
Bulter. How are you today?

Just fine.

You sat through the orientation process a week ago so
you have a general idea why it is that we are up here
today?

Uhm-uhm.

I'd ask you to take a look around the courtroom and

tall us 1f you know anyhody?'
I recognize Mr. Groff here.

Would tht just be knowing him as the Btate's

Attorney?

Picture in the paper.
Have you ever had any kind of dealings with him in

any type of criminal case?
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No. _
Basically you just know who he 1s?

- Yes.

[l

Do you know anything about Mr. Rhines other ;han wﬁat
you might have heard or read in the paper?

I don't know anything about hin.

pid you know Donnivan 8chae£fer or have any knnwledge
of any member of his family?

No. . o

One of the things we need to talk about is what if
anything you know about this éase in particular., so
1'd ask you tec tell us'--.fromktha guestionnaire you
indicated that you had some knowledge about the case
and I'd ask you to tell us as spacifically as you
can, what if anything you remember having heard or
read?

The thing that I rememher is this Schaefﬂer was a
real nice guy. They mentioned that in the paper and
just that it was a hotqﬁad up robbery, turned inﬁo a
murder.

And your knowledge, that knnwledge you are talking

about something you heard ahnutkan the news or in the

papar.
Right. _
Have you ever in the past few months talked about

1327
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this case with anfbody?

No, just when I was picked for jury duty people would
say, hey, you are on this trial, and I said not yet.
I don't have any idea but that is about all.

You live in New Undérwoed?

Just outsids.

When you say you were picked fo¥ the trial, are you
talking about when you got this questionnaire a month
or so ago? "
Right.

Oﬁce you realized you were a poﬁantial juror eon this
case, you did talk to some other people about that?
Just that part, right.

Did you ever haar anyhody express an opinion ebout

"Mr. Rhines as to whether he was'guilty or not guilty?

Well, you hear comments on like, well, you know what
I'd do if I was on there, tha£ ﬁype of thing.

Have ﬁou yourself ever expressed any kind of opinien?
Not really. i
Would you say that as you sit-gefe toﬁay that you
have an opinion one way or the other aboqt whether oi
not Mr. Rhines... _

I would say I wouldn't have an opinion because you

can listen to the media and they have pretty much

convicted someone already part of the time and that's
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not right because there are several cases where

things have happened that I know that's not true what

1

they print.

You are saying that although you-have read or heara
gome things about the case, you don't necessarily
take everything you hear at face value?

You never have been a iuror before?

No.

Have you ever been called up into this ﬁind of a
process before to be questioned? |

I was subpoenaed cover 20 years aﬁo in an attempted
murder~kidnapping thing. We came on to a !alloﬁ that

had besn abducted from Iowa éngﬁI never did go before

"the Court.

You were a possible witness?

Right.

Have you ever besn, you yourself or anybedy in the

family ever been involved in the criminal system as a

‘witness or having been charged with sonmething?

No.
One of the things that wﬁs disqussed during that

orientation process the other dﬁy were several
concepts about criminal law, one of them being that
any person that’s charged with]a crime is presumed to

be innocent and that p:esumpfion follows with the
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person throughout the entire prdceedings and can only

" be overcome by evidence of guilt beyond a reascnable

doubt. Do you remember hearing that?

Right.

Is that something that was familiar ﬁo you?

Yes.

As you sit here right now, do you have any problem

applying that presumption to Charles Rhines?
No. I have no problem. ' ‘
You would say that from anything you might have heard

or heard other people talk abuﬁty you have no opinion

- whatscever right now as to his guilt or innocence?

I would'say I have no'opinion.
You indicated on the quesﬁionnaire that you have
lived in South Dakota at least for your whole life.

Right.
But you have lived in Fennington County for 15 years

.or BO?

No.

I'm sorry, I'm reading it wrpnd; You lived in
Pennington County your whole life and went to school
in New Underwood?

Yes,

You are a New Underwood resident your entire life?

Right,
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You have one child?

Yes.

Who apparently would be out cf school now?

Yes, she's married. ' .

5ti1l 1iving arcund here?

She lives in New Underwced.

Is she employed anywhere? )

She works at New Underwood School, she's 4 secretary
there.

And you have worked for thelhighway department for...
For 24 years. l

Which gould be pretty much since you were out of
school and you worked for them ever since?

Within a couple of months.

And you are in charge of the_N;; Uhderwood division
out there?

Right. _
Probably notice I'm readling aﬁf'your qdestionnaira
here and probably would have expected that I would
have access to it.

Right.

You belong to a Catholic church in New Underwood?

Yes.

Would you say you go :sgularly?

No.
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Doas your wife attend regularlf?

Neo.

Some of the gquestions we may ask may seem to be a
little prying and they're not meant to a embarrass
you and understand the seriocus nature of this case,
but would you describe yourself as a religious
person?

Well, I don’'t know how I would put that. I beliave
in Ged, if that's what you mean. 7 '

I know it's kind of a general qgegtion. Do yeu have
iny particular feelings -~ we ﬁill.talk about this in
some mare detail. As you sit_hqre now, would you say
you have any particular feelinéé ane way or the other
about the death penalty? '

Well, I feel that if =& person i; guilty 1I'd say it{s
a just thing. _

Would you say again just generaily that in your mind
you have thought this out quite a bit; is it '
somethiﬁg you have discussed wiph other people?

Not necessarily. No, I wouldn't say I discussed it.
Maybe with my wife, we talked abput it.

You would say that as a genafa;:proposition that you
are basically in favor .,of it? 1: -

Yas, -

A
B

DPid you know what was involved:in this case before
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this last week?

I suspected that it would be, yes.

Why was that?

Well, 3ust the charges that were brought against to
me would seem... ‘

Let me tell you, procedurally héw a case like this .

goes, and I'1ll try and explain it and see if you can.

understand my explanation. The first part of a

trial, this is like the first part of any regular

- criminal trial where evidence is presented and

arguments are made and a detérmination is made by the
jury as to whether or not a person charged here, Mr,
Rhines, has been prQVen'guilty of'whﬁt he's charged
with, evidence beyond a reasona&le doubt and that's,
as I said, that's the nornal part of any criminal
trial. Of course, in a case'liﬁe this if the jury
were to find that he were qoﬁ gg;lty of first degree
murder, then there'd be no fuffher diacﬁasion about
penalty ox anything 1ike thatwand the case would just
be over. 'It, however, he %ere;§qund_qu11ty of Eirst
degree murder, which is one of the things he's_
charged with, then there’'d be-a second part to the
trial and that is one of the things that makes this
type of proceeding different than any other c¢riminal

trial ipn this State, in that were he to be found
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"Right.

guilty of firsf degree murder, the jury would have
the opportunity to hear new evidence and arguments as -
to what the sentence should be, because the jury
would actually do the sentencing, You may be
familiar with the way most or all other cases in this
state are handled is that a perscn, if they're
convicted of something, the Court deoces the
sentencing, but in a capital case, in a first degree
murder, death penalty case, thg jury does the
senténcing. _And so you understand it, that is part
of the reason why we need to talk about this.

A

Now, the way that procedure w\ﬁid ﬁork. the way that
second part of the trial, if"wg;gqt to it, the way
that would work would be tha;wyﬁe State woﬁld allege
that there werelone or more wﬁég are calléa
aggravating circumstances surroﬁnding the case, ene
or more circumstances that happéhad which rajises it
into the class of cases where the death penalty can
be considered and theose one or_morefcifcumstances
would have to be proved Jjust 1ike the elements of the
crime have to be proved and proved beyond 2a
reasoﬁable doubt in order for the jury ta consider
the da#th penalty. Now, if the jury first of all

foun& Mr. Rhines guilty of fiféf degree murder, and-
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second of all found one or more of those
clircunstances to exist, then the jury would have to

decide what the appropriate sentence was and there'd

"be two choices and only two and those would be death

by lethal injection, the death penalty or a lifs
gentence in the penitentiary without possibility of

parovle. Those would be the two possible sentences.

' Do you feel that you understand at least generally

new the procedure?

Yes.

You indicated in yﬁur answer to. the géneral question
about the death pemalty that you do feel that it's an
apprépriate penalty. Let me aékxyou this. If ycu
were to -— I'm asking you to ﬁresume some thinﬁs
here; presume you were to sit én tﬁe jury and presume
you were to f£ind Mr. Rhines guilty of first degree

murder, presume you were then going into the second

'part of the trial the sentencing part and if you were

to have found him guilty of first degree murder .
would vou think the death penili& should
automatically follow? e

It deﬁends. p;ke you say thezgécohd part of tha;
depending on the evidence that wags shown I'd say...
Just as 2 general question, are;?ou,saying that in

your mind the death'panalty would net automatically
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follow,
Right.
You would want to conszider other factse?

Yas,.

Do you have any kind of idaa‘iﬁ your mind about what
other types of things might be-?ppropriate to
consider? ) :

No, I couldn't tell you right nbw. I can't think ef
any, but that's a pretty seriousrmatter.

Can you, in your mind, canp you think of any set of
circumstances, any type of case that you heard about
in the news or anything that pobs‘in your nmind where
you would think the death penaltf would automﬁtically
be appropriate?‘ | 1 7

I could think - vyou mean like da Ted Bundy type
thing? I thought that was appropr;ate. '

A lot of pecple we've talked to mentloned th1ngs like
that. In a situation like that Yyou would think it
would.kind.ot be automatically appropriate for
scmeone convicted of... )

T would say in his case I think it was the right
thing to do.

Were you to sit on this kind of a césa, do you think
you'd want to congider -= I'ﬁ jpst giving you an

example here, would one of the things that would be
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'that that would be what woulg‘actually happen,

important for ¥you to considef,'ﬁe the facts invelving
the earlier life of Mr. Rhines, the perason convicted?
I don't know if that would =-- i near Sc nmuch of that
about the parents and being an abused child and I
think there is too many times that people fall behind
that as an excuse.

Are you saying that in your mind that that type of
evidence would not have any imhortance?

Right, it wouldn't have any jmportance. I think it's
used too much as far as scme of these cases ¢o.
People hide behind their past and use it as an
excuse: :

You did say that you would want to probably congider
other things. I have given yau one example there.
tan you think of any other particular things that
might be that you right thznk to be impcrtant?

No, I really can't.

I want to talﬁ to you & little bit about the
different alternatives of sentencing that we
discussed. You understand when I explained that
there were, if we were to reach the penalty part that
there'd only be two possibly penalties? Are you
willing to accept the fact thaf'in this State that a

sentence of death, if it was imposgd by the jury,
that
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Mr., Rhines would be put to death?

Right. '

What XI'm getting at bésicailf ig, you are willing to
accept that as a proposition ard not tﬁink that well,
maybe at some point he would win an appeal or the
governor would commute the sentence? |

I -would say that wculd‘probabif'be a possibility,
maybe a remote possibility. U

The point I'm trying to make i;;'are vyou willing to-
accept the fact that at the time if he were sentenced
ﬁo death, if that was what the jury recommended, that
that would be what would happen?

Yes.

And yvou would not feel that the decision was any less
important because of the'ramota chanca thet it might
not bé carried out? -

No, it wouldn't be any less important.

Likewise with the life in prison, are you willing to

'accept the proposition that in'thia State as copposed

‘to a lot of other states that in this State if a

sentence of life imprisonment is imposed, that's what
the person serves, but they do not become parole

eligible and they serve the rest of their natural

life in prison?

Yes,
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You mentioned Ted Bundy and that's somebody you have
been familliar with in the mndia and you mentioned
that as a possible type of sentenca or a possible
case where you thought that the'death penaity was
appropriate. Did you think dfﬂany other types of
cages where you think it's appropriate?

Well, that's the one that comes to mind now, but I
can;t think of any -- I'm kind of nervous.

T understand that. When you hear that kind of story
on television or read about it in the paper, the Ted
Bundy storyf is that something_th;t interestsiyou?
Do you have an interesf in that at all?

Not necessarily an interest, [mo.

Is it something that you'll sit and listen to if it
comes on television or something like that?

I watched the movie or whatev;r.

Do you remember hearing ahout thé case in Washington
State about a week or so ago where a man was

sentenced to death or was actually executed by

hanging.
Right.,

aAnd you heard or you had sone general idea of what he

'was convicted of doing?

Really, no. I have been busy lately and I haven't

had & chance to, but he requé#fed'that form of
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exeoution, right? ,

From what knaﬁledge you might have had fronm that
case, did you feel that that was sppropriate?

Well, I don't know. '

Would you say that you didn't have enough knowledge
of it? N '

Right.

You would characterize yourself as someone that would
want te hear more‘informatioﬁ or am much information
as you could bafore you'd ﬁan£ to make a dAecision on
something like this?

Right, because it's pretty final.

Do you have any generai types_of feelings, based on
ﬁhat we've talked about, how Yoﬁ ﬁould feél if vou
were called to sit oﬁ this type of case?

I wouldn't say I would be excited about it but -- I'd
s;t on the jury. '

You'd be willing to take on that responsibility?

Yes. '

You live outside of town, 201m§;es or sco. Can you
think of ahy reason why the‘é;;;ance that: you'd havse
to travel if you had to be héfe every day'for several
weeks, whi that would presen;Hgny kind of a problem?
It would be snow. That wasnfff% problem until a

couple days ago.

1340

APPENDIX 292




WO NN N N P R B e s )
(LI R O = T S PO S O O A O O e

LI DR - TR T B S T X R Y

It might become a problem again from the sounds of
it.

Other than that, I can't ses anf.prob;em.

No kind of work problems?

I can have peopie'cuver for meﬁ::I.have péopla that
can gover for me everywhere. |

Do you know of anyone, Mr. Anderson, that works in
law enforcement? ". 

Slim Mcﬁaughton, he works for thé aherif:'s
depgrtment in New Underwood. ‘

Would you say he's a friend of yours?

I know him to say hi. I dén't go out to supper with
him or anything like that. '

I'd ask you if you wﬁuldrrighﬁ_now take a look at
thieg 1list of names and tell us if you recognize any
of them? _ |

I recognize Jerry Hammerquist,fpdn Bakhr, I think he
works for‘the sheriff's departmént.

Are you friends with Jerry Haﬁﬁéfguist?

Just an acquaintanca. He's a rapchér by Caputa.
fhe list of names there, the reason we went over
those, those are people that could possibly be
witnesses in this case and if Mr. Hammerquist was
called as a witness, your knowledge of him, do you

think you might tend to favor his testimony or give
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it more credibility than that of someome you didn't
know? ' '

No.

Same guestion on Mr. Bahr?

I wouldn't e&ven recognize him if he walked in the
door.

Just a name that you thought you knew?

Uhm-uhm.

I take it from what we've talked about earlier you
have never been in the military?

YNo.

Not even the National Guard?

No. _

Would you describe yourself -- I'll ask you to mayhe
tell us an opinion about yourself. Would you
describe yourself as someone thaﬁ once you'have'coﬁe
to a decision about something and once you are
convinced that you are right;-would you say that you
are a person who has, as the sajing goes, you would
gtick to your guns or would you say you are a per#un
who, and mgain asking you to describe yourself, who
maybe can be & little more easily swayed or

convinced?

I could be convinced, yeah. I'm not buli-headed.

4

Once you become convinced that'jou are right about
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something, would you...

A Sure.
Enowing what this case is about and knowing a little

bit more of what we've digcussed here, can you think
of any particular reascn that we should know about
why you would say that you couldn't be a fair oz
impartial ‘juror om this case? |

A I think I could be. '

Q Nothing else thét you can think of that we should

"know ahout? S '

A Nothing.

MR. STONEFIELD: Thank ynu; Mr, Anderson. We will pass..

THE .COURT: State may inguire,

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:-

Q I am going to talk to you a 1itﬁla bit about the
éeath penalty if is that's okax; Did you understand
from Mr., Stonefield that if you get to that second
stage, assuming Mr. Rhines is found builty of first
degree murder and then you aré.gbinq to be basigally
either considering the evidence you havg already
heard or considering arguments ﬁiom me about whether
or not that evidence rises to the level of an
aggravating c¢ireumstance and makés this murder
special; do you understand?

A Yes.'
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.The Judge 1ls going to instruct you as to what these

aggravating circumstances are7and my question to you
ig thia, very simply put, wili'you follow the Court's
instructions as to what our agg;avating circunstances
are in South Dakota, even if ydpwdisagree-witﬁ '
them... ‘ .

Yes, I'd follow the instructions.

wa, I want to talk toc you & l1ittle bit about the
questiénnaire you got in the mail. When you £filled
that eut and majiled it in, did you ever think you'd
be here anawering these kind of gquestions?

Yes, |

And, of course, we've got youahéra now and I want to
talk to you about something él;€ that could happen
aﬁd tee how you feel about it?:

Okay. ‘ﬁl

There is'a very rezl possibili£f that you'll bal
picked on this jury and if you are picked on this
jury, of course, you may have Eé make one of the more
important decislons in your life on this case. I
need to have you work with me and dealing with an
;ssumption-here, but I just want to see how you'd
feel in this situgtion. Lwet's éssume you were pickad
fof the jury and you went th?ough that first stage

and were convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr.
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Rhines was guilty of first degrée murdﬁr angd you'
brought back that verdict and.yéu went bach and
considered the evidence that vou heard and arguments,
other asvidence you heard in the second stage and Went
back and deliberated, and conce égain you found an
aggravating circumstance beyond a reasonable doubt
and decided the death penaity was appropriat%{ Kot
trying to get you to commit teo that or anything, but
let's assume you had done all thét_and the next thing
that would happen to you is fou;d come back in this
courtroom and you'd be in ome of those chairs and the
unanimous verdict would be reaqlpf'all 12 of you and
assuming you thought that was_;ﬁé appropriate thing
to do, can you visualize your b;ing in Court and
facing tkhe Defendant, Mr. Rhines, and telling him
that your verdict is to put him to death?

Yeah.

Pretty deep breath. Tell me about it; how do you
feal?

Like I said, it's a serious<th;pg.. You are going te
have to have overwhelming evidence for me.

I'm not sure if the standard oé,proof is
overwhelming.

T know what you mean. N .

I understand how you feel. What I'm trying to figure
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out is no matter your perspnal feelings, I want to
figure out whether or not first of all in that
initial stage whether you f£ind him guilty or
innocent, you know, I have to present evidence to you
that is going to c<onvince yau-hg;ond.a reasonable
doubt if he is guilty, and I think if you listensd to
Judge Konenkamp .the other day he was very explicit
that that deoesn't mean an absclﬁte certainty. Same
thing when we get to that second phase. Before you
can even consider the death penalty, you'll have to
be convinced that there is an aggravating
circumstance that one has been proven, not to an
absolute certainty, do you unde?gtand? '
Right. ' ' | '

And I realize you want to be convineced in your mind,
put do you think ybu can faiﬁlg}ponsider the Court's
instrucﬁions? o |

Ooh, yes.

Is there anyone you know, whu,iéh§o oppeosed to the
death penalty that if you aetqa;ly rendered that
verdict in your case, if you 1eét the building they'd

be on your case about, hovw could you do such a thing?

Well, my wife.
Tell me about that.

she's opposed to the death penalty.
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“You'll have some instruction to follow and evidence

to consider and you'll have your wife to conmsider,
whiech would you cénsider fi:sté

I'd consider thé evidence. :'

This wouldn't cause a divorcé‘éf anything?

No.

If you thought it was the right thing to do and you
did it, do you think you could carry on your life and
not have that be a big issue wi£h your wife?

Yas. ' '

Has your wife been telling you what to do 1f you are
a juror? _  . .

She thinks it's great I'm heée-;houdh.

I don't knéw if that says much{for you, sir.

She'as been a juror before andtéhe says she thinks it
would be.a good learning process.

Now, you'were tﬁlking with Mr. Stonéfield about Ted
Bundy and he's sometimes called & serial killer. Do
you think you'd have any difficulty sitting on a case

where you basically have one Defendant :harged, and

‘one alleged victim killed and we are not talking

about serial killing here?

I don't think I have a'problam with that.

'

Explain that to me if you can.

The charge here is he's charged with murder, the same

1347

APPENDIX 299




N R M B W o

1o
i1
i3
13
14
kR-]
16
17
is
i9
20
21
22
23
24
25

* 0 » © ¥ ©

as Mr, Bundy it's just that hé multiplied it a few

times.

You'd consider the facts and circumstances of this

vase, the how and why, to determine whether or not it

was appropriate, is that corraeect?

Yes.

Can you tell me, Mr. Anderson, one or two questions,
can vou tell me what ars the méfe important decigions
you have made in your life? ‘ '

Well, getting married., That's. abdut the most
important decision that I have ﬁade.

And you have one child and your child is 207

Yés. )

Boy or girl?

Girl.

Was that a big decision, havingra childa?

I wouldn't say. It was an accidént, but I'm glad it
happenad, yes. We actually had two children, the
second one was a planned thing, - '

Something happened?

Yas. _ w

¥e don't have te go into that,;ance yo? make a
decision, whether it's harriaﬁe.ﬁr‘other impertant

decisions in your life, do vyou tend to second-guess

yourselE?
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Not marriage, ne =-- I should say no., Small things

maybe

You think you are ready to make a decision likelthis
if called upon, is that corréct, air?

Yes. ' '

GROFF: I'd pass for cause. Thank you.

COURT: §&ir, you remain a prospective juror on this
case and we will let you know this week whethexr you
have, made the final panel. It's very important you
not discuss this case with anyone or allew anyone to.
discuss it with yeu er in your presence, and also
please do not listen to or watcy or read any news

media accounts concerning this matter., Can you

promise me that?

DARYL ANDERSON: I won't do that.

THE

MR.

THE

COURT: 6Good, And If for somejreason we are unable
to reach you, I would ask that you check in with us
on Wednesday morning and cali the Clerk's Office to
check in and make suré we haven't been trying to
reach you. Thank you. State may exercise. '
GTLBERT: GEtate has exercised its next peremptory.
Heidi Lamb and we renew our motion and objeciton with
respact to the other jurors naﬁed.

COURT: The objection is overruled. State's léth

. peremptory has been entered and the Clerk will call
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Q
A

Q

{Prospective Juror HARRY KEENEY, baving previously beaen

EXAMINATION BY MR. GILRERT:

"No, sir.

. e e

defense counsel and based upon the atatutes, the
State would challenge for cause the disqualirication
because of his current circumastance of being under
the felony'conviction and curfuhtly on probetion.
COURT: Any objection? )

STONEFIELD: No. A

COURT: Mr. Miessner, we wiIlléxcuse you on this
case, J

You were previocusly sworn and you are stlll under

oath. Defense may ihquira.
sworn, testified aas follows:)

State your name plaasei

Harry Keeney. ) RS
Mr. Keeney, I'm Wayne Gilbert anéd along with me here

is Joe Butler and Mike Stonefield. The threa of us
are the defense attorneys forféﬁarles Rhinea. As yeu
look around the courtroom herg; both in froﬂt of the

bar and hohind it, do you see anyone you recognize or

gnow?

Mr. Keaney, we have, both sides hava had access to
the questionnaire you filled out approximately a

month ago and I notice in thatIQuestionnairg that you

31é
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man, and outside of that, you know, the place where

-thay sajid and outside of that I don't know anything

hava geen some newspaper and television accounts of
the events that led up to thii¥cale, is that righﬁ?

Yes.

Do you subseribe to the Rapid City Journal?

Do you.watch the local news stationa, the three
telavision stations for the news medium area?

Yes, air.

Can you tell us from what you have read in the
newspaper and what you have léen on the news what you
have heard about this cass before you came to Court?
About the only thing I could say is that the young

gentleman that was killed was an extremely nice young

he was killed at Dig 'Em Donﬁthand T recall he was

tied up and knifed in the back of the head, I believe

alse to speak of that I can recall right offhand,
Do you have any feelings, a philosophy orxr opinions

about the death penalty?

Well, I would sa} in some cases it's juatified,‘tha’
death penalty in some cases would be justified in
some individuals, ;‘

Based on what you have henrdrﬁéﬁut the case at this

point, do you feel that the death panalty would be

17
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Justified if momeone were to be convicted of first
degree murder because of the facts and circumstances
as yon heard them to be? 7

I haven't haard any facts elither way on that, so you
know, I don't know. I guess I haven't formaed an
opinion on that to be honest with you because I

haven't heard the facts one ﬁay or the other. I just

don't know.

I understand that, and I appreéiate that answer;, I'm
wondering, based on what you 5éva heard in terms of
you heard news reports that the victim was tied up
and stabbed in the back of the head as you said,
hasad upon those facts... ‘

GROFF: Objection, because those are not facts.
GILBEET: Facts =- 1’1l rephrase it.

GRbFF: I want to finish mrﬁoﬁjecticn.

COURT: He said he's going to rephrase rather than
getting into that. .

Based upon what you héve heird} have you at this
point formed any opinion aSZFwahether the death
penalty would be appropriate iﬁ this case? '

I guess not. I haven't heard enough of it to form an
opinion one way or the other.

¥Would you say that there are certain types of cases

in which you favor the death penalty?
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‘with first degree murder and'wﬁen the prosecutoer has

Yes.
Have you had a chance to think about what types of

cases those are?

I would say anyone that praméditatad a.murder,
planned it out, I would say définitely would say they
should be put to death. As far as accidents or‘
somethiﬁg 1ikxe that T wouldn't say that, but really
premad;tated murder would be a cause for me to think
of a person that would deserve that penalty.

Now, lat mé take a couple of minutes to tell you
about the process that's involﬁed in a case like
this. HMr. Rhines has been charjad with first dogrée
murder and we are now Selectinﬁ a jury that would sit

and decide this case. Now, whgn‘a person is charged

decided to seek the death penalty, there is a trial

at which the guilt or innodEnce‘of the bDefendant is

datermined. In other words, if you were selacted to

git on the jury you would hear evidence as tuo whethexr

or not the crime of first dagree murder was committed

and as to whether or not Charies Rhines was the

person who committed the crime. And if you were

gatisfied as a jury unanimously, beyond a reasonable

doubt that Mr. Rhines were guilty of first degree

murder then there'd be a seupnd?t:ihl. Now, if on

ch
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“hack to if there is a convictibn. if there is a

. conviction then the same jury would reconvene and

the other hand, the jury was ﬁot gatiagfied that the
case had been proved beyond ﬁ reasonable doubt and
returned a verdict of not guilty, thenm it would be
ovef ;u far as the sentencing and the jury's

involvement and the case would be concerned. Going

hear evidence on what they call aggravating
circumstances. The SBtate of South Dakota would be
ohligated to attempt to prove‘heyond a resasonable
doubtfthqt there are one or m@re aggravating
circumstances. And in this:cggg'thé Court would
instruct you in detail about ﬁ#éaa aggravating
circumstances, and if you as a jury were to find
beyond a reascnable doubt that éne or more of these

aggravating circumstances exist, then you could

impose the death penalty. You would not be obligated

to, but you could, and that would be the jury's
decision. And I should tell wyou, if the jury’'s
decision is to impose the dea;?;penalty,‘tha daath
penalty would be imposed and tﬁeré is no chance. that
there'd be a commutation or somebody would step in at
the last minute. You'ad huve'Fé assume that it would
be carried out if the death ﬁéﬁé;ty were not imposed.

In South Pakota life imprisoﬂmépt does not have a

320

APPENDIX 307



-~ - ] [ W B [y

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
18
20
.2;
a2
23
24
25

know. It'as hard for me to givg you a correct answer

posaibility of parole, did you knoﬁ that?

I guess I didn't Xnow. '

That is in South Dakota, life imprisonment means just
that. Kﬁowinq about this procedure and getting back
to, you said that in a case nfjplanned out
premeditated murder, Ehe'deathipenaltr would be
appropriate or would be juutified, If at the end aof
the first trial you were sat#sfléd héyand a
reasonable doubt that thers haa:been a premeditated
murder, would you go into the-necond phase of the
trial leaning toward the death penalty?

T would say I'd have to weigh a lot of circumstances

and see what the evidence really was, I mean, }ou

on that, sir, becauﬁé I would think there'd be a lot
of variations on that and I wanf to give you an
honest answer, sa I at this tima 1'11 be honest with
you, I couldn't give you a goad honest ansver hecausa_
I don't know. It would depend on the evidence and
things that was, you know, prggented te me at that
time, Would I need %o go in with an'open mind, i=
that what you are saying? |

Yes, that's what I'm getting at.
Well, I gueas I'd have to see what the evidence was.

When you say that, do you have in mind the process
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~murder, and if at that point, no further evidence was

that I described, the two stédeﬂ?

J think -~ it's all new to me.-,;-w;gh. Like I say,
the differen;ial between the two things isn't real
¢leaxr, to be honest with you. ‘

Well, let me put it this way. If at the end of the
first trial, if you in your mind, and the jury was
that Mr. Rhines was guilty of premeditated

unanimous,
offered on aggravating circumstances, would you
consider the death penaity at that point?

Y would think so. I mean, you know, if everything
pointed that way and -- I wouid-aav I would, yes.

If you were instructed that yo;;hqd to find beyond a
reasonable doubt that there wég;an aggravating '
circumstance over and above apy-evidance that was
presented at stage cne of the trial, in other words,
more evidence on an aggravating circumstancge, if you
were instructed that you had to find this aggravating
circumstance beyond a reasonable doubt, and no
additional evidance.... -

GROFF: Objection. May we app#cach the bench?
(Side bar discussion was had.)

COURT: I'll sustain -the ehjeétinn_to the form of the

question. . ‘
If at the close of the first‘gﬁage of the trial you
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doubt before you could consider the death penalty,

concluded beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr . Rhineg
was guilty of premeditated murder,.and you were
ingtructed that there was an additional aggravating

czrcumutance that had to be found beyond & reasonable

and in that event would you considor the 'death
penalty, based solely on the premeditated finding
that you had made?

Well, if I was instructed I.haa to £ind, been
presented with enough evidanqe:to convince ne that it

was premediated, I would say'fhat'I ﬁould have to be

convinced that there was, liké‘fou saY...

If you wWere convinced that it_ﬁa# premeditated, would
that be alone enough in your mind to ﬂustify the
death'penalty?

well, if I was instructed at this second trial I had
to be convinced thut it was prgpeditnted, I guess I
don't know how to answexr you raglly;

I'11 try and simplify it a little. Do you think that
the fact that you would :ind'a'murder was
premeditatad that fact in and of itself alone would
cause you to consider imposzng the death penalty?
If it was well planned out and premeditated I would
say, yes. If he said he planned it out and
evarything else and that was his deaire and his aim
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1'd say, yes, and he caxrried it out.

Do you know the aggravating circuﬁstances that we
have talkad about, I haven't'idéntified them for you
as to specifically what thay‘aré, but would you be
able to follow the Court's instructions in that
regard as long as you understéna theﬁ, in other
words, more specifically, if the Court provided you
with definitions of the éggraﬁating circumstances and
they did not include something like planned out as .
you have described it, would you.still lean toward
the death penalty, even if éhat was not included as

an aggravating circumstance in the Court's

instructions?

I guess I don! t see where you. are headed there. I

guess, am I correct in saying thac you are saying if
the inmtructions were not towg;gslthe premeditated '
side and he hadn't planned itléﬁt, would I still aim
towards the death penalty andm;&would say that it |
would depend on other circumstances and other
evidence.

And the Court's instructions?

Right. ‘

Rave fau evar served as a juror before in any other
type of caset? 7

No, sir.
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~ Be you heard about it before?

Had you aver heard the concept.of presumption of
innocence before yasterday?
Well, that was what I thought, everybody in the

United States, that everybody is innocent until

they're prqven‘guilty.

Sure.

As we sit here today, since I have asked you a lot of
qdestiona about the death penalty and you know that
the State has decided to saek_ghe.daath penalty, does
that make you think that maybéjur. Rhines is guilty
since we are so concerned about the death penalty in
this case? S

Not necessarily, because I don't have any idea of the
circumstances. I mean, I guess I'd have to hear all
the svidence and all tﬁe circumstances and make up my
own mind because I don't know anything about Mr,
Rhines or anythinq involved i;'the cage at ajl. I
don't have any idea what's going on orx what happened
and I'd havé to hear evarything anrd weigh everything
out in my own mind and go from“;here.‘

If you had to vote right now:yiyhbut hearing any
evidence, if you had to vote”riéht-now as to whéther

Mr. Rhines was guilty or not guilty, how would you

vote?
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Right now I don't know anything

about it. I mean I

couldn't vote intelligently right now because I don't

know. I want te know more about it.

Would you expect -- do you understand that the

defense does not have to nffqr;any evidence of any'

kind or nature, that it has ﬁé:burdan of' proof or

persuasion, that it can rely‘pﬁ
State has not met its hurden'éf
defense is not obligated at all
forward?'

I didn't realizg that, X guess,
Would you expect the defense to

forward in a criwminal case?

and argue that the
proof, that the

to bring any evidence

no.

bring some evidence

I would expect they'd try to prove the gentleman was

innocent and what he was charged with and everyth{ng

wasn't true.

Tf the defense didn't try to prove that, would you

take that into account and holg

defensae?

that against thg

Well, I think it would be leaving -- I'd be honest

with you, I think it would he;failing.

It would be what?

T would think that the lawyers that he had woulé be

doing a poor job, to be real honeat with you, you

know.
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And if you thought that, would you take that into

That's a hard question. There's too many

could be s0 many variances in there,
you an honest ahswer on it, you knoﬁ.

Would you expect Mr. Rhines himself to take the

witness stand?

must be trying to hide something important, must be

consideration and in how you viewed the evidence at

the close of the case?

cireumatances involved there td_answer a quastion

like that as far‘as I'm concerned. You know, thare
I couldn't give

[
I don't know.

I would gay that's up to hinm and thé lawyer as far

as -~ you know -- I don’'t know that much about this

syatem to make a decision on thﬁt.
If Mr. Rhines didn't take the witness stand,. would
you think from that fact in and of itgelf that he

guilty or he would khave taken thé stand?

I wouldn't'say that would be necessary, you know. A
person -- lot of pecple handle pressure in different

ways. Some people can handle_p;essure and some

people can't. There could be a lot of variance there

toa.

There is going to be sonme evidgnce in this case that
Mr. Rhines is a homosexual and,ﬁne or two of the

withesses that may be called are glso homosexual;.

\
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Do you have any opinions abhout homoaexuals as to
whether that's sinful or a wromg lifestyle or course
of conduct? | .

I guesas a man.or lady hasg to live their own lives the
way they see £it and the way they are directed and
the waj they live it is entirély up to them and so,
you know,lI don't see where that would have any
variance on this case as faf'@i-I'm concerned,

Were you ever in the militafyf

Yes. o

What branch?

Alr Force.

How long?

Four years.

Were you stationed overseas?

No, sir. .

So you didn't see any combat duty or anything like
that?

No, sir, )
How do you feel about presidéniéelect Clinton's plan
to allow homosexuals into the_gfméd services? l .
Well, he's the Commaéaqr In Chief, you know, and I
guess to be real honast with you, I don'f kpow that
much about homosexuals one way'or the other. I

really don't.
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EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

. You get together when you can on holidays and that

80 you deon't have any strong feelings?
No. Like I say, I don't know what they believe or

what they do or how they do,it-br whatever, I Jjust

don't know.

4

You have four qhildren?

Yes, sir. .
They 1llve in the Rapid City aréa?
One daughtarldoes.

The others have moved to other parts of the. country?

Yes, mir.

You keep in close contact with all four of them?

Yes, sir.

sort of thing?

Yes, sir.

In front of you on the witness stand there 1s a paper

that has a list of names of pedble who might he

called as witnesses in this case. cﬂuld‘ybu take a

minute and look that over and ses if any of the names

are fapiliar to you. Have you had a chance to look

at that?

Yes, sir. MNo names that I recognize.

GILBERT: 'Thank you. I appreciate your heneaty in

answering the questionsa.
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gr. Keeney, I have a few quesy;pns before you leave.
Mr. Gilbert was asking you q#eqtion: about evidence
and things like that and you understand that in a
criminal case the burdan is on the State to prove its
case bayond a reasonabl; doubt? '

Yes, air. ‘

And really the burden is on us to produce all the
evidence to convince you of that and the Defendant
doean't have to praduc; any evidence and he can rely
on our inability to prove our case; it's his bhoicé_
whether or not he wants to teﬁtity and if he doesn't
testify that can*t be used nqi%pst him and that's his
right? - - )

Yes, sir.

Can you follow instructions on all thoge areas from
the Court, the jury instructions?

Yeeh, I can.

In South leoﬁa here it is not enough to Just have a
first degree murder in terms ogJimposingrthe death
penalty, not even enough to haéé a pfemaditated
murder we have what are callgd;;qgravating
circumstances that have to h?;ﬁrovan in that second
atage. Po you think you can wg?t_und conaider all
the evidence in the second stage, should you decide

Mr. Rhines is guilty of £irnt'dégree murdexr; can you
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HARRY KEENEY: Yes, sir.

wait until the second stage and consider all the.
evidence than and determine whether or not an
aggravating circumstance has bheen proven beyond a
reasonable doubt and whether ar‘not. saecondly,
whether the death penalty is appropriate? Do you
think you can wait and make that decision then?

I would think se, you know.

Once again, would you follow the Court's instructions
and consider &ll that evidaﬁc?f

Yasa.

GROFF: That's all I have today. . Thank you. Pass

L
for cause.

COURT: All right, Mr. FReeney we will be in touch
with you.' If you don'‘t hear from us by next Tueldny
at noon, I would appreciate ybu'calling the Clerk's
Office to chack on the status of the case and see if
you are still on the final jury list. And it's very
impertant now-that you are still a proapeative jurer
here thaﬁ you not talk to anybody about this case or
alloﬁ.anyone to talk to youjaﬁyuﬁ it or not read or
listen to any media accounts ;bout jt. Can you

promise that you'll do that?
I should call in to check if I

need to check in on any other jury duty or does this

take preference?
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PHE COURT: This takes preference. Just check in next

Tuesday. Could I speak with counsel?

{Side bar discussion was had.)

TEE COURT: Mr. Meier, you were pf@viously sworn and you

are atill undar cath now. Defénse may inquire.

{Proapective Juror JACK MEIER, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY MR. GILBERT:

Q
A

oo 0 » 0O P O DO > O P

State your name so wa have a record.

Jack Meier. _
Mr. Meier, you filled ocut B questionnaire a month ago
and we have had a chance to look at it. You finished
high school in Falkton? '
Yes.

When did you move to this area?

Septenber, 1972. j m;. ‘

Just shortly after you finisneﬁ‘high school?

Yeah, two years.

You have lived here ever since?

I lived in Kearney, Nebraska for a while.

Between '72 and now? '

Yeah, for a year.

When was that?

'80, I think.
Since you filled out the quesﬁibnnaire, have you
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A Yem, Bir.
As you sit here?

That's the first thing when theéy arrest somebody for
it you know the first impreégién I get is that he dig
it,
Q Do you still believe.that anfQu sit here todé??
A Yes. . _‘
Q In other words, you think he's guilty, is that right?
A Yeah., I'm not véry open—-minded about it. '
MR. BUTLER: Challenge for cause. '
MR. GROFF: ©No objecfion.
THE COURT: All right. We will excuse you on this case.
State will call another prospective juror.
Ma'am, you were previous;y.sﬁofn,and yvou do remain

under oath now.

THE COURT: Defense may inquire.

MR. BﬁTyER: Thank you.

{Prospective Juror FRANCES CERSOSIﬁQ, having previously
.been sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTLER:

Q Let's see 1if I can pronouncé Your name.

Cersosimo. |

Your name is Frances Cersosimo?

N = B

Yes.
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 were very interesting and -- I can't believe how

nervous I am.

Miss Cersosimo, I have had the opportunity of
reviewing the guestionnaire that you retu:ned'to the
Court and those have been madé'available to us so we
can hopefully mayﬁe shorten these examinations up.'
Right.

I noticed in the last guestion with respect to
whether or not you thotught you coulﬁ serve as a
juror, you said that you would father explain it in
person than write it out?

Yes.

I am going to give vou that opportunity, okay?

I felt at the time T needed to think about it. When
I was younger I was always fégéinatéd by shows oﬁ v

like Perry Mason and I thoughf the courtroom =cenes

Just take your time. I know'that these are strange
surroundings for you and I understand your
nerﬁdusness, believe me, there is no reason to he.
Anyway I was intrigued by thg‘law but then I had an
opportunity -- not an.opportuﬂity, but ny
brother~in~law was charged wi;ﬁ involuntary'
manslaughter with nmy husband‘é:déatb, sc at that time
I was involved in a courtrodmm;ééne for real and it

was kind of a hard experience‘and vet interesting,
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‘was really surprised and nervous about it but I have

and at the time I felt sorry for some of the people
on the jury because it seemed to be 2o hard on them
and at that time I thought to myself, this is
something I hope I never havertd do. But I put that
to the back of my mind all theée_yéars because it
didn't seem like it was going to be a reality that I

would be called and when I got the summons at first T

had time to think aboﬁt it ﬁnﬁtI think this is
something that I can do. o

2ll right. 1 have read your entire questioﬁnaire_so
I think ; can tie your explanation together. Let me
visit with y&u about =zome of the gquestions I am qoing
to have to ask. I hope yaﬁ understand that T have
got to ask you some questions and some of them might
be a little bit probing, but I have got to do it. IEf
you think I'm asking them just to be nosy, that isn't
the case, Qkay? I -

I undefstand.

I noticed you are a painteré‘h

Yes. 7

A housge painter?

Yes, and I do wallpapering.

Have I met yoﬁ before?

I don't believe so.
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Where were you born? .
Rapid city.

Lived here all your life?

Yes.

Bo you have three children?l

Yes. |

Ana You're divorced?

No, I'm married.

You have three children thaﬁ‘live"here?

Yes.

What deo they do?

The oldest is Nancy and she_ig 23 and she's in her
fourth year as a learning disability assistant. I
have a 21 Year old son on the verge of starting
school at Vo-Tech and I have & 15 year o0ld son that
goes to Ceﬁtral. |

Would you take a look at the list of names bhefore you

 Miss Cersosimo and see if you recognize any of those

names?

I can't say I personally know any of these people.

Couple of the names I recognize ag posaibly law

enforcement cfficers.

How do you recognize them as Eeing law enforcement?
Having lived in Rapid all my life and seeing the

names.

733

APPENDIX 324




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23"

24
25

B

No personal acquaintanceship?
A No.
Q Nothing about any of the names you recognize in this

case that you think would impact on your abllity to

be a fair juror in this case?

. .:____ %

0 When I

Q Do you know, have you geot any acguaintances who are
homoséxual?

o ! 413 fégﬁghter
recently got married.and_it@ﬁhﬁ come ouf.that his
cousin is a homosexual. II ﬂéé:known this for a long
time, just my own observatiéﬁﬁgf-him. And my husband
had him in class at North and we both agreed he
probably was, and knowing my son-in-law's family
background and their thoughts on it, I knew it was

going to be hard for him.
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Do you consider that that lifestyle 1s a sinful or

and there was 3 lot of publicity as far as he was a

immoral lifestyle?

No;

To each his own?

Well, I don't think that we understand completely. I
have come to think that it's_§fobably a genetic thing
that they have no gontrol nvef and they have a righ%
to a life.

I want to explain to‘yau a little bit about the
procedure here, and it is something different than
the procedure experienced before. Mr. Rhines is
charged with firgt degree murder in this case and the
State has elected to reguest the consideration of .the
death penalty. Are you aware of that?

Yesm,

Before I go any furthér, whatf&o vou know about the
case? ' -

I know that a young man that ﬁorked at Dig 'Em Donuts

was stabbed and as a result of the stabbing he died

vary nice yvoung nman and loved by hig family and a lot
of things like that were in thé paper and then I
recall reading some months latér that they had
extradited someone and chargedﬂﬁim.

On the basis of the information that you have
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.acqguired through the news media, have you formed any

jpdgments?
None whatsocever.

Let me go back to where I was. He's been charged
wifh first degree:mﬁrder and the proceedings are
this, if you are seléctéd as a juror in this case you
will, there could possibly be two phases involved.
The first phase would be the determination of guillt
and if you were to determine that Mr. Rhines was
guilty of first deg;ee'murde;ﬁ there would be a
seéond phase at which the 5ur§lwould determine the
appropriate sentence; do you fqllow?

I follow. '

And at that second phase thefe are two options in
South Dakota for first degree murder. One option is
1ife imprisonment without parole, and unlike some
other states, in South Dakota that means what it
says, you serve the rest of your life in prisén, or
the second option is the imposition of the death
penalty; do you follow? | -

I follow.

I'd like to ask your views Sf;the death penalty?

I have always believed in the death penalty.

" Can you elaborate on that fof me? Is that in every

case, every first degree murder?
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‘kind of circumstances would you feel may justify the

Noe, I think it depends on the case,_each individual
case and the person being tried, if there is maybe a
chance for rehabilitation, but taking a life to me is
very serious as well.

I understand that.

If it's possibly premeditated, that would make it
mdre wrong in my eyves.

Let's assume he's convicted pf‘premeditated murder,
would that mean that you felt the death sentence
would be appropriate? |

T can't say at this time, because I don't know
anything vet, and I can't make a logical assumption.
Can I ask you this I know the questions I'm asking
you are rather open-ended and it's difficult to

answer, but take your shot at it, will you? What

death penalty?

Well, if someone had plotted'against someone and
thought it out and it was veijciuel and the person
suffered a great deal and thélﬁérson really had no
remorse.

Any other circumstances come io nind?

To me that would be the worst, I thimk. I would like
to say this is new for me aﬁd T haven't thought about

it, the death penalty seriously other than certain
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circumstances came up, and I théuqht well, it's right
or T trusted that the jury made the right decisien.
But I found in my lifetime and in my experiences what
you think you are going. to do in a given circumsztance
doesn't always happen. So until you get there, you
think you are gbing to do it.

I'm sure if you are selected as a juror that will be
on your mind all the time. You séem fo be a
thoughtful person. Do you feel that you could be a
fair and impartial juror?.

Yes, I do.

Let's assume that vou were to, after heariﬂg all the

evidence, that you concluded after the guilt phase,

_assuming you found the Defeﬁ&ﬁnt guilty of

premeditated murder but concluaed thaf a life
sentence would be appropriaﬁé:fwbuld you stick by
your guns? By that I mesan, would you keep your
opinion and not give in just Bécause you were in the
minority? |

Yes, I would. 1If I think I'm right about it, I'm
very stubborn. _

But you'll listen to other persons?

My husband, he's a black and white person, right or

wrong. With me a lot of thin§§ are in the gray area

and I try to hear both sides éf'every gituation, but
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MR.

if T think I'm right, I'll be stubborn.

BUTLER: Pass for cause.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF: } -

Q

Mr. Butler just asked you about the ~-- kind of the
conversge is what I am going to ask yvyou about, ma'am,
and that is,'just the same as if you thought death
was appropriate. Aftef hearing all the evidence, do
vou think ydu'd just as stubbornly stick to your guns
if you thought that was the{ﬁight decision? '
Oh, yes. |

I need to ask you a couple éﬁ'ﬁdestions about some of
the matters addressed in yoﬁf qﬁestionnaire. We did
shuffling around because we got copies and we didn't
have that back page of it zo we got those and we have
read that. The first thing I want to ask you ébout;
every prosecutor is unigque and I hope I'm unigue in |
the way I put on a case, and you made commenté a
little bit about your views of the ease and hdw Judge
Konenkamp‘did that back in 1976. I'm not necessarily
the same kind of prosecutor aé'Judge Konenkamp was
and can you put that aside, wﬁoji am?

Yes, _ _- S

and I hope I'm not too theatfiﬁal to offend you, but

even if I were, do you think you could decide that

case?
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Yes. I understand this is a different casge, too.
Judge Konenkamp reaa to you on Monday quiteAa long
orientation and towards the end reaffirmed something
he said before and that is something, you need to
decide this case without meié_bias or sympathy. Do
you understand?

Yes..

Here's what I'm concerned about. Because of the
thing you mentioned in 1976, that trial you sét
through, I can imagine the kind of emotions that
might have brought out in you, but you understand
that's over now? .

Yeah. | _

Do you feel any sympathy today, based upon that
experience, for this Defendénffbecause he's on trial
in a murder case? B

No. . .

When we talk about the death penalty we have already
talked a little bit about youf:feelings and some of
the circumstances you were thinking about that might
justify the impositibn; I want to talk to you about
the reality of what is happening here. When you got
the guestionnaire a few weeks back, did you visualize
in your mind that you actually might be here speaking

to us about the gquestionnaire?
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I knew I would be.

You thought you might be coming in?

Oh, yeah. ' _

Well, the same way today, as you think about it,
there is a very real chance thgt you m?gﬁt be on that
jury and yvou might be selected and what I want to '
talk to you about is you wvisualizing inte the future
like you wvisualized coning to Court. I'm not trying
to get any scort of commitment ér pkomise from you
.about what your verdict might be. I just want you to
assume some things and see iffﬁou can visualize
vourself doing them. Can y§uﬁ§isualize vourself
being part of a l1l2-person jury who after hearing the
entire case and after really talking about it,
decided that the verdict of deéth wag appbropriate and
then coming into the courtrobm as part of that group
and facing the Defendant in this case, Mr. Rhines,
and having that %o bé your verdict, that he's golng
to be put to death, can you‘visualizé yourself doing
that? o |
Yes.

I know it's difficult to kiﬁd'af think about for most
pecople. The second ﬁart of that is, I don't know if
this haﬁpened in the case you saw before, but one of

the things that can happen, becausé it has to be a
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unanimous verdict is that every individual can be
polled to determine, is that your‘individuél verdict,
and that could happen as well. In other words, Judge
Konenkamp could ask you, ma'am, i=s this your verdict
putting the Defendan; to death,.and vou'd have to'
respond in front of him, if it were your verdict,
yes, this is my verdicet puttiﬁg you to dgath Mr.
Rhines. Can you visualize yourself doing that?

Yes.

Once again, it would depend onlthe facts and
circumstances?

Yeah.

You don't have any.l.

I would have to be convinced.

I want to talk about convincing now for a minute.
Before I get to that, are there any friends or
relatives out there that you think might kind of get
down on your case if you caﬁéﬁiack with a deéth
verdict in a murder case; somé people that are really
opposed to the death penalty and would say, how could
you ever do that?

I know one lady who says she's very much against the

death penalty.

- Would that have any effect on that?

No, she has the right to her opinion.
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Now, the other thing you learned from that other

experience you went through and you heard again on

Monday from Judge Konenkamp was proof in any case,

whether a b.W.I. case or‘somafsort of a theft case.'
the case you sat and listengd‘to or a murder case,
the proof has always got to be,Beyond a reagonable
doubt? ’

Yes.

And{as we get to this case, which probably is the
most serious anyone could ever sit on, the standard

of proof doesn't change., it's still proof beyond a

reasonable doubt, and not proof to an absolute

‘certainty or perfection. Do you understand?

Yes.

Just becausg it’'s.a very serioﬁé case and I know you
are taking it seriously, dogfdﬁ think you'd make the
State prove!its cage to a bufden not reguired by law,
which would be an absolute cértainty or would you
keep the burden where it's always been to proof
beyond a reasonable doubt?

This is a very serious case aﬁd I would have to be
very convinced that what th;s ﬁan ig being charged
with that he 4id do it, excepflI doﬁ't know how far
you think I have to take it:“iﬁ my.mindlto be

convinced ~~ beyond a reasonable doubt or an
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MR.

THE

absoiute, I don't know,

In Iayman;s terns, 4o you expéét a perfect case froﬁ
me? | o

From you?

I'm going to present the case, do you expect a
perfect case? .

I don't know what a,peffect case is.

I don't know either. |

No, I don't expect it.

You need to be convinced thdugﬁ?

Yes. |

Would you deo your best to foliqw the Court's
instructions? . o

Yes, I would.

GROFF: I'11 pass for cause. Thank you.

COURT: Let me remind you that you are now a
prospective juror on fhe vase and you remain. such.
We will hotify you probab1y within a week or so if
you made the final jury panel. It is very important
in the meantime that you not discuss the cese with
anyone or let anyone discuss i£'with vou and also
‘that you not listen to or watch'any media accoﬁnts

concerning this case. Will ydﬁ promise me you'll not

do so?

FRANCES CERSOSIMO: Yes.
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THE COﬁRT: If we are unable to reach you for some
reaszon, if you haven't heard from us by next Tuesday
at noon, call the Clerk's Offiée to chegk in to make
sure we are still staying in touch with youu. Thank
you, very much. _

We will continue jury examination at 1:00 o'clock.

(A recess was had from 12:00 o'clock to 1:00 o'clock.)

THE COURT: St;te may exerbise. 'State has exercised its
éeventh pberenptory challenﬁe. "The Clerk may bring in
another prospective Jjureor. You were previously éworn‘
so you still remain under oat#.

{Prospective Juror DONITA HALEY, having previously been
gworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATIQN BY MR. STONEFIELD:

o] Good afternoon.

A Hi.

Q Tell ug your name.

A Donita Haley. | _

Q You end I are acquainted*thrcggh your friendship with
a couple of people who work in the same office that I|
do?

A Yes.

Q . This is Mr. Butler and this is Mr. Rhines and Mr.

Gilbert and you understand why you are ﬁp here today?

A Yes.
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Q You don't think you could presume the Defendant to be
innocent?

a No, I don't.

MR. GROFF: No objection.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma‘'am. We wiil excuse you. Clerk
may call another prospective juror. Mr. Corrin, you
were previdusly sworn in, &o you remain under ocath at
this time?

A Okay.

o} Defense may inqguire.

T e

& ot e
N e T T v e

EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTLER:

Q@ °~ Your name is Robert Corrin?

A Correct.

0 Mr. Corrin, I'm Joe Butler and I'm one of the
attorneys representing Charlgs'Rhines the Defendant,
and associéted with me is Mr. Wayne Gilbert and Mr.
Mike Stonefield and that's Mr. Dennis Groff. Tell me
a little bit about yourself, ﬁhere were you born?

A I was ﬁorn in San bDiego, California. My father was
in the Navy and I moved herélwﬂen I was two and lived
here evér since. I'm married and have two kids and
work at Chemlawn, lawn service, and I have been

working there for three years.
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Were you majoring in any specific area?

‘No, I haven't.

I noticed vou went to the School of Mines?

Yes, two years.

Computer Science.

Are you applying what you 1earﬁed ndw or is it a
completely different field?

We work on computers, but itﬂéia different fieid.
Do.you have-any broéhers or sisters?

One brother he lives here in town,

Mr. Corrin, would‘you take a look at that list of
names(in front of you there and see if you recognize
any of those names?

No, I don't..

Those people are. potential witnessses. Ha#e you ever

served on a jury before?

Have you ever besn invelved with law enforcement, I'm
not ﬁalking about spéeding tickets, but ever cha;ged
with a crime or you or any memﬁer of yvour family?
No. |

Mr. Corrin, you understahd the nature of this case,
don't you, that Mr. Rhines is on trial for first
degree murder?

Right.

SIS S
en
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What impact does that have.on you and your perception
of Mr. Rhines?

¥Wot really any. He has the same rights as everyhody
else does. . .

Even you recognizé that it is a different iifestyle
then yours, but nevertheless hg:has his right to live
his own 1ifé? |

Right, and that wés his choice:

Are you a member of amny church?

PeacerLutheran Church.

Are vou a regul&r churchgoer?

Yeah. |

You and your family?

Right.

Mr. Corrin, this case involves the death penalty or
what sometimes is called capital punishment, do you
understand that?

Yes.

When did you first find out that it involved capital

punishment?

Not until T got the survey in the mail.
814
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That's when you figured that out?

.How much have you heard about this case?

Do you recall seeing anything or hearing anything on

" Phat's good.

Yes.

I haven't really heard anything otﬁer than probably
the most information I got from it was from the
survey and the information in the survey is about all
I know about the case. .

Do you remember reading about it iﬁ the paper?

If I did read anything in the paper about it, I don't

recall anything that I read.

the TV?

No. Since I received the survey I have avoided
watc¢hing TV when that's on or feadipg anything in the
paper about that.

After you got the survey?

I did.

That indicates that you are comscientious.

Yeah.

That you déliberately avoided trying to find out
about anything?

Right.
This fype of proceeding is a 1ittle bit differept

than the ordinary criminal proceeding, because of the
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possibility of cepital punishment. It's really-qoing
to involve two phases. fhe fifst phasge is the
determination of guilt, that“is, whether or not Mr.
Rhines is guilty of first degree murder. Then the
jury in the second phase, if if determines that Mr.
Rhines is guilty of first degree murdexr, s8its in
judgment as to the punishment, and at that point, the
second point, there really'are two alternatives that
the jury has. One alternative is life inprisonment
without parble and that means in South Dakota just
what it sounds. like, that is, he would have to spend

the rest of his 1life in jail without the possibility

" of parole. And of course, tﬁéisecond alternative is

the imposition of the death penalty; do you .
understand that?

Yes,.

Now, from what I can understéna about you, ever since
you found that out, I bet you have been doing some
thinking, haven't you?

Yeah. |

What are your views of the death penalty at this
time? . . | '

If the evidence showed that hgfwas guilty beyond a
reasonablé doubt, I could enforce the death ﬁenalty,

but the evidence would have to be clear.

1
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‘have to come into play there, if it was unusual and

Let's assume that the evidencelprOVes premeditated
murder, let's just assume that,; would you think then
that the death sentence should automatically follow? .
Wot automatically.

Can you explain that? I know I'm asking some hard
gquestions, but I hope you understand that we have to
ask them and T hopé'jou‘ll be as candid and
explanatorf as you can?

Could you repeat the questiop?

If you found, let's assume at'ﬁhe end of the firs;
phase that the jury determiﬁéd.that the State had
proved premeditated murder,'beyond.a reasonable
doubt, do you got that?

Uhm-uhm.

Would you feel that the death sentence would
automatically ccmé into play?

No, I think the way the murder was committed would

real cruel in any way, that wQﬁld have to be taken

into consideration.

Would that in and of itself dictate or mandate the

death sentence, in your mind? .
It's really hard to say. I'd,ﬁave to hear all the

evidence and really consider exactly what happened to

come to a conclusion.
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Well, the case here recently with the hanging, the

Off the top of your head can you think of some cases

which, in your mind, would undoubtedly mandate the

death penalty?

littie boy, Ilfelt the death penalty was called for
there.

The one in Washingtun?

Right.

I believe there were three involved?

Right. | '

Sir, the Defendant stated that if you 1ef me out I'1l
do it again?
Right.>
That's one illustration. Can you think of any
others? o

I'm not'sure of the case but ﬁhere there was serial
xilling where they have killed and killed again, im
that case I feel the death §ena1ty would be c¢alled
for. _ “

Do you think you'd want fo hea¥ about if 1t reached
that phase, here about the Defendant's background and
his family and so forth and héw he was raised;‘would
you want to know about the Defendant as a person?
Yeah, I would.

Is this a fair statement that you don't necessarily
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favor the death penalty in all premeditated murder
wases; is that a fair statemént?

Yes.

Lef's assume that you ére selected as a juror and
that you come to the_first phase and you make the
determination that the Defendant is guilty of murdex
and at the second phase, after hearing all the
evidence in both phases, you come to the conclusion
that the appropriate sentence is life imprisonment
without parole. Let's éssumé-that, and after all the
discussion, you are the only‘dne who believes that
and the other 11 believe that it should be death,
would you be willing to stiékﬂﬂy your guns?

Yeg, if I came to that conclusion and that's the way
I believed, I would stick to my guns and stéy with
that decision.

I know that under the circumstances of this case and
the system, is there anything that I haven't asked
vyou about, Mr. Corrin, that yoﬁ feel migﬁt render it
difficult or impossible for you torsit as a fair and
inmpartial juror? o

No, I think I copld do a good job.

Let's assume, do you have anj‘iear at the present

time that whatever your decisigh might be, even

though some of your friends orﬂyour wife or somebody
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elge might disagree with it, that you wouldn't be
afraid to face up with your decision with everybody?
Neo, I'm sure I could.

How old aré you?

30.

Pass for cause.

THE COURT: State may inquire.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

T o 0

I just have a few questions of ‘you today. I ddn't
think we have met and I'm Dennis-Groff. I'm your
State's Attorney and Mr. Miller, as you were coming
in -- did you used to be neighbors on Downing Street?
T lived on Downing, but I don't remember him thoﬁgh,
It's okay. He's out of the neighborhood now?

That's where my mom and dad live.

T need to talk to you a little bit today about the
death penalty. Mr. Butler explained a little bit
about this procedure and how we get to that death
penalty stage. D§ you unders;and?

Yes. o

T want to clarify a couple of things. Assuming you
find Mr., Rhines guilty of firéf degree murder, then
you'd go to that second pﬁaae we would be talking
about and as State's Attorney what I'd be attempting

to prove to you in the second phase would ke one orvr
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more ﬁggravating circumstances that make this case a

special murder case; do you understand?

Uhm-uhm,

Those are circumstances that are basically enacted by

our legislature; do you understand?

Yes.

Not 8ll murder cases if there is a conviction,
justify impositiong of the death penalty; do you
understand?

Yes,

I would be attempting to ?fove one or more
aggravating circumstances that would permit you
impose the death penalty. Doﬁﬁou see what I'm
saying?

Right.

Now, if you got te that pﬁinﬁ;a&o you ﬁhink you
follow the Court's instructions concerning what
other aggravating circumstances might be on
imposition of the death penalty?

feah.

Do you think you could follow the Court's

to

could

those

instructions even if you didn't necessarily agree

those were aggravating circumstances?

3r

‘T could follow the Court's instructions, veah.

And then of course even if you did f£ind an

821

APPENDIX 347




10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

L I - T . T O T U Y

But you did get called in?

aggravating circumstance or more, if you were still
looking at all the evidehce and deciding it was
appropriate to give a life sentence, you wouldn't
have to give the death sentence, do you understand?
Yeah.

When you got the guestionnaire, ohviously ¥you stopped
listening to anything about thé case. Did you have
an idea that you might éctually be called in?

Well, no, just to £ill out théfquestionnaire and get

called in for the case, other than that.

Yeah.

You have been.here for qﬁite'sometime, I know.'

I want to aék you the same so#é of gquestion. Now
that you have been called in, there is a very real
possgibility 'that you might be on this jury, and I'm
wondering now that you have thought a little bit
about the death.penalty, I wanf to have you see iﬁ
you can visﬁalize what that might be like. Assunming
that you did £ind Mr. Rhines guilty of first dagree
murder and. you went through the entire sentencing
phase process and you were convinced that the death
penalty was the appropriate sentence, at some point
in time i1f you were on that jufy yéu'd ¢come back with

the other 11 jurors and you'd face the Court and Mr.
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‘Rhines and that verdiét would be read, that verdict

imposing Aeath upon him. Can yvou visualize yourself

being part of such a jury returning that type.of

'verdict? _

Yeah.

One othexr question along those lines and that is,

that jury could be c¢alled upon. individually, one by

~ one, to announce whether or not they agree with that

verdict, whether that is tﬁeir unanimous verdict. If
you were called upon, do you thiﬁk you could
visualize youfself facing the Judge'or Mr. Rhines and
sayihg. yes, I have considered all thé evidence and
that's my verdict, to put you to death? Do you think
you could do that? |
Yeah, after reviewing the evidence if that's the
decision I come te I would sﬁaﬁd behind it.

And no matter what vour decision was, would you
congider .the views of the oﬁhéfrjﬁrdrs aé you £ried
to come to the right decisioﬁ?T I think the Court
would instruc£ you that you afe'to make up your own
indiﬁidual decision as you voté,_bﬁt in so doing you
are to at least consider the views of the othef
jurors a8 you reach the decision; and would you try
to do that? ' .

I'd consider their opinions, but once I came to my
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MR.

THE

THE

MR .

THE

ROBERT CORRIN: VYes, I will.

THE

_at noon, call next Tuesday at noon to check in. You

decision I'd stand behind it.
Pass for cause.
BUTLER: I have omne more question.

COURT: I'll permit you that.
(By Mr. Butler:) I . want you to think about this.

Which type of sentence do you consider to be more
severe, life imprisonment without parcle oxr the death
penalty?

The death penalty.

COURT: Mr. Groff, any further guestions in view of
that? '

GROFF: None.

COURT: Sir, you remain a prospective juror in this

cage. If you have not heard'ftém us by next Tuesday

are not to discuss this case with anyone nor allow
anyone to discuss it with you or let anyone diséuss_
it in your presence, and as always, you are not to
read or watch or listen to any media accounts
concerning this case., Can you promise me you'll do

that? I know you have done it in the past?
COURT: 'Thank you. Defense may exercise.

The record will show that the,defense has exercised

ite peremptory number eight and the Clerk will summon
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Q@ My name is Mike Stonefield and . I'm one of the

in another prospécti?e juror.:'Hiss Tree Top, you
have previously beeﬁ sworn in and you remaiﬁ under
oath now. Defense may inquire.

(Prospective Juror VERA TREE TQP, having previously been
sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION'ﬁY MR. STONEFIELD:

Q Good afternobn, ma'sam. Your name ls Vera Tree Top?

A Yes, it 'is.

attorneys that's representing_gharles Rhines who is
the man seated in the middle of the table here and
this is Mr. Gilbert ana Mr. Butler, the other
attorneys involved in this case. I assume that from
the orientation the other day-that vyou understand why
you're here now? |

A Yes, I do.

Q . You understand what the procedure is gbout and what
the éharge is in this case?-"

A Yes.

o Let me ask you, first of ali{ﬁdblfou have any
knpwledge of Mr. Rhines, othér‘than what you might

have read or heard in the media?

A Ne, I den't.

@ Did you know Donnivan Schaeffer or do you have any

knowledge of his family?
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THE

objected to earlier, with ré;gect to Karl Bachman.
This peremptory challenge just exercised is as to
FKelli Hagemann who was an individval that £2lls inte
that same class'of consciénable persons'as Karl
Bachman, the persoﬁs that have personal or moral
reservatioﬁs about the death penalty and also as well
as all the grounds urged at the .time that the
objection was made with respect to EKarl Bachman.

COURT: I will consider the arguments you made at

- that time in connection with your objectien at this

time and your obiection is overruled, and the State's

exercise of Kelli Hagemann ﬁiii'stand..

The Clerk will call another prospective juror. Mr.
Walton, thank you for your pafiénce. We previously

had you swern in and you still remain under ocath at

this time.

BOBBY WALTON: COkay.

THE

COURT: Defense may inquire.'

{Prospective Juror BOBBY WALTON, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTLER:

0
A

i

You are Bobby Charles Walton? .

Yes, sir.

I'm Joe Butler and I'm one of'the attorneys for the

Defendant, Mr Rhines and associated with me is Mr.
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'Tell me where you were born Sﬁa'just generally what

Wayne Gilhert, another attorney representing Mr.
Rhines &nd Mike Stonefield, alsc an attorney
associated with rvepresenting Mr. Rhines,

Okay.

Mr.‘Walton, I have had a chancé to read your
questionﬁaire that you returnéd to the Court:; do you
remember completing that? '

Yes.

80 there are some things I know about you from the
questionnaire and it isn't becﬁﬁse I had a private
eye out checking on you. Now, let me £ind out a
little about you. You live here in Rapid City and
You have lived here for about seven years?

Yes. I was stationed here in Ehe Air Force and just

got out recently.

happened up to the present time?

I was born in Chicago, Illincis, and I'm 41 years
old, . I moved around a lot with my parents in my
early years and so I went to ﬁ#rious schools around
the City of Chicage. I graduated in 197b from
Farigu£ High School and attended college for a yeaﬁ
and a half in a small Ffarming area 70 or 80 miles
northwest of Chicage. After a year and a half

attending school, funds ~- I didn't have the money to
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. settled and everything she decided she wanted to

continue school, so my father talked me into joining
the Air Force and I stayed in for a few years, basic,
minimum of four years and gcﬁ;éent overseas and had a
good time and came back to the States and put in a
couple more years and it just hit me, well, it hasn't
been too bad a tour and I stayed on for another touf
and 20 yeérs added up and I was stationed here in
September of 1985, and at that time I was still
married and just served my country here and did what
I had to do and as I was winding down near éo Years I
talked it over with the wife; where did she want to
retire at; did she want to goibaéﬁ,to a place where
we had been and she liked the area here and we
decided to stay here. So, T started looking at

buying a home here and everything and once that got

leave, 80 I'm still here and she's gone.

Did you buy the home?

Yeah, I was already in the process of getting it and
everything when she decided to leave.

Now you are going back to school?

Yeah. I'm using my 6I Bill riﬁht now and trying to
get my degree in business. fh;bughoﬁt my careér I
have been taking college couré%s, but being in the

military you have one foous té‘ﬂo a jdb there, so
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it's hard to take a lot of classes at that time. 8o

during the course of the 20 years I &did ﬁccumulate'a

-lot of hours and that one year and a half I did

attend school in Illinois and that helped a lot too.
Sc I'm down to needing 24 moreléemester hours to get
ny degree in busginess.

What did you do in the servicé, Mr. Walton?

pid various:jobs. Actually, my main job was
munitions specialisf. We took . care of building up
bombs and missles and so forth and I had a ﬁqur of
duty as an instructor for the ﬁilitary as my career
field teaching new recruits.

What does vour dad do, any particular otcupation?
ﬁell, when I think back 40 years what I did
originally when he first movedtto Chicage where ﬁe
was ‘born he worked &s a cook'éna as a car wash guy
and the biggest thing he did for most of ny
upbringing is he was a constfﬁ?fion worker.

Do you have brothers and sistéfs?

No, sir. L

You are the only chilg?

Yes.

Mr. Walton, ¥ want you to take a look at that list of
names on the desk ahead of you. Those people may be

witnesses in this trial. Would you read that and
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tell me if there sre any on the list who vou know?
A There is nobody on this list that I recognize.
Q Let me ask you'this §enera1 guestion. Is fhere —-- I
don't want to go into any mofé specifics if your

answer is yes, but have you qf any member of vour

immediate family ever been involved with the law?

Lo O ~ I

Do you have any feelings towards someone with respect
to this right, has a right to purgue their own

lifestyle?

E]

! - S o

Q You are not a member of any organized church?
A )

No, sir.
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Do you believe in God?

Yes, I do.

But you don’'t belong to any organized religion as
such?

No. During my upbringing I went to church regularly
as a kid.

Your mother insisted on thaﬁ?

My fathef-insisted on it, beéauée his father was
actually a pastor, you know, bpt once I guess T
joined the military, I got aﬁ;;'from it a bit.

You are going to school. and whét are the courses or
gubjects that you are'intereséed.in?

Well, T like science a lot, but because I'm pursuing
2 business degree, I have been taking 1like a&counting
classes and business management classes, so that's ny
focus right now.

Do you intend on geing further on to school after you
get your Bachelor's Degree? |

I haven't made that decision as off vet. People talk
to me say because I have my GiﬁBill you might as well
continue to uaeAit because fﬁﬁ\hre getting paid,
however, you know, I'm not gettinq_as much money aﬁ I
used to when I'‘was active duifﬁi dnée I get that
degree I might as well get th;£ job and press 6n with

my life.
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.determinas guilt‘or innccence and the Judge fixes the

' withodt parcle, and that means just what it says,

'gat out; do you understand that?

That's an alternative you haven't dealt with yet?
Exactly. One step at a time. Get that‘first degree
and pﬁr;ue maybe 8 Masters. I don't know vet.

Now, Mr. Walton, thig trial isg a little bit ﬁifferent
than most in that usually in most criminal

proceedings the Judge fixes the sentence. The Jury

sertence. In this Bituation, because the State has
elected to ask for the death penslty, we have a
little different situation here. This trial will be
in two phases. The first phase, called phase one
will be the determination of whethar or not Mr.
Rhines is guilty of murder in the first degree; do
you understand?

Yes.

Then if the jury determines that he is guilty of
murder in the first degree, éﬁén You get to the
second phase and that is the determination of
punishment. And with respedf Eb mufder in the‘first-
degree and in South Dakota there are only two

alternatives for sentencing; ohe, life inprisonment
life imprisonment for the rest of your life; can't

I understand.
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"Well, ever since the first day we were here, the

It's a little différent in Soufh Dakota than some
other states. The second altefnative is death and
that means what that says, sofif'you are selected as
a juror and you have to go..i:ﬁant you to think about
this in the aspect of having ﬁo go through both .
phases, at least at this poinﬁ while I'n visiting
with you. I'dzlike to ask you abbut your views on

the death penalty?

Judge told us tao think about that and I have bsen
trying to give that some thought. I take a lot into
consideration in how we wiliigéé 6ther cerimes
througheut the nation deﬁling with the death pehalty,
vyou know. I think back to ﬁﬁé.hﬁnay trial and the
cne recently in Washington théy just had, and I look
at the nature of the crime thaﬁ the persbn has
committed, you know; was he insane at the time hé
committed the act; was he of sound mind; &id he know
what he was doing; what provoked him to fake another
person's life. I look at so mény variables and like
I zay, I don't knéw this pefson, and T don't know
what drove him to do that. If;i was selected I'd
have to hear everything invoivéﬁ. I look at it this
way, if a person takes anothe:;persoﬁﬂs 1ife and he

knew what he was doing, okay, then I would say, yes,
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he deserved to be punished thé'same.

Let me just pursue that a 1itﬁ1e bit. If wvou were to
£ind that he was guilty of premeditated murder, would
you think he should receive the death penalty?

Yeah, I would say so.

That one would follow the other?

Yeah, if he was of sound mind and he kmew what he was
doing, I would say yeah, be&éﬁse again, there is a
lot uf variables and I can’'t judge the person xight
now. - :

Let me explore this a little bhit. I know we will be
somewhat general here, but ﬁduid you say that
everyone who is gullty of premeditated murder should
be sent to the electric chair or death?

No. We can take a lot into cohsideration agﬁin such
a8. 8ay there was a ten year old boy and he happe#ed
to stumble'upén his father'g gun and he may watch a
lot of westerns and gangster ﬁ§#ies and he goes out
and plays with his friends and he's got this gun and
it's loaded, and we will say hg actually pulls a
trigger and kills a kid, should we go ahead and kill
him, put him to death. No. _Tﬁére are sSo many
variables that we have to take into consideration.

He did not know what he was doing or what the nsture

‘of a ldaded gun is or to play_ﬁith one.
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a8 & fact that the murder was premeditated, do you

The situation that fou just illustrated there would
not be premeditatéd murder.‘
Right.

I am going to deal with a situation where we accept

think then that the death penaltf should

automatically follow?

I don't know -- no -~ yeah, lLike I say, You itake &
rerson like Dahl or Bundy tﬁat committed many
murdaers, they knew and it was senseless on what they
did to the number of wvictims, sd if you do it once, I
don't know, it's hard to say if you just_kiil one
person, you don't deserve to bé killed in return.

You don't belie#e an eye. for aﬁ eye or a tooth for a
tooth? '

No, T do not.

If the death sentence could bring back the person who

was killed, of course, we would all vote for the

death sentence?
Of course, but you know that's not going to happen.
I'm sure you have done a lot of thinking about it and
if fuu are selected as a jurﬁr.in this case yoﬁ'll do
a lot more? ' | '

Oh sure.

And you'll give it your bestgéﬂut?
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Definitely.

Mr. Stonefield called my atﬁenfion to one other
thing. Do yvou have anj knowledge about the case?
Very little. Just recenfly it's been on TV that they
caught the person I believe in Seattle, and that's
about it. At the time that it happened I was going
through my trauma of divorce, so I wasn't reading the
paper or wﬁtching T™, I wasn't keeping up with
nothing. I don't know toc much about this at all,
Anything you heard you could certainly vast daside and
rely solely on_what you hear in this courtroom to
make your decision? . _ 7

Definitely. During the nature of my job in the
nilitary, we alﬁays have what we call two sides to a
gtory and I have dealt with a lot of people during my
zolyears and I don't always take that first opinion.
T always get nore input ‘about a deéision I would have
to make in my Jjob Ilhad.

Were you an athlete?

I played basketball: weight lifting. I love weight

1ifting. I just went there last night.

MR. BUTLER: I could tell that.
THE COURT: State may ingquire.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q Good afternoon, sir. I'm Dennis Groff and I'm the
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Stéte's Attorney in this case, sir and I just need to
ask you a few questions about the.death penalty issue
if I may. And I want you to realize that if I am
being redundant and repeat somé'things that Mr.
Butler d4id, I'm sorry. This is the last and only-
chance I'11 have a chance to ﬁa1k to fou about the
case. In other words, once you are selected we won't
have any time either to discuss these issues anymore.
It is my uhderstandiﬁg that ffpm talking with Mx.
Butler now that you are aware that this trial could
have two stages?

Right.

First stage, guilt or imnnocence, deciding whether ar
not he's guilty of firsgt degreé.murder or not; do you
understand that?

Yes.

Assuming that you would do thgt, then you'd come back
for a second stage of the prbééedings where you might
hear more evidence and more‘agéument concerning what
the penalties should be. Now;las State's Attorney
what I would be attempting to prove to you in that
second stage is an aggravating circumstance. In
other words, under our law, not every first Qegree

murder is one that justifies the death penalty; do

you understand?
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~ Since all 12 would have to éérée, of course your

"understand that?

-During the course of your 1ife and work in the’

Sure do.

Our legislature has set forthfapproximataly ten
aggravating circumstances which; if you find at least
one you could impose the death penalty, if after
cohsideiation of that aggravating circumstance you
found, and all the other evidence was in in the case
you thought it was appropriate. You wouldn't have to
but you could; de you understand?

Right.

Now, if you were to be on this jury before you could
return any such verdict, you would have to be
unanimous in your verdict, allh12 would have to
agree; do you understand? e ‘

Yes.

individual vote would be very important; do you

Yes.

That's the reason I'm talking to you about this now.

military, have you discussed the death penalty on
very many occasions with peoplé?

e

Ne.

Prigor to Monday, when you said you gave it a lot of

thought up to today, had you given it much thought at
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alil?

Yeah, I have. The reason why is because of the
recent executioﬁ of Dahl or Dower in Washington. I
thought about that and in a way it was to me it was
sort of sickeniﬁg to watch the demonstrations outside
of the prison that night. Some people cheering for
his execution, which is childish, in my opinion.

And just so I'm clear on this, you would do your best
if you got to that second stégé-cf the trial to
follow the Court‘s.instructio#s on what the law is in
deciding the case? o

Right,

Likewise, if the Court instruéted ¥ou concerning

these aggravating circumstances that you might

consider éﬂém;;;;“that would have to be proven beyond-
a reasonable doubt before you could impose the death
panalty, would you follow the law as to what they
were, even if you disagreed with fhem?

Well, being military we had ;:groﬁp'of checklists we
had to follow to get to the.ﬁa%t stage of any job and
of course we are to uphold thééé\standards andfif |
that's the law of South Dakota:to say, okay, thi§
meets this and this meets that, then the ﬁext thing
is whatever.

And I am going to go into this a little more
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killed and his name was Donnivan Schaeffer?

- —— ey

specificaily. You-were talking about the Bundy case
in Floridas and Dahlimer, -and yoﬁ know in this case the
Defendant on trial is Mr. Rhines and I think you
learﬁed that Monday and I ¢oh't recall but, you have

been informed that there was a person allegedly

Right.

And so we are dealing literaliy with one person and
not a series of victims; do you understand?

Sure do.

And all X'm asking is, do you think you could
consider imposing the dsath penalty where we are
dealing with just a single vicfim, dependiﬁg on the
circumstances? -

Yeah, if the evidence all shbﬁéd clearly that the guy
was, you know... ﬁ |

I understand. Now, I want é&ﬁlﬁlk to you a fTew
minutes about the realty, the possibility of the
situation. Specifically, when you got veour
guestionnaire that you filléd out for us that we have
been working from, did you think in your mind, I'1ll
bet I'1l1 be going to Court ang I possibly will be a
juror on this case?’ Did'yoﬁ‘tﬁink about that?

Yeg, I thought.about that, yop:know. I usually have

bad luck, you know, sometimés,‘,l said, well, here's
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something else I have got to do.

This might be bad luck? |

Yeah.

Well, I'm not sure what you'd think abeut the luck as

being picked as a juror, but that could happen in

‘this case; do you understand that?

Yes. .
If you were picked as a juror, thinking about this
courtroém and the Judge and_the Defendant where he's
seated right now and specifically those empty chairs
right over thers, do yvou see'them?

Yesa, I do. ;

That's where the jury will ﬁfobably sit if we try
this ecase in this courtryoom, and I just want you to
agssume for a minute that you have geone through the
proceeding and you got through that first stage and
you have gone fhfough the second stage aﬁd now you
aée a member of that juryrgnd you have decided as a
group, as a jury, that the apprbpriate verdict in
this case is to put Mr, Rhines.to death. Are you

with me so far?

\

Yes, I am.

As you think about it today, can you visualize
yourself coming back with such a jury and facing Mr.

Rhines and presentind that verdict to the Judge, a
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verdict of death: can you Visualiie yourself doing
that, depeqd;ng on the facts and the evidence?

Right; yeah. |

I ha%e to carry it one step further, sir, because as
I s;id, this will be in effect, even though it's =
jury coming back, it will be5your individual verdiot;
do you understand, ybur decision -— and.you may be
asked aftef that verdict is ;éad. whether or not that
is your individual decision it's what we call polling
the jury. Can you visualize yourself, if wou are
pplled apd they call out your hame, can you visualize
yourself saying, yes, that's nmy verdiet, putting this
Defendant to death, depending on the facts and
circumsfances of the case; can vou do that?

Sure can. !

Is there anyone, in terms of friends or :amily,
acquaintances who might givé-ysu a hard time if you

were to return a death verdict in a murder cage?

-

No one., .
That's not something that woul& be on your mind?
Vo,

The last thing I want to ask fou abouf, Judge
Konenkamyp in Couft the othex day was reading somne
orientation instructions to you, d¢ you rememﬁer that

took about 15 or 20 minutes?
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Yes.

During that discussion he told you about the concept
of reasonable doubt, do you remgmeber that ana you
have heard of that concept, réasonable doubté_

Ch, yeﬁ. .

And that is the standard for proof that the State has
to prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt; do you
understand? |

Uhﬁ—uhm. Sure do.

Lagt thing I want te go into with you is this, and
that is, just because this is a serious case, do you
think you'd make the State prove its case, not to
what is required, which is pfbbf bmyond:a reasonable
doubt, but to a much higher géﬁndard, which is'not
regquired, which is an absoluté&certainty; woula ¥you
force the State to do something the law didn't
reguire? . h

That the law required?

The law requires proof beyond a reasonable doubt.
Right.

Which is not proof to an absolute certainty or
peffection. If you heard Ju&ée Konenkanp, that's
what he told you the other day, which would require
the case to bhe proven to a E;;;onable doust or. would

you regquire & higher standard of proof a standard to
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THE

an absolute certainty?

in othér words, bavond a.reasonahle doubt, is what
you are saving? .

Yeah.

Yeah, that would clear it up a hundred perceﬁt for
me, yeah I could do that. '

Yaou could follow the COurt‘S instructions instead of
trying to put a higher.burdénpbf proof because thig
is a serious case, is that whEi you are teliling us?
Yeah. o

GROFF: That's all the questions I have. Thank you.
Pass for cause. |

COURT: Mr. Walton, you remain a prospective Juror on
this case and we will be in touch with you to let you
know when it's time for you to come back. If you do
not hear from us, for examplé, if we try to reach you
and have been unsuccessful, we would ask that you
c¢all us, and if you haven't.heard from us hext
Tuesday to check in with us;ffglsé, it's extremely
importﬁnt that you not discuééﬁihis case with anyons
or allow anyone else to discuss the case with you noxr
in your presence, and also it is very, very important
that you not lisgten to or read or watch any mnedia
accounts about‘this case, Can you promise me that

you'll net do these thipngs?
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BOBBY WALTON: Yes, sir., Right now I'm:a single person
and =11 I do right now is‘read.for échool, study and
stuff sc I watch very little TV.- Now or then I rent
a movie for my VCR. _

THE COURT: Very good. We will-bglin touch with Y§u.
Thank you. Let's take a ten minute recess,

(A recess was had from 2:55 to 3{15.}

THE COURT: Defense may exercise. lDefense has exercised
.its third peremptory and we will call another -
prospective juror. 8iy, thank you for your patience.
You have previouslf been sworn and you remain underxr
cath right now. Defense may inguire.

(Prospective Juror DALE LANDIS,'haQing previously been
sworn, testified as follows:).”

EXAMINATION BY MR. STONEFIELD:

Q Godd afterncon, sir. Your némg is Dale Landis?

A Yes. | ._.

Q Mr. Landis, I'm Mike Stonefiéid and I'm one of the
attorneys representing Mr. Rhines, the Defendant.
This is Mr. ﬂutler and Mr. Gilbeft and Mr. Rhines is
the gentleman seated here, and we are representing.
You were here a couple days ago during the ‘
orientation process?

A Yes. '

o] You understand what we are doing here today theh?
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EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTLER:

THE COURT: I think we hetter exduse you on this case,
Laura.

LAURA LAUGHLIN: Thank you, sir. Niée seeing vou again.

THE DEFENDANT: Could we have a short break?

THE COURT: lLst's take & ten minute recess,

(At which time a recess was takenlfrom 10:40 to 10:55.)

THE COURT: The Clerk will call in £he next prospective
juror. The next one on your Iist igﬁMr.‘Dial and we
agreed to excuse him. Heé was the fellow that had the
jdh‘iﬁ Colorado and we agreed to excuse 80 we are
skipping over him and going to Miss Anderson. We
previously swore yvyou in last week, S0 you remain
inder oath now for these guestions. Defense may
inguire. | |

{(Prospective Juror MARTHA ANDEREON, having previously

been sworn, testifie& as followa:)

Q  I'm Joe Bulter and I'm one of the attorneys
. representing the Defendant Mr:iﬁhines who I'm
pointing to and with me is Mf.ﬁﬁéyne Gilbert and Mr.
Mike Stonefield and that's Mrl 5éﬂnis Groff, the
State's Attorney.‘ Mrs. Ande;géﬁ.wé‘ve had the
opportuinty to review the queétionnaire that yeou
complated and sent back to the Court, 20 I know a

little bit about yoﬁ, however, I would like for you
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" pilot?

to give me a brief sketch of your background =and
where you went to school up to the present time?

I was born in San Antonio, Texas and raised in
Arlington, Texas, which is in southern Texas and
spent my summers in northwest San Antonio, Texas and
I met my husband in Arlington and we were married in
East Bend and he has been 30 yéars in the service.
We were never stationed out of the United States and
we'caﬁe here for tﬁe firgt time in 1972, two months
after the flood and were here seven vears and went
back to Fort Worth, Texas and then came back here to
retire and he's been flying for B&L Aviation ever
since. I have been enjoving lifé by having chickens
and ducks and peacocks and enjoying the Hills.

What did your husband do in the service? Was he a

No, he was a navigator. BHe fié% KC-97's. Hé was in
maintenance out here then he wéérén officer.-

I notice you have three children; bovs or girls?

All boys. They all live in thié area;

What deo they do?

Oldest is a body repairman and the middle boy¥ works
for a plumber here in town and the youngest boy works

for a souvenir company and lives in Hill City and has

a few head of cattle.
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. And vou have grandchildren?

Yes, three.

Now, Mrs. Anderson, there is aﬁiist of names in front
of you there. Waould you take a look ap that list and
see if there are any names you‘récognize?

The only one I know glightly is Mr. Remﬁoldt‘and I
ﬁavenft seen him in several years. We gave him a
cat, other than that I don't see anybody.

Is there anything about your dcﬁuaintanceship_witﬁ
him that would tend, if he were éalleg ag a8 witness,
for you to give more credence bé his testimony than
somebody else? |

No, gir, I don't believe so.

You know why you are here, 1}£'§ure.

Yes, sir, I got a letter in tﬂe nail from the Judge.

.You are aware that Mr. Rhines is charged here with

first degres murder?

Yes.
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Over the years, have you ever had an acquaintanceship

with any homosexual to your khoWledge?

§6. * There may have been some being
in the military, you make acquéihtances with & lot of
paople from different walks of'iife, and I have never

been that prejudice agéinst anybody as long as it

"Let me tell you about the procedure in this case,

which is someﬁhat different than ~- it is different
than most cases, because of tﬁ%ﬁfact that this is a
first degree murder case in whiéh the State has
requested the death penalty.fﬂwheﬁ did you first
becoﬁe aware that the State wés‘asking for the death
penalty in this case?

When I got the letter from the Judge. I'm net a
reader of the newspaper in particular and I'm not one

that picks up on things like that. When my husband
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‘wasn't fighting per se, he was flying. He wasn't on

first degree murder charge, dd:}Bu understand?

went to Vietnam in '72 I more or less quit reading
the paper per se, because a11 ;£ was was bad things
in there about that and the protests and I juaf
decided it wasn't worth 1lt. I got the letters from
him‘and that's 211 that mattered.

How long did your husband sefve in Vietnam?

He got his tour curtailed because of all his TDY

time. He was there seven or eight months and he

the g;ound, let's put it that way.

Not ailct of difference. Now, in_this procedure I an
going to just give you an overview of the proceﬁurg
so I can askryou some more quééfions,lokay? The
first phase of this trial thé'ﬁﬁry will be asked to

determine the Defendant's guiltfof innocence of the

Right.

And if the jury determines thet the Defsndant is
gullty of first degree murder, thén there is a second
phase -at which the jury fixes the punishment and
that's what makes this case a Little bit different
than most. In most cases the'Jﬁdge imposeg the
sentence, and here the jury in‘the second phase if
the jury finds fhe Defendant Qﬁilty of first degreé_

nurder in the first phase, imposes the sentence and
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at that stage the State willfggseft that there are
certain circumstances which éggravate the first
degree murder conviction which would justify the jﬁry
in considering the death penaity, do you understand?
Okay.

Now, let me say this, at the second phase where the
jury has the two slternatives, one is life

imprisonment without parole and in South Daketa that

- means Jjust what it says, unliké_in some other states,

that if the jury returns a vefﬂict of life
imprisonment without parole ;hﬁt means the Defendant
would spend the rest of his n;Eﬁral life in jail.
And, of course, the other option, death means again
exactly what it says, thatlthé death sentence would

be, imposed if that was the judgment of the Jjury; do

" you understand?

Yes, sir.

All right. First of all, let me ask you if you have
any views, general views about the deaﬁh penalty?
‘Well, I really hadn't though%vgbout it. I have never
been called for jury duty'and 1ike I say; I'm not a
person'that can't wait to reﬁ?iﬁhe paper and see who
is killed, or whatever. I'm'jﬁéf not up om all that.
I will bonestly say that -—- somé cases, some TV I

watceh and I'm sure there must be some people that
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deserve the death penalty. I'm not sure that that's

the right thing to do, but I don't know.

Is this kind of a fair statement, that you don't have

any really fixed views on it? VI want you to think
about it, if you would.

Yeah, I think there are certain cases that I feel |
that the death penalty would'bq_aﬁpropriﬁtg. Do you
want to state what?

Yea, if you would.

Raping a child for one thing, I think is a verf
severe crime, especially if it's an habitual criminal
in that case. To me that would be cause for the 7

death penalty.

Anything else?

That's reélly the only thinq.I_Feélly have a view on.
You watech TV and there are caéeé I'm sure.

Let's assume that the Defendén£'in this casme ig
convicted of first degree mur&?i, premeditated
murder, would that in your judgment automatically
tell you that the death penalty is in order?

There again, I hate to make 2 snap decision. I'm
just not one to make a snap decision on that.
Posgibly, I don't know. I'd have to know all the
evidence before I would say :ight off the top of ny

head. FSorry. That's ny honestlopinion.' I cannot
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say right off-the top of mylhgﬁd that that would
require the death penalty. I don'tlknow.

It's a tough guestion. ‘_

Never being in this situatioh before it's hard for
me —— I'm nbt a person to make & snap decision on
meeting a person or anything else. I just don't do
it. '

As I gather it, you have had nc particular thoughts
on the death penalty other than I suppose what I'm
asking you mow. Which do you consider to be more
severe, the death penalty or life imprisonment
without parole? .

Ones almost as bad as the other. From what I
understand prisons can be quite a bad place to be if

you are there for life. 1I'm sure leosing your life

"would be worse. I'm not an opinionated person.
P

That's the only reason I can give you for not saving
right off on the top of my head whether I can answer
that question. 7

I understand. You are not the first one that hasn't
been able to answer it. I notice that you are a

menber of the Community Lutheréﬁ Church in Hill City?

Yes, sir.

Are you a regular church goer?i'

No, just whenever I can. I support the church and
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I'm not an every Sunday type.‘ There again we live
out and I have chores te do ‘and the church is at 9:00
o'cloeck in the morning in the wintertime and it's
hard. Summer is better for church going because when
you have ice to chop and cattleito feed, and I'm the
one that does it, I enjoy doing it...

Have‘you ever servéq on a jury. before?

No; I never have been calied of served.

As you git there today, do ybu1have any opinion as to
the guilt or innocence of thé:ﬁefendant? .
No, sir, because I really haven't followed the
newspﬁper or whatever. When I got the letter from
the Judge I remember reading in the paper when this
first happened and other than that, like I say I
really didn't keep up with it. My husband or anyone
can tell you the only thing I'reﬁd ig the editorial
pﬁge and classified ads and see if there is anyone’
there I know. o |
Let's see if this is & fair Qu@mary of how you fael.
As far as the death penalty ofnwhatever the sentence
that might be appropriate in‘tﬁis case, you have a
completely open mind? o

Yes, siru

And just because he might be convicted of first

degree murder wouldn't mean to-you that autométically
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the déath penalty could be imposed?

A No, sir, I don't believe so at this point I do not I
don't think. Like I say, the circumstances are such
that I have never been in thisrposition, so it's hard
for me to amay. _

(o] You understand that at the secéhd phase the law is
never going to tell you you have got to return the
death penélty, that's going to be on your conscience.

A Yeg, sir. | .

Q ﬁet‘s assume this, that after -- this is éfter the
death punishment phase, that vou have heard zall the
evi&ence and you have listened to the views of the
other members of the jury and you conclude that life
imprisonment is the apprapriaté.penalty.

A Okay. 'Thisz is assunming. -

Q I'm jus£ assuming. Are yoﬁ such a person that you
would stick by yvour guns and.n6£ give in just to be
in the majority?

A No, sir, I don''t do that. TIf I make up ﬁy mind and
sometimes it takes awhile, I usually stick by it.

MR. BUTLER: Pass for c¢ause. -

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q Mrs. Anderson, as Mr, Bulter introduced me I'm Dennis
Groff and I'11l be putting on=thé case the next couple

'df weeks, The main thing I'ﬁ like to talk to you
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about today is the death penaltj. When you got yéur
questionnaire you filled it 6utﬁand we have a copy of
it, did you visualize in your:ﬁind that yéu might be
here answering these kinds of questions?

Well, I didn't-know. ‘Like I say, I have never been

called and I had no idea what to expect and I felt

like the orientation we had was very informative and

it did help kind of know what was going on.

I want to work with z couple of things now, because
there is a vefy good chance ydﬁ‘ﬁill be a juror on
the care, Jt's a very real ﬁbssibiity. I need to
work with some assumptions heré;aﬁd I don't want any
commitments from you or.anythiﬁg l1ike that, I just
want you to visualize yourself being on the jury if
that's possible. It's very possible the iury might
be here and if we used this courtroom instead of the
other courtroom, I want yvou to:assume'that-you went
through that first phase and you considered the
evidence and passed on the evidénce and you found the
Defendant guilty of first degree murder and then you
have gone to the second phase énd at the second phase
after once considering how yqujheard how the murder
was committed and you determiﬁéd bevond a reasonable
doubt that oﬁe of the aggravafihg clircumstances was

there to make this a special murder and after
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considering all of the evidence, juat assuming now,
you decidgd that the desath penélty was appropriate.
That's just assuming that?

Just aséuming. Can vou visualize yourself coming
back with 11 other people that compiles of that jury,
all unenimous in their.verdict-and having that
verdict read and your Jjury's vérdict is impesing the
death sentence on the Defend;nt} Mr. Rhines, can vou
visualize foqrself being ‘part of that?

Yes, sir, I think so. Like I say, there aéain it's
assuming and I think it's a hard decision teo make,

but if it came to that I don't see any reason why if

‘averyone agrees, and like I say, I have no idea what

happens when the jury doesn't all agree, I'm not up

on all that.

' The other thing I want to ask you is this, because

you know, like any criminal ?éf&ict, we have to have
unanimous decisions and it's‘né? ﬁust enough to ﬁave
ten to two or one to 11, and assuming you had ﬁhat
unanimous decision aﬁd the verdict was read, the next
thing that could happen is that you could be asked
whether that was your individual verdict. In othgr_
words, you could be polled and I reallyAmean to
strike some reality here. If that were to occur énd

that was your verdict and then ydu were polled one by
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one and they came to you, Mrsflhnderson, and gaid, is
this your verdict, could you viéualize vourgsalf
facing the Défendant and the.Court and saying, yes
that's my verdict putting Mr;cﬁﬁines.to death?

Well, I wouldn't 1iie about it..

I undersgtand that and I'm not saying you waﬁld,'bﬁt
can you visualize yourself in that posifion gitting
in judgment facing another person and saving, jes
it}s my vote that yoﬁ be put to death?

I would say seo. Once you hﬁve made your decision up,
that's it.

Does that trouble you somehoﬁ';é you think about it
now? V

Not really. Like I say,'this:ié'all assuming and all
I can do is try to assume that that is the position
I'm in. ) 1 l
Would it be fair to say that that kind of important
decision would depend on the facts of the case and if

the facts justified it, could you come to that

. decision?

Yes, sir.
Now, when we talk about these aggravating

circumstances, those are actually circumstances we

 have set in our law and the way you'll find out is

the Judge will glive you instructions on those
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circumstances. Assumingithat'é aone and you get to
that second stage and you are considering whether or
not I have proven to you that there‘were one or more
aggravating cifcumstances in this case, do you think
you can look at the eircumstances the Court will tell
you about and judge those circumstances whether 6r
not you agree with thenm?

Yes, sir.

So, in other words, if our 1aw is different than you
might expect, c¢an you still foliow the law? -
Yes, sir. I will definitely tfy to be a law~abiding
citizen.

While we have been talking, you-mentioned earlier
this cﬁse of someone who maybe rapes and kills a

child that comes to mind.

Yes, sir.

Is that a case where you think using that same
situation and being polled, that's a case where you'd

be pretty comfortable coming back with?

There again it would depend oh the evidencs,

What evidence besides what yod'ﬁlready told us about

would it depend upon?

Well, I think it would depend on whether the peréon

had done this many times.

In other words, you gave us that example and do you
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remember the one if somesone who is an habitual
offender and...-

This person had molested children several times and
maybe killed one or two, I tﬁink I wouldn't have a
problem with that.

And this is assuming that thé §§idence wasAphere.

I think evidence is the key warﬁ there.

Aré you trying to say you'd need, in that sort of
case, some sort of a serial killer?

Well, I woulan't have thought about it that way.
That'as kind of the way you are explaining it ﬁo me.
Yesg, sir, I gueses. Like I saf} there again wé are
assumning a pesitien that I'm not really in.
Ignoring serial kiliers for a:ﬁinute, here we have
one Defendant énd onelvictim,“é set of facts that ybu
have to look at and-determine”whether or not, number
one, did the pérson do it, wéézit first degree murder
and secondly was it aggravatihg‘where you could come
back and inmpose the death penait&. Can you think of
any cirecumstances that would justify the death
penalty. .

I think the evidence -- there.again in the case that
if the evidence has proved .that this pergon has done

this erime, if your law says that you need to impose

the death penalty or life imb;ﬁ%dﬁment, it would
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‘Do you think you would be -~ and I'm not being

depend, there again on the evidence and the
¢ircumstances.

What you are telling me is, if you found someone
guilty of first degree murder when you got to that
second stage at least, your first analysis would be
to take a look at the case and see if it is
justified, the death penalty, based on the law we
ﬁad? |

Yes, sir.

What I'm trying to get at hefé?before T stop asking-
you questions‘is this, faifly and honestly can you
tell me, do you think you have ‘any personal
reservations about sitting oﬂ é_jury that's
considering the penalty? R

o, sir.

-

judgmental about this, but do you think you'd go into
that.éecond phase of a trial with yvour own personal
béliefs and somehow have a predqnceived notion that
you'd have to comé back with a life sentence?

Yo, sir. I don't have any pgécénceived notion of it
either way at this point. 'LikéiI say, I've never
been in this situation beforé a£ﬁ.I'm trying to be a=

honest a® I can. It's hard for me to visualize what

You are saying, but I'm txying to answer it the most
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honest way I can. T mean, it doesn't mattexr to me
one way or the ofher whether I'm aljuror. It's

not -~ I don't have any reason why I should not be,
if I'm selected, because I have no ties to hold me
baék or keeb me from coming.

As you sit there now =nd you £hink of those two
options in the second stage; do you kind of think
about it in your mind aﬁd saY,ipoy I could thiﬁk
about those two options, but I wduian't be
comfortable giving one of then?

No, sir. If you are selected for a jury, I think you
just have to do the duty as a juror. Like ¥ say, the
orientation I felt was very informative.

GROFF: I'll pass for cause. Thank you, ma'am.
COURT; All right, Mrs. Andefson, just a reminder, I
know you don't read newspapers,;but I am going to ask
you to continue not to read ahj articles or ligten to
any NeEws broadcasts concerning";his'case. Do riot
discuss thig c¢ase with anyoné:dﬁe or allow anyone to
discuss it with you. We willlcﬁll.you to let you
know if you are on th; final jury panel and if there
is a possibility we are trylng te reach ybu and we

are unable to do so, if you would call the Clerk's

Office on Wednesday.morning and make sure we haven't

been able to, haven't been trying‘to reach you.
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MARTHA ANDERSON: Thank you.

THEE

MR,

THE

(Prospective Juror VIRGINIA ANDERSON, having previously

EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTLER:

o

-exercise. Record will show that the State has

GILBERT: I would just renew the motion we made as to

COURT: Thank you. All right, the State may

exercigsed its 15th peremptory challenge and the Clerk

will summon in the next prospective juror.

jurors %ﬁ ’::ﬁ%{ Hgg«- o !

{0
andl"

COURT:

Eg SE%
youx objections are overruled for the same reasons as
stated previously. Lagt week we placed you under

cath and you yryemain under ocath for gquestioning.
been sworn, testified as follows:)

Mrs. Anderson;_I'm Joe Butlernéhd I'm oné of the
attorneys fof Mr. Charles Rhines, the Defgndant, and
I'm peinting at him now and with me is Mr. Wayne
Gilbert and Mr. Mike Stonefield, 'That is Dennis
Groff who is the State's Attorney. Mrs. Anderson, we
have had the benefit of your rééponses on your
gquestionpaire that was sent out, so we already know a
little bit ﬁbout you, howeve;:'irwould like to have
kind of a brief sketch of your personal background

and where you were born up to Vt}];e present time.
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TﬂE COURT: We previcusly swore you in, so you remain
under ocath at this time.

(Prospective Juror WILMA WOODSOW, ﬂéving previously beén
sworn, testified as follows:) ‘

EXAMINATION BY MR. BUTAER:

o] Your name is Wilma Woodéon?

A Yes, it i=,

Q My name is Joe Bulter and I'm one of the attorneys

representing the befendant, Hr. Rhines, who I'm

pointing to now and with me is Mr. Wayne Gilbert and

Mr. Mike Stonefield also représenting Mr. Rhines?

i

A Okay.

Q0 " And that's Mr. Dénnis Groff,_thé dtate's Attorney.
Mrs. Woodson, we have had the éﬁance of reading the,
responses that ydu made oﬁ the gquestionnaire, so I
know a little bit aboﬁt fou?

A okay.

Q I wanted you to know thatlso vyou didn't think I had a
private eye out snocping. We-ﬁave had the benefit of
this questionnaire, however, I would like to know a
little bit aboﬁt your backgrouna, jgst kind of give

me a brief biography about whére'yo'u were born?

2 T was borm in Cleveland, Ohio and went to John Adams

High Scheol and graduated from -there. I have three

gisters and one brother. My husband is in the
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military so we've traveled a lot.: From Cleveland to

Texas an& Montana, Alaska, California and now we
reside in South Dakota.

You have two children?

Yes.

They're both in school I take it?

Net my déﬁghter, she's five'yehfs old,

You work at the hospital up here at Rapid City
Regibnal? | |

Yes.
Were you stationed at Fairbanks, Alaska?
Yes.

How long were you there?

Three yeﬁrs.

In the Air Force?

Yes.

What is his position?

E-7 Master Sergeant.

He's been in...

20 years.

Planning on retiring?

Not yet.

I'd like to have you take a lock at that list of

names that is before you and see if you recognize any

of those names?
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No, I don't.

You are aware that Mr. Rhinas’is here charged with
first degree murder?

Yes.

The eviéence ig going to establisﬁ, Mrs. Woodsoﬁ,
th?t Mr. Rhines is a homcsexuélc Dees that fact in
and of itself impact upon how you 1ook.ét Mr. Rhines?
No. .

Over your life have you ever been acquainted with

-

anyone who is a homosexual?

Not to my knowledge.

Do you believe that the lifestyle of a ﬁomosexual is‘
sinful or immoral?

It's sinful; my raligious’beliéfs.

What are your religious beliefs?

I'm a Baptist. -

Do you regularly go to ¢hurch?.l

No. .

Would your view as to the sinful chéracter to
homosexuality impact on your decision, if you are
selected as a juror either as in the guilt phase or
the punishment phase?

No.

Let me tell you a little bit about the procedure in

the case, because it's a little aifferent than what
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we go through normally. 2As I told you, t@is is. a
first degree murder case and the State, througﬁ the
State's Attorney, has requested the dea#h penalty =nd
ag a result of that, the trial is divided into two
phases, the first phése is the determination of
whether ox not Mr. Rhines is guilty of first degrese
murder, and if the jury determines that the State has
proven, bejond 8 reasonable doubt that the Defendant
is guilty of first degree murder, you go to stagg two
and at stage two the State wdﬁf& be claiming and
proving, attempting to prove.anzagéravating
circumstance whi¢h would makeﬂtﬁé“first degree mgrder
somewhat worse, at least in the efes of the
legislature, do you follow me?

Yes.. | .

And at that point the jury, if the St;te has proved
that beyond & reasonable doubt in the second phase,

the jury would have the sentencing obligation. It's

‘unlike most criminal cases, because if the Defendant

iz found guilty., in most criminal cases the Court
imposes the sentence. But hefe:.because'nf the
request for the death penalty‘%p's the jury.

I understand. o

And I want to also mention this before I prodead with

ancther guéstion. TIf the Jjury determines death, that
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is what happens. The Defendant is put to death. On
the other hand, if the jury determines that i£s life
imprisonment, 1ife without pafolé, that means just
what it says, uﬁlike_in_some other states where after
serving a.period of time people"gre paroled, with &
life sentence that does not-hapﬁen in South Dakota.
Life impriéonment without parolé means what it says,

do you understand that?

Yeé;

You are willing to accept that?

Yes.

I'd like to start ouﬁ, because of the nature of the
problemt we are facing, to ask vou about your general
views concerning the deatﬁ penalt}?

It would depend on the facts and how I felt and_th@
circumstances of the crime. iglwould depend on that,
is that what you are_asking? .

Yeah. What kind of circumstances -- first of ail.
lat me ask you, you are not dpposed to the death
penalty per se?

No.

Why do you helieve in the death penalty?

In some cases I feel it's just.i

Why would it be Jjust? |

tondition of the crimes, if the Defendant had no
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remorse.or, why did he or she d9 this, yoﬁ know.
It's hard fo; me to give you a:yes or & no, if.that‘s
what you are asking me. 7 '

I don't mean -- I understandlfhét when you get to
discus;ing the death penalty fhére is na black and
white, at least for many of us, but I guess I'm kind
oflasking you, would yoﬁ, under certainr
circumstancesa, view the death penalty as being
punishment? |

Yes.

Would you look at it in the form of séciaty having
its revenée? -

No.

You said you are a churchgoer.ffom time to tiﬁe?
Ygs. -

Have you studied the Bible?

Yes, some. .

Is your view ahout the appropriateness of the death
penalty related to the eye for an eye and tooth for a
tooth?

No, I'd say not.

Basically, as T undérstand it’%ﬂd'in what you have
told me, your view of the deaﬁh;penalty 1s that in
certain circumspances you woul@'view‘it as

apprgpriate punishment?

1499

APPENDIX 398




(ORI

W B W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23
24

25

Lol I e I

o » O b

Yes.

Which would you consgsider the more severe sentence,
life imprisonment without parole or the death

sentence?

I would say life imprisonment without. parocle.

That's from your perception, right?

- Yes. ‘I haqe to think about these gquestions.

If you had your choiece, do you think the life. °
impriscament without parole islﬁore severe?

Believe me, you can change youf;mind.

Yes. I don't know.

This is just an example of the"difficuity of the
guestion. Let me ask you this, do you think that it
is a serious matter to think abaut imposing the death
sentence on another human beingé . |

Yes. | 7
Certainly nothjng that should be taken lightly?

¥o. .

In your life, if vou are selééﬁéd as a'juror, can you
think of a more difficult decision that you've eve}
had? o \

No.

Do you know of any reason, Mrs.'Woodson, why vyou
wouldn't try to be failr and impartial?

No.
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Follow the Court's instructions?
Yes.
And do what you felt in your mind was right?

Yes.

Now; you énderstand that if you are selected as s
juror-in this case &ou are onéiéf 127

Yes. ' _

After you are deiiberating there will be only 12
deliberating, and with respect to the imposition of
the death Eenalty. It will take a unanimous ﬁerdict.
Yex.

How, you will, in your deliheratﬁons, considar the
views and arguments of your fgllow jurors, I'm sure?
Yes. o

But after you have donsg all that and you arrive at
your opinion as to what you'thiﬁk fhe appropriate
sentence is, ﬁill you stick bf that, even though vou
are not in the majority?

Yes, I have to go with the way'I feel and it's
something I have to live with. ‘

Because you understand that it takes a unanimous vote
of every juror for that death penalty?

Yes. '

g0, in effect, each vote is one. vote?

Yes.
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And you'd give it your best shét, wouldn't you?
Yes, o
BUTLER:- Pass for cause.

COURT: State may inquire,

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

Mrs. Woodson, I'm Denanis Groff and I willrbe

presenting the State's case to you. I'm your State's

.Attorney. What I need to talk to you about briefly

today are some of these same death penalty questions,

would that be okay?
Yes.

And we want to just make sure where you are at on

this. Can you tell me, you were telling Mr. Bulter

- that it would depend onm the facts and circumstances

of the case and how you were saying, when the death
penalty might be appropriate, is that what you were

telling us?

. Yes.

I'm a little curious and you arelnot bound by aﬁy of
this by any means, but can you:phink of any facts or
circumstances from your life as'you‘have géne through
it and read the paper, any fact$ or circumstances
where you thought the death péﬁgity might be .

appropriate?

Yes.
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What kind of cases come to mind as you think about

that?

I would say child killings.

Why do child killings come to mind?

Defenseless, innocent persons.

I won't pry anymore, because I want to ask you a
little bit about the instructions. You sérved on &
jury before so. you know you dégitumake up.your mind
until you have heérd the Court;é-instructions?

True.

In the instructions that you are going to get,'if you
get to that second phase, the Judge will instruct you
abéut some of.the aggravating circuﬁsfances that
might be applicable to this case; and my job in'the
second phase iz to convince yvou beyond a reasonable
doubt that at least one of those_aggraﬁéting
circumstances exists. If I caﬁ;t‘do that, then you
don't have to consider the deatﬂ.penal£y. If L can
do that and you are convinced'befond a'reascnabie
doubt, then. you c¢an consider ghé.death penalty and
you don't have to impose it, but you canlconéi&er it,
do you understand?

Yes. )

What I am tfying to gest to briefly is when you look

at those aggravating circumstances that the Court
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instructs you about, do you think you can follow that
law, even if you don't agree_wifh it; do you think
you can do that?

Yes.

Because yéu know you are boun§ £o follow the
instructions? '

Yes, |

If T could just take a moment with you and the first
thing I need te go into, your recollections of when

vyou got the questionnaire Ehat_you filled out.

Yes.

‘When you got that and sent it back within the time

frame you had to send it back}.did vyou visualize that
you might actually be here in the courtroom answering
these kind of guestions?

No.

And you are here now.

Yes.

And we've gotten through part of it and what ¥ want

you to do, without holding anything against me, I

want you to, through a visualization process and this
is the last time either side will have a chance to

look at you'and decide from yoﬁf responges whether or
not you can be on the jury?

okay.
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I think this may help. I wanted you to assunme for a
moment, because there is a real possibility yoﬁ‘ll be
chosen. Assume for a moment that .you are actually omn
this Jury and I want you té think about this
courtroom and that jury box.and_I want }ou tc assume
now, and I'm not asking for any guarantees or
promimes, I just want vou to assume fdr:our purposes
that you have gone through thatffirst'phase and I
know you haven't heard any eviﬁence, and assume Yyou
went through that first phase aﬁd you h;ve decided
the gﬁilty verdict was appropxiaﬁe on.first degres
murder, just an assumption, aﬁd:éssume you got to the
second phase and assume you have heard the eviaence

and the arguments in the second phase‘and you have

gone back and decided that there is an aggravating

‘eircumstance.

Okay.
And let's assume that you, along with your other
jurors decided, just decided the death penalty was

appropriate. All I'm trying to;get to now is, can

‘you visualize Yourself coming back in here with those

other 11 people and facing theIJudge and the
Defendant, Mr. Rhines, and actually being part of

that jury who would have their verdict read imposing

- death on this Defendant? <Can you visualize yourself
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doing that if the facts and circumstances indicated
that that was the appropriate thing to do?

Yes.‘

Secondly, I don't know if thisﬁﬁaﬁpenéd up in Alabama
or not, but what happens here in South Dakota is the
jury is polled because it has to be their individual
verdlct and they had to vote for it individually,

unanimously, plus they are asked one by one,is this

your verdict in this case, putting someone to death.

Can you actually visualize yourself, if that were
your verdict, saging, yes, that.is ny verdict putting
you to death? Can you visualizé vyourself going
through that, if you were-conviﬂced that was the
righf thing to do?

Yes, if I felt that way, yeah;

Let's back out of that and noﬁé:of that has happened,
but I want to talk to you a 1i££1e bit about yoﬁr
friends, do you have any friends or relatives ﬁho are
adamantly opposed to the death penalty?

Notlthat I know of.

Can you think of anyone, if you Weré to render that
type of vérdict, who, when you left the courthouse
and went home would give you a'héfd.time berause you
did something like that? |

No, I ¢an't think of one, no.
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Q The last thing I want te ask you about is ;easonable
doubt. In our law, whether itﬁs a D.W.XI. caéé.of a
speeding case, right down thé line, all thé way to a
mu;der case, our standard of pfoof thpt we have to
prove tﬂe case by is always proof by beyond a
reasonable doubt. It's always the same standard no
magter what it doesn't go up like this. Just because
this ia a murder case and it might involve the
consideration of the death penaiﬁy, do you think you
‘wouldlm;ke us prove our case, nbt to a standard of

proof.beyond a8 reasonable doubt, but to an absolute

certainty?

A Yes.

Q You'd want to be pretty certain#

A Yes.

Q But if the Judge told you that absolute certainty

‘ wasn't required of the State, that the State had to
prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt, could you
follow the Court's instructions%

A Yes. -

Q - Can you think of of any reasonf;t‘all now that ¥ou
have been here about 25 minufes, why you couldn't be
on this Jjury? o

A To be honest with you, no.

MR. GROFF: That's what I was thinking you'd tell me.
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MR.

THE

Pagg for cause.

COURT: ﬁiss Woodson, you remain a prospective juror
on this case and we will let you know this week
whether you have made it onto the final jury panel,
It is very important now that foﬁ_nct-discuss this
case with anyone or let anyone discuss it with you
and slso that you not listén.to.or waéch or_;ead any
news media accounts of this case. Can you promise me

you'll npot do thess things?

WILMA WOODSON: Yesg, your Honor.

COURT: If you haven't heard from us by tomorrow

afterncon, I'd ask that you call the Clerk's Office

"to check in and make sure that we haven't been trying

to reach you. Thank you, very much; State may

exercisge.

GROFF: State has exercised, yoﬁr Honor.,

COURT: Stafe has exercised iﬁsilSth.peramptory. The
Clerk will summon in another‘gqupective juror. Good

morining, s8ir. We previously swore you in last week

80 you remain under cath for questioning today.

GARY CHASTAIN: All right.

THE

COURT; Defense nay inquire.

{Progpective Juror GARY CHASTAIN, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY MR. STONEFIELD:
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the stape.

And you =zaid you didn't start high school?

No. |

Have you had any vocational schooling or other kinds
of schooling?

Yes,

It's kind af a difficult question and I don't want to
embarrass you, but you said that you didn;t really
understand whalt the Court had‘instructed you about a
week ago yesterday and I don'flknOW how else to
phrase it but, do you think you}il héve trouble
understanding and following along?

I believe I would have, I realij do.

GILBERT: Your Homor, I'd ask that Mr. Pleinis be
excused.

GROFF: I have no objection.

COURT: I think we will excuse'ybu on‘this case, Mr,
Pleinis. Thank you, very much‘for coming in.

Clerk will summon another prdspectivé juror. Good

'morning, Bir. We swore you in last week and so you

remain under oath at this time?

{Prospective Juror MARK DEAN, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

EXAMINATION BY JOE BUTLER:

Your name is Mark Dean,.
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Right,

I'm one of the atﬁorneys representing Mr. Rhines and
I'm Joe Butler. I'm pointing at Mr. Rhines and next
te him is Mr. Wayne Gilbert who is aésociafed with me
as well as Mr. Mike Stonefield and Mr. Rhines is

right there and that is Dennis éroff, the State's

Attorney. Mr. Dean we had a chance to look at the

questionnaire you returned to the Court and you werg
asked to list any other known reason why vou do not
feel you could serve as a juror in this case; do you
remember that?

Uhm-uhm,

And vou statéd I have been goiﬁg through a lot of
stress because of my divorce and ﬁoney prqblems?
Uhm—uhm. o ' .

Do you feel that that Would_éerve as a reason why you

couldn't =it on this case?

T guess not actually.
I don't like to pry into your personal life, but at
least you indicated there might be some impact and I

would like te wvisit with you a Iittle bit about it.

-Apparently you are in the process of a divorce or has

it heen completed?

-No, it's dompleted.

And when was it completed?

1473

APPENDIX 410




#a

10
11
12
13
14
15
le.

17.

is

1s

. 20

21

22

23

24

w R

L®]

0 B O

0 0

'It's been several months ago.

And you indicated that you ha&'some financial
prabiems?'

Yeah.

Are those still there?

Yeah —- I don't know.

Would serving on this jury aggfavate those, make them
worse?

Not at this point. Actually I haven't been working

for a few days any way because of the weather and the

' weather is a big factor in my job.

If you were to serve on a jury here for maybe two or
three weeks or even a month,‘};ﬁ don't think thét
would impact on you financiallyf

Well, yeah, it probably would ts a point.

Would it be something that you éouldn't handle?

No. .

Okay. Mr. Dean, just give me a brief sketch about
your.personal background and where you were born and
raised and went to school and so forth?

I was born in Hot Springs and Iigrew up in South
Dékota most of my life and gradﬁated from Hill City
High School and I have Worked;iﬁ-the area pretty much
all my life. o

What kind of work do you do?
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I work up oﬁ Crazy Horse Monument.

Before that?

I was in mining most of the time and I had a business
for six years and I 4id taxidermy for six years at
onie point.

In Hill Ccity?

Yes.

Your parents still live aroﬁnd_here?

No, my mother lives in Rapid aﬁd my father is dead.
Do you have any brothers?

Yes, one brother and two sisters.

Do they live around here? -

My brother lives in Hill City and both my sisters
live here in Rapid Ci;y. | |
What does your brother do in Hill City?

He runs Dakota Stone Company, it's a company ny
father started quite a few years ago.

His name is Jim Dean,.right?

Yes.

He's your colder brother?

Yes.

Have you worked at Dakota Stone at all?

I did up until six years ago.

Woiked with your brother?

Yeah.
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Still get aleng with your brother?

Yeah. _

Mr. Dean, would you take a loék?ét the list of names
in front of you and see if you recognize any of those
names? .'L .

No. |

Do you know‘fecognize any?

No, I do#'t.

You indicated in your questioﬁnaire in answer to a
guestion thaé you heard abouﬁ the case on the‘néws or
read about it and saw it on TV?

Yeah.

Dc you remember what you heard:or what you hag sean?
Well, that that gentleman hadlbeen killed in th%t'

donut shop and I guess I really‘haven't seen much of

“it. ‘I don't know.

Anything gtick in your mind?

I don't know -- nothing T guess in particular.

- Have you or any member of your immediate family ever

been charged with a crime?

I have at one time.

~ When was that?

Ten years ago I got a D.W.I.
Did you plead guilty or was the paée tried?

I pled guilty.
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And with the exception of that, nothing else?

No.

Now, are you aware that the Defendant Mr. Rhines is
here charged with first degree murder?

Uhm-uhm.

And the evidence is gnihg to show, Mr. Dean, that Mr.
Rhines is a homosexual. ' Does that's have affect how
you look at Mr. Rhines?

Y guess not.

You =aid you guess not?

Well, neo.

Have you.ever known any homosékﬁéis?

Yeah.

Were they friends?

Yeah.

And even fhough they have a different lifestyle than
yourself, you still regard thém as vour friends?
Yeah, | ’

Now, Mr. Dean, let me try dnd explain to you and if
you have any gquestions understaﬁding whﬁt I'm saying,
don't he embarrassed abou£ asking me to explain theﬁ
further. This case is a 1ittla_bit different than
most crimes._ This case is divided into two phases

because the State has requested the death penalty, do

you understand?
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Yeah.

The first phase consists:of a trial determining
whether or not Mr. Rhines is guilty of first degres
murder. If the jﬁry detérmines that the State has
proven beyond a reasonable &dubt that Mr. Rhines is
guilty of first degree murder, then there is a second
phage and =zt the second phaseifhe issue beforelthe
jury is whether or nof or whaﬁ the proper or
appropriate sentence is and there are only two
options at the sentencing phase. 1If you find him
guilty of first degree murder, the two options are
life imprisonment without parole of death. You
should understand that the death penalty at the
sentencing phase is only to bé considgred as an
alternative, if the State proves what we call an
aggravating circumétances. iﬁéé's kind of a thumb
nail sketch of whether you can consider the death
penalty and what héppens at thé‘éecond phase. I
should also emphasize that ag no time is the jury
regquired by the Court to impéée the death penalty,
that's strictly up to the jury, do you understand?
Uhm-uhm, | ‘ '
New, before I ask fou another duastion you Qhéuld
understand that in South Dakota life without parcle

means what 1t says. If the jury were to impoze that
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sentence, that's exactly ﬁhat would happen to Mr.
Rhines, he would spend the rest of his life behind
bars. On the other hand, if the jury imposes the
death sentence, that too is whét‘hgppens. He's put
to death.

Uhm—uhm.

Let me ask you, do ydu have any barticular vieﬁs
about the appfopriatness of the death penalty?

I guess it depends on the sitﬁétion as far as I'm

concerned.

Can you elaborates on that?

Depending on the seriousness of:the crime and stuﬁf.
You have got to understand thé£3§ou dould not rééch,
consider the death penalty untii you had first found
that. he wﬁs guilty of first deébee murder and then
made an additional finding of the existence_of an
agdravating circumstance, do you.uﬁderstand that?
Uhm~uhm.

It's only after that two-step prbcess can you even
considerlthe application of thg?death penalty.
Right.’

Do you have some circumstancesiin your mind ﬁhich
would make the death sentence ap§ropriate as faf aé
you are concerned? |

I guess to a point I guess, yeah.
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Can you tell me what polnt?

Well, I don't know. I guess I have seen Some
gituations where I guess I thouéht it was
appropriate, just things that I have seen on
television and stuff. S

What kind of situations have yoﬁ,éeeh?

Well, for one thing to me when ﬁhere is c¢hildren
involved, when someone does something to children and
it's proven they did it, you_kﬁéw, to me that
wérrants it, I guess. -

What other circumstance, aside Efom children?

I don't know.

Let's assume, take the circumstances that you
describe that there were children invelved, why would
you think the death penalty is aﬁpropriate in that’

circumstance as opposed to life imprisonment without

parcle?

T don't know. I don't know if.it is appropriate. I

don't know, really. I don't reélly know what would
bhe, I guess, for sure. .

Would you feel life imprisonment without parole is a
very severe sentence in itself?

Yeah.

Have you ever thought about which,.in your hind,

would be worse?
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Yeah, I guess so.

Which do you think would be the Wérse?

I suppose I'd rather be alive #han dead.

Sb you would think that phe death sentence wéuld be
more severe? .

Yeah..

As you sit there right now Mr. Dean, have you any
thoughts about whether or not the Defendant is
guilty? '

I don't knoﬁ. I guess not, I don’'t know enough
about it. ‘

Well, vyou understand that you.haVe the presumption of
innocence and that the State has to prove the
Defendant guilty? B

Uhm-uhm.

So, ié it £air to say that you.really don't havé any
feeling about the Defendant being guilty at this
point in time on the baszis of what you.might have
read or heard? |

T cdouldn't say ~-- I don't know.

Have you réached any conclusion at this point with
the sketechy information that you have as to whether
or noet life imprisonment should‘be thé gentence or
death? e

I don't know what would be righﬁ.
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Would you give the matter a lof;of thought before you
e%er imposed the death sentence?

Yeah.

Is your c¢hild iiving with you or your wife at the
present time? -

My wife. We have joint custody.

She lives in Hill Cit¥y as well?
They live in Rapid.

Does she work?

Yes, for the Départment of Revenue.

MR. GILBERT: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: State may inguire.

EXAMINATION BY MR, GROFF:

Q

Mr. Dean, first thing I need teo ask you, is there
anyth}ng about that experience ten'years ago that
would cause you to think you couldn't be fair to the
State? | '

No.

In terms of the way you were tfeated by the
prosecution or the Court?

Wo. _
1 want to ask you a little bit about mainly the death

penalty today. Dld you undexrstand that we have got

these two separate phazes we might be going through?

Yeah.
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The first phase, of course, if you found Mr. Rhines
not guilty, you'd never get fo.the second phasé and
it would be all over. Assuming ycﬁ found him guilty
then you'd move oﬁ to that.second phaseland as Mr,
Bulter told you, what I'd be tffing to-pfove to you
in the second phase is that the:é waé at least one
aggravating ﬁircumstance that_m;de this case special.
In other words, it's not enoughrfq find somebody
guiity of murder or-premeditatea murder, there has to
be scomething aggrévating or spécial about it.
Uhm-uhm.

Those arelcircumstances that our legislathre has
drafted for us and the Court will instruct you what
might be relevant to this case aﬁd if the Court
instruc¢ts you what anravating‘circumstances you

could consider or what would ﬁeéd to be proven before

'you'd consider the death penalty, do you think you

could follow those circumstancéég-even if you
disagreed with them?

I think I could as far as I know.'

In other words, the law tells us what they are and

the Judge is going to tell you what the law is and

"I'm asking yow whether or not you think you can

follow the law?

Yeah, as far as I know.
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You understand, before you coﬁld ever considef
imposing the death penalty, I‘é have to prove one of
those aggravating circumstanceé-beyond a reasonable
doubt? ' ’

Uhm-uhm. -

‘Mr,. Bulter was asking you about circumstances and you

mentioned children was something you thought came to
mind as a circumstance that might be appropriate for

tha‘death penalty?

Uhm-uhm.

Why is it that you feel that way with children? I
know some of these questions‘géé being asked tﬁice,
but this is the only time we'h{ve to talk- -ty yadars T
Well, I guess children are pfetﬁy‘helpless, what
happens to them in mostlcircumstances, I don't know.
Can you think of, if you don't mind, I think it would
b2 helpful to us and if you can't think of any
others, that's all right. This isn't a test, but can
vou think of any other situatipns at all that wyou
thought about personally ox you.seen on TV where you
thought the death penalty might be appropriate?

One that comes to mind to me iéijust recéntly, I.
c;n't remember whoe it was whei%.they“hung the
gentleman and he admitted_to kiiling those kids and

said he would do it again if he Qot out, and to ne

1484

APPENDIX 421




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

.23

24

25

that was appropriate.

In that case was it a concern to you that he killed

the kias or a concern that he kind of chose that form

 of punishment in terms of choosiﬁg hanging over some

other form of execution?

Doesn't matter to me how they aia it, just the fact
that -- I don't know, he prettytmuch said he would ﬁo
it again and what he did deo wéé'pretty bad, I
thought, and in that situation I could agree with
that. I don't know. | '

Are you telling me that as yoﬁ anélyze these kind of
éases, oné of the things you look at is the how and
the why, how it happened and why it happened, is that
what you are saying?

Yeah, I guess so0.

I need to ask you some gquestions a little bit about
actually being on the jury, if that would be okay.
De you remember when you got ySﬁf questiohnaire?
Yes. B

Wheﬁ vyou got your questionnaifeiand you £illed it
out, did you ever think, I'm acﬁﬁally going to be
there in Court answering these duestions? |

I thought it wgs.possible,-yeaﬁ-x

Well, you are here and we are‘going thrbugh it and I

need to take you one step further, if I might, and
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there is a very real possibility noﬁ that you are
going to be on the jury and if I may, what I am going
te try to attempt to do is, téke you there to see
what it might ke like on the jﬁfy. As I do that, I'm
not trying to get any commitments. or promises from
you, T just want you to visualize yourself doing some
: ;
things on the jury?
Okay,
If you are picked for this jury, and of course, you
would deliberate on the first part of the case and I
ﬁant you fo assume that you did so and that you found
Mr. Rhines guilty, okay, just an assumption, and I
want you to assume that after you had done so you
went back and you considered.tﬁ; a&diticnal evidence,
if any, and you decided whethef or not there was an
aggravating circumstance, ASsume yvou found one:an&
let's assume then that.yéu, along with your other
jurors decided the death penalty was appropriate,
Just an-assumption, you are not committed to that,
and also agsuming all that, Mr. Dean, if you loﬁk
over in those chairs over there, if you reach that
vérdict, senteneing verdict, then at some point in
time you.would be célled into the courtrecom after you
told the Judge you had a verdi¢£ and in front of the

Judge and in. front of the Defendant, Mr. Rbines, that
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verdict, that unanimous verdict would be read, é
verdict putting Mr. Rhines to'&eath. What I'm‘trying
to find out from you, Mr. Dean is, assuming the facts
were there and assuming you WEré convinced that phat
was the right thing to do, can you visualize yourself
being part of a jury imposing the death penalt} upon
someone, in this case, Mr. Rhines?

I guess whatever the cirbumstanées ended up being, I
don‘t know, I would do what I ﬁélt was right that's
all I can say really. DR ‘

If I can just take it one step. further for you. Same
thing, after the jury would Eéﬁﬁrn its wverdict, as
you may know, maybe not, in eriﬁinal cases everybody
has to agree, in other words, én individual's wvaots
has to count and you ceouldn't have that individual
vote. One of the things that hﬁppens after a verdict
is raturned is that the jury maf be polled, that is
asked, each oné individually, whether or not that is
their verdict. In other words, during that polling
process your name could be calle& out and they'd ask.
Mr, Dean, whether or not tﬂat wés vour verdicet and
vou'd have to raspond before tbé Court and the
Defendant whether or not, yes:lghat is my verdict
imposing death upon soméone riéﬁt in front ¢f you and

in that case, Mr. Rhines. Can you visualize yourself
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being able to do that, if that was your verdict?

' If that ended up being a verdict, yes, I guess so.

Are you uncomfortable at all ag you think about it?

A little bit, yeah.

And can you tell me a little mo#e ahout it. 1Is it

‘because us don't sit in judgment on someone else?

Tt's pretty serious issue to me.

When you say it is a pretty sef#ous issue to you, I
know it's important, but what is the thing that.
really strikes you about it thaﬁ makes it so sorry
serious?

Well, you are basically making a decision akbout
somebody else's fﬁture in life.l

Yeah, whether they're goiné to live.

Right. .
What I'm trying to determine»iélﬁhether or not you
think vyou can make that kind';fhléfe or death
decision? '

As far as I know I think I cﬁﬁi&;

Do you have some reservations about it?

I don't know. It's just pretty?serious ;o me. It's
nothing I would take xeal lightly. |

Do you think, Mr. Dean, that aséuming you found the

Defendant guilty of first dagree nmurder and you went

to that second stage, do you think as you went into
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that second stage you'd sort of have a predisposition

towards one penalty or the othéf; do vou see what I'm

getting at? ’
Yeah. I don't know. A lot offit depends on a lot of

circumstances I guess.

" Have you heard -- strike that. Do you have any

friends out there who are opposed to the death

penalty?

I don't know. II guess it's not"something Qeaily that
i can rememéer séricusly talkiné-about lately.

What I'm trying to get.at is, let‘s assume that the
death penalty was the verdict_of'the jury., that yeu
were omn and people knéw_gpufwexéwan the jury and the
case was over and you rendered your verdict and you
went back out to your job in thé'coﬂﬁunity, can you
think of anybody out there that would give you a hard
time for coming back with the death penalty in this
case? ‘

Npo, not that I know of.

Did you understand from Judgé'Kbnenkamp-the other day
what thg burden of proof-is in é.criminal case?

Yes. |

What 4id you think that was f:dm 1istening to Judge

Konenkamp?

Well, beyond a reasonable doub;; it's got to be.
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something that'pdshes it one way.or the other, I

gquess.

" When we deal with the burden of proof., beyond a’

reasonable doubt, the Judge will imstruct you at thé
end of the case what that means and you'll be able to
read the instructions apd deliberate, You knﬁw
that's the same standarés we have in a speeding
ticket case or a D,W.I. case oi:a—theft case, right
downt the line, it névér changes, iﬁls always praof
beyond a reasonable doubt. In §ther word;, it
doesn't go up just because thé';harge is more
serious, it's always proof begﬁﬂd a reasonable doubt.
De you think that you would keep that burden where it
ié, that proof beyond a reasonable doubt or just
because this is = pretty serioué case ipvglving
possible capital punishment thaf you'd raise it to an
absolute certainty, which hés never been reguired by
cur law?

I guess I would just try to foiiow the waj it's:
supposed to go the way we will‘be instructe@ to é&o
it. o

Same thing will come up in the‘éecond stage when you
consider the aggravating circumstances, 1f any. Once

again they'll have to be proven beyond a reasonable

doubt, but not to an absolute certainty, are you with
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me?

Yeah.

I'm wondering if you will keep the State's burden at
proof beyona a reasonable doub£ and not raise to an
abgolute certainty just because this is a murder
case? Do you think vou can do that?

I think I can.

What kind of work are you doing‘#ow, Mr.. Dean?

I do demolition work.

Who do you g¢generally work for?

Paul Mual.

Do'you work with other people on the job there?
Yeah. |

How many people are On your crew?

Full time there are six of us.

Generélly, does you are crew work together mest of
the_ﬁime? ' R

Well, we gort of have our separaﬁe jobs we do, but we
work together, but yet they ha?é, we have our certain
Jjobs and we basically do ours, I guess

Are most of these people in the Hill City area or
where do they live at?

Custer most of theﬁ.

How much older is your brother than you?

Year and a half.

1491

APPENDIX 428




10
11

12

13

14

15

16
17
18
ig
20

22
23
24

25

Q¥ 0 O O

©

™

You went to high school together ;n Hill City?
Uhm-ubm. S

On the gquestionnaire and during Mr. Butler's
gquestioning you mentioned a l1ittle bit about the
divorcg situation. Did you have a lot of anger about
that diverce?

Yeah.

Would you consider yourself to be a2 very emotional
person’? |

Not generélly. That was a prgtty rough time for me.
If I stayed general about it, could we talk about it
a 1ittle bit? '

Yéah.

Did it come as a surprise to jou-ﬁhen it_happened?
Uhm-uhm. |

And I take it yoﬁ were very cloée to your daughter?
Yeah.

Yqu were very c<¢lose to yourx child?

Yeah. b

Has it made it difficult in terms of visitation, made

it difficult to see your child since the diverce?

No, that's something we never had any trouble with.
Would it be fair to say that at least in your mind

that it was a marriage that you hoped was going to

work?
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?eah.
Even after these many months, are you'completely over
it? |

Not compléteiy.

There is still a lot of pain involved?

Yeah, a little,

GROFF: Thank you for bearing with me. 'Pasa for
caus_e. ‘

COURT: Mr. Dean you remain a mprospective juror on
this cvase and it's very imporfant that éou not
discuss this case with aﬁyone or let ényone talk to
you about it and also that you not read or listen to

or view any media accounts concerning this case. Do

you promise me you'll not do these things?

MAREK DEAN: Yeah, I do.

THE

COURT: We will contact you when we are ready to have
you come back in, but ih the unlikely event that we
are unable to reach you, I'd'asﬁ that yvou call ﬁs
tomorreow afternoon and check in with us to make sure
that we haven't been trying to reach vyou.  Defense
may exercise, The record will show that the defense
has exercised its 17th peremptory challenge and the
Clerk will call in the next proépective 5uror. Good

morining, Miss Woodson?

WILMA'WOODSON: Good morning, Judge.
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PROCEREDINGS:

APPEARANCES; '

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )

COUNTY OF PENNINGTON )

HONORABLE JOHN K. KONENRAMP,
Rapid City, South Dakots, on the 12th and 13th

days of

STATE OF SOUTH DAXOTA,

Plaintiff,

CHARLES RUSSELL REINES,

IN CIRCUIT COURT

.SEVENTH‘JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

JURY TRIAL
293-81
Defendant. VOLUME VIl

The follow1ng matters were had before the

January, 1993.

Circuit Judge at’

MR. DENNIS GROFF, MR: JAY MILLER, and.

" MR. MARK VARGO

State's Attornev's Office
Pennlngton County  ° '
Rapid City, South Dakota

FOR THE STATE

MR. JOSEPH BUTLER
Attorney at Law

FO Box 2670 , .
Rapid City, South Dakota

MR. WAYNE GILBERT
Attqwney at Law

3202 West Main Street .
Rapid C;ty, South Dakota

MR. MICHAEL STONEFTELD
Public Defender :
Pennington County

Rapid Ccity, South Dakota

FOR THE DEFENDANT
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THE COURT: Good afternoon, sir. You timed it just

EXAMINATION BY MR. STONEFIELD:

right. We appreciate your patience in waiting all
afternoon for us
We previously swore you in, so you remain under ocath

now. The defense may inguire.

You are William Brown?

Yes,

I'm Mike Stonefield and I'm ong of the attorneys
repreéenﬁ%ng Charlie Rhines whpfs'the man seated
right here in front of me and this is Joe Bulter
another attorney and Wayne Gilbert another attorney
on his case. You sat through the orientation process
;ast week and you understand generally what it is we
are here for today?

Uhm—ﬁhm.

You understand that Mr. Rhines is éharged with murder
in first degree murder?

Yes,.

I'd like to ask you, first.of'éil, and we will be
having a2 number of qugstions for you, Eut first of
all, if you could tell us what, if anything, yaﬁ know

about this cage?
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Only thing I know is what I heard on the television,.
I'll ask you to be specific about what you heard on
the television as best as you can remember?

That the boy was killed and that he worked in a donut
shop, I think and that's about it.

Anything more than that?

At that time it took them awhile to arrest somebody.
Have you heard or read anything about the case
recently?

Just what is on television, thﬁt they're selecting a
jury and I knew that from being here.

Would you say that over the months, over the past few

months that your knowledge about this case has come

from discussing it with other people or hearing about

it on television or reading about it in the newspaper

or has it been from all those £hings?

Just basically télevision.

De you recall ever reading anyﬁhing in the newsﬁaper
about it at all? o ‘

I don't get the paper.

Do vou read it at all regularly;br at allvy

No.

Havé‘you ever heard anybody expgess an opinion aboutf

Mr. Rhines?

No.

e
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Have you ever heard anybody express an opinion about
Mr. Rhines as to whether he;é éuilty or not guilty of
these charges? f

No. ‘
Have you yourself ever formed any. kind of an opinion
about that?

No.

One of the things that was discussed the other day
during the orientation process and this is something
maybe you are familiar with, was the legal condept of

the presumption of innocence; do you remember hearing

about that?

lUHm—uhm.

bo you feel that vou understand.what that means?

Yes, T think so.

Any person charged with a crime is presumed to be

innocent and that presumption follows him throughout

the entire case unless it's overconme by evidence

heyond a reasonable doubt?

Yes.

And do you believe you understand that?

Yeah.

And you feel that that's a good presumption to have?

Yes.

As you sit thére right now, do &ou have any problem
1650
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applying that presumption of innocence to Charles
Rhines?

No.

Noﬁe whatsoever? Okay. You understand why we have
to ask about this? | |
Oh, yesh.

I don't mean to séem like I'm brying or anything, I
just want to be ag clear on'afnumber_of things as I
can and you undserstand why we are doing this? '
Uhm-ubm. . -

You have never served on a jury before?

o - . .

You did mention one thing, Mr. Brown, vou had a
custédy case app?rently parental custody of yvour
daughter a few vears ago?

I have cusfody of my daughter and we've been in Court
ten times and‘it's been up to the Supreme Court aﬁd
there is ancther hearing coming'up. It's been in
Court since 1986 and it's stiii'in Court.

And it's still unresolved? '

It's been resolved seversl timéé.

But it keeps being opened up ég;iﬁ?

Right.

¥Tou have éustody now?

Yes.
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That's the daughter you had gone to pick up from .
schoel?

Yes.

She's eight years old?

Uhﬁ-uhm.

Your employment -- apparentiy &6ﬁ do-a couple of
different things and right noﬁ You are a carpenter?
Yes, - |

And you are also going to school?.

Yea,

At Black Hills?

At the air base..

Are you going full~time? -

8ix hours,

You spend six hours a week iﬁ é1ass?

This semester would be, Thursday, from four to ten.
Just one day s week. . |
Right,

But it's six hours?

Yes,

When does that semester start?

In two weeks,

Have you registered for the class slready?
Thm-ulim.

Have you paid any kind of moﬁéy'or anything?
1652
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I have a student lpan a PEL Grant. )

If you were to be gelected én ﬁhis case and_the case
were to take several weeks andnyou were reguired to
be in here svery day, would that mean fou couldn'f
take the class? | .

No, I'cou1d~make arrangements.

You understand on fhursday vyou might not necessarily
be able to leéve in time to get out there?

Yes. . |

Do you understand that we really can't tell you what

kind of a time schedule you'd be on or anything like

that?

With what?

With having to bhe in Court. ‘We_can't tell you that
we'd start at a set hour or guit at a set hour every
day, that kind of thing?

I have made arrangéments. I have someone that will

watch my daughter if I need to stay late a few days.

As far as school, do you see any problem with it?

Na.

Eveﬂ if perhaps you had to mis§ a Thursday or more
than one Thursday altogether? :

They're history classes and'I_cén regd the book.
You don't see a problem with that?

No.
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You did mention another thing about your daughter.

You indicated in an answer to the questionnsire here

that there might be a problem, what you said is, if I
was unable to see and spend tiﬁe with my daughter
beyond two to three days, I am a single parent and

you indicated that as a possible problem?

Well, I didn't know if during thies if you. had to etay

.here overnight the entire time or how you guys run

the Court process.

I can't tell you with any kind of certainty now how
you would work it, but I can tell you that there is
ét least a possibility that you might be reguired to
be sequesﬁered for a time to where you couldn't go
home for a time, whether it wéuld be beyénd two or
three days, that I can't say.  Can you see that as a
problem of being able to sit on the case if it came

to that?

I guess I can make arrangements, if I have to,

S0 you are saying that you wouldn't see it as a

problen?

No. Well, if I am to sit and it wasn't a month or

something.

I wouldn't anticipate that it would be a month but
You understand that I can't tell you that and nobody

can tell you right now whether it would happen or if
1654
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it did how long it wauld be?

Yes.

fo you are telling us that you don't szee it as a
problem?

I can make arrangements. _

Is it the kind of thing that might cause you to be

concerned to an extent that your attention would be

diverted away from the case hers?

All I can gay is if it was for & very long time.
What do you mean by a very long. time?

A week to me, that would be a little long. She goes

to Alaska in the sunmer, so0 I don't see her for ten

weeks at a time.

S& it has a possibility of beiﬁg a problem, at least?
Yes. | o

My, Brown, one of the things that was discusséd with
yYou the other day when yYou went throﬁgh this
orientation process was the fact that the death
penalty is potentially involved in this case. Do you
remember hearing about this°

Yes.

Were you aware of that before last Monday?

No.
I'll take a 1itt1e time and axplaln how things would

go in a gase like this, but as a general question, do
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you have, as you come into thé courtroom here, do you’
have any opinions one waf or another just in general
about the approprimteness of the death penalty?

I believe there aré times when-it;s appropriate.
That's just a general opinion.jou have?

Yéah.

Can you give us any kind of idea as to what thihgs in
your mind you think it might‘ba appropriate?

On treason, crimes against the government, spying,
and so forth, crimes againsp Ehildren.

Anything else in parﬁicular?. |

Excépfionally brutal mayhe. .

Let me take a minute and go thfough with you the ’
procedure about how this case would work, what would
be presented to you if you were to sit. The first
part of the case would be just like the first part of
Any criminai case oy thé trial of any criminal case
where evidence is presénted and the jury makes a
ﬁecision ag to whefher or nof.tﬁe person‘charéed ig
guilty and if the person is not proven guilty or the
Jjury doesn't feel tﬂat ﬁe's beéﬁ'ﬁrqven guilty that
would be the end of the vase. .There wouldn't be
anything further and we wouldn't get into punishment .
or anything like that if there was an acguittal. If,

however, there was a convictiop_énd the Fjury found
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that Mr, Rhines was guilty qf‘first degree murder,
then we would move on to a second part or second
tri;l basically; do-you undefstand this so far?
Uhm-ubm.

The death penalty would come iﬁto play if the 3ury
found Mr. Rhines guilty of first degree murder  and
then we would move to a secénd tria1 where thefe
could be new evidenceland arguments ﬁade aﬁd then the
Jury in this case would be the same jury that heard
the evidence in the first trial and.they ﬁould tﬁen
have to make a decision as to whéther or not, first
of all, whether or not there were certain

circumstances'surrounding the case, what the law

. ecalls aggravating eircumstances, whether one or more

of those things surrounded the case, do you
understand that so far?

Yes.

If the jury found there wéreuéhése éircumstancés and
these circumstances did exist in this case, then the
jury would have a second determinétions to make and
that second determination would be whether the death
penalty was the appropriate penalty. 8o you
understand that this could be a two-trial process
basically? |

Uhm—-uhm.
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First part of it would be déférmining guilt or
innccence and if the determiﬂétion was innocence that
would be the end of the case. And if the

determination was guilty of first degree murder, we

~would get into the second part and I explained that a

little bit. Do vou feel you have understood seo far
what T have gone through?

Yes.

Given your opinions about‘the_degth renalty, what you
feel about the déeath penalt}—and what you bripg in
here, the ideas about it thﬁt'yéu brihg'in here
today, I'll ask you to just ma#e_some assumptions
here, to assume some‘thingsgrgkééuming that you sat
on the jury and the jury found_Mr. Rhines guilty of
first degree murder, assuming that, do you feel ﬁhen
at that point that in your mind thé death penalty
should follow, automatically?

Not necessarily.

Do-you think you would want to hear other things?
Uhm-uhm. | -

You'*d be willing to congider qther circumstances?
Yeah. o |
What kind of other things do you think you'd be
interested in hearing about iff}ou have any idea in

your ming?
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Again I'm asking you to maybe make some kind of an

assumption here. Can you think, in your mind, of any -

To know what happened and why.

Can you think of anything aise? Could you say that
your opinion about the death penalty.is such that you
can think of certain cases where if the person is
proved to have done something that it shﬁuld
automatically follow_that thayihé gxecuted?

h réaily don't understand what you want.

type of situation any type of crime that you may have
heard of or that you can think of in your mind that
would be s0 serious or 8o severe that the person who
did that should be executed, should just |
auﬁomatically be executed?

I don't think anybody should jﬁﬁt éutomatically be
executed. It's pretty serious; 

Would vou say that there is sdméthing, this taik
ebout the death penalty is itrsdmething thatryou ever
thought about much in your lifé?‘f 7
I have‘élways had just kind afagasic'Opinions, rou.
know, that there‘are BOme things that peoplg do;

Some things?

Some things.

I'm interested == you indicatéd.here as far as your

education, that you were a sociology student?
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Major.

Your degree is in sociology?

Yes.

Did your studies in sociology ever involve any
digscussion study of the death;éenalty?

Not any éléss spent on it.

Do you recall the aubject even qoming up in a text or
in a discussion or anything like that?

It has, yes. I don't recall the specifics.

You heafd about the death penalty being involved in
this case since last Monday éné have }ou thought &t
all about your feelings or ré—examined then or
anything like that?

I woul& have to be shown that it was extremely
appropriate. |

And I believe we talked before about ny quésiion
about the automatic nature of it and you said iﬁ Your
opinion it would never .be autonmatic.

Right. -

Is that right?

No.-

Am I right in assuning that?

Yes.

Az you maid you'd want to hear;other things?

_Yeah.
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You indicated on the questionnaire that you axé a
member of St. Andrews Episcopal Church here in town.
Do you attend regularly?

On a monthly basiaﬂ

Does your daughter go with you or more often?

Nope, that's the only timelshe goas to church._
Again, a guestion I want to ask, and I don't mean to
gseem like I'm prying, but I'll ask, de you consider
yourself to be a religious person?

I would cgll it more spirituél;ihén religious.

You indicated on the questionnsaire here thét you
lived in South Dakota for mcé%%ﬁf yoﬁr life. Where
were you born at? a

Columbus, Ohic.

Did you live in Ohio all...

We moved here when I was in seéond grade.

Are your parents still living here?

They're both dead. )

What did your father do?

He owned Chrié Supply and he QQEViced nusic iheaters
and fixed the sound systens.

Do you have brothers and sis;;fg?

I have a brother and two sisﬁersl My brother runs
Chris Supply now and my sisters live in Californis

and Washington State.
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Do you atill stay in touch with thenm?

Yas.
Are they younger or clder?

One sister is older and my omneé brother and other -

sister are younger.

‘They all have kids?

Yeah. My‘brother_doesn‘t.

As siblings, do you still get together whenever you

can?

Yeah, when I go to Alaska the end of the summer to

pick up my daughter, I go through California or

. Washington and visit them.

One thing I'm curious about, the Court system or
having been invelved in a fairly lengthy Court
prcceés, is there anything abdﬁt‘that that you think
that we should know that has maﬁbe changed your
opinion about the Court system or made you more
distrﬁstful of it or would yoﬁ say maybe it's made
You more respectful? '

I found that it works.,

Before this incident with the custody incident had
you ever been involved in the Court system before?

I had been in Court for driving offenses.

. Minor type things?

Uhm-uhm.
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any of those names.

fﬁﬁ‘gétthis list of names and if

»

you would read that over and tell us if You recognize

A I don't recognize any of thoseJ?ames.
Q Mxr. Brown, there is =z very real possgibility that
you'll be called to serve as .a juror on thiz case, do.

you think there is anything that we haven't discissed
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the questionnaire, anything else that you think we

"‘JOEU'IAUMH

to your attorney about moving it; do you think that

here . in this few minutes that wasn't talked about in

should know about in coming to gur decision as to
whether or not you should sit on this case; anything
that comes to your mind whatsocever?

Well, the only thing I can thiﬁk of is the next
custody hearing is the 10th of February, but I'm sure
that can be postponed.

Do you have an attorney involﬁed in that?

Yes. | e

I expect if it was necessary you could probably talk

could be arranged?

Uhm-uhm. |

Anything else that.you can think of?

Only thing I can say, I would want to make sure I did
a‘good jaob parenting my daughéef. That's the only
thing, I wouldn't want to be'é%gﬁla long, long time.
You indicated before you think fhat from ﬁhat we've
digcussed with you af least f;&;think that it could
be,.. |

It doesgn't sound to me like it ;ou1d ke more than a
couple of days -

I want to be clear what vou meant by that?

That amount of time would be okay. I'm talking if it
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goeé a month or something. _

You understgnd that if the trial doas twoe or threa -
weeks or however long it might go, that'you'd be
required to be here every day during the day to
listen to evidencs?

Right.

‘

MR. STONEFIELD: Thank you, Mr. Brown.
THE -COURT: State may inguire.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

I'm Dennis Groff and I'm the Stafe's Attorney and if
you are picked on the jury I am going to have the
chancé to present the State‘g‘eﬁidence and so I need
to ask you some questions, is that all right?

Yes.

I wanted to mainly go through this procedure on the

death penalty and see if you understand it and see if

you can follow the law, is that all right?

Yes.

¥rom talkiné to Mz, Stonefield; did you undsrstand
first of all that we might have two stages here?
Right.

The first stage is ﬁhether'orlﬁot Mr, Rhines;is'
guilty of first degree murdgf...

Right. '

If you find him guilty of first degree murder, you
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death penalty. Did you understand that from Mr.

. Now, the first thiﬁg I want to-ask you ig, tye Judge

from the 8State or not. 1In other words, you'may juat

move to the second stage, séﬂéencing.

Right,. | o

What I am going to be attempting to prove at the
secdnd stage is that there iz at least one
aggravating circumstance thatrmakes thisg first degrese
murder special; de you ﬁnderstaﬂﬁ. somethinglthat

aggravates it to the point where you can consider the

Stonefield?

Yhm-uhm.

is .going to instruct you QS'téwﬁhat those dggravating
circumétances are that you'll have'to consider,
whether or not theyrhévé been prbven and what I need
to know is, even if you disagree with these, do you
think you can follow the Court's instructions?
Uhm-uhmn. |

Now, ;he'next thing is, when you get to that second

stage, I'm not sure if you wili get more evidence

be asked to consider the ev1dence yYou heard in the
first part of the trial, only now to consider it for
sentencing purposes, If that were to occur, do you

think you could follow the court s instructionsg on

that?
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Yes,

That would look into the how and why as to wﬁat-
happened with respect to the alleged death?
Yes. -

What I wanted to get to now for a mement 18 the

concept of being .on this jury, if that would be okay.

Do you remember when you gotjéﬁe questionnaire; Mr.
Brown? :

Yeah. _

When you got that questionnéire and filled it out,
did you fhink yoﬁ might actually be here in Court
answering these type of questions?

No, I didn't figure it would go this far.

As Mr. Stonefield said, there is a real possibility
You'll be on this jury now; okay?

Okay. -

8o, even though you didn't know you'd be here you

‘actually might be on the juryf':What I need to talk

- to you about is visualizing being on the Jury, if

that's okay with you. This will require some
assumptions when I go through those assumptions I
don'ﬁ want you to neceésarily think any of that has
happened, I want you to asgume it for purposes of
putting you in that position. irwan; you to assume

for a moment that you are on thé'jury and that you
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have gone thrcugh that first. stage and just assune
now that you have found enough evidence and you
believe that Mr. Rhines is guilty and you retu:ned
that verdict finding him guilty of first degree
mu;der. Are you with me?

Uhmruhm.

Just an agsumption, and I wanted you to assume that
¥ou get to the second stage gnd you hear all the
evidence in that second stagé and vou go back énd a
later, assuming that the jury finds one aggravating
circumstance, do you'knoﬁ what we are talking about
there, and assume that the jufy; éfter they hear that
and consider all the evidencé énd the Court's
instructions, let's assume tﬁgt:the jury, inclu&ing
you, decides unanimously that ﬁhe'death penalty ig
apprdpriate, Jjust an gssumption now, if that were the
case, do you see those chairs over there, Mr. Brown?
If we are in this courtroom those are probably thg':
chairs you'd come back to and =it in when yéur
yerdict was read? ‘

Okay.

What I am tryving to find out ié;_based upon our
thoughts about the death penalfy and knowing about
what could be invelved, do you thlnk you can '

vigualize vourself, if the facts warrant it, do you
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think you can visualize yourself coming back with
your fellow jurors and having your verdict read, your
unanimous verdict read in front of the Court and the
Defendant announcing that it was your decision to put
him to death. Do you think yoﬁ could do that if the
facts were there?

Yeah, I could. 1 would have'tﬁ be conQinced.

I understand, sir. Let's as#ﬁme.after that‘verdicf
was read this is kind of the same question. After
the verdict was read sometimeézin these criminal
cases because théy have to be a unanimous verdict,
each juror is asked individually, is that your
verdict, and they'd come to you and say, Mr. Brown;
is that your verdict and then once again, not with
that unaniﬁity anymore one by one you'é have to
announce whether it was 6r-nqt:if vou reached that
verdict and you were convinced, can you visualize
yourself facing the Judge anﬁ‘ﬁéfendant saying, yes,
that is my indiyidual verdict'ﬂﬁtting you to death?
Do you think vou could do ﬁhat;ifxyou were<con€inced?
If that is the conclusion I had come to. |

I hope 1I'm not coffending you, I just wantrto see iF
You can face that moment if it happens?

It sounds frightening.

Next tﬁing I want to talk to you about & little bit
1669
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is about the concept of getting hassled after the
trial is over. Do you know anyone that is opposed to

the death penaltg real'strongiy?

- No.

Se you can't think of anyone that necessarily would

give you a hard time if you‘féndéred that verdict and

- xeft the courthouse; can you think of anybody that

would give'you a hard time for rendering that
verdict?

T don't think so.

When we are dealing with the proof in the fiirst part

on guilt or innocence or whethér we are dealing with
the proof on the second part on éggravating
circumstances, it's always braﬁf beyond a reasomnable

doubt. Did you hear the Judge talk about that the

-other day?

Uhm-uhlmn.

And to tell you about that agéin, you know if you get

"on the case, but one thing it isn't proof to an

absolute certainty?

Yas.

And no matter what.the cases.éré, whether it's a
speeding ticket or D.W.T. rightrdown the line aﬁy
case in our Court systenm that deals with the criminal

or traffic laws has the same:éféndafd of proof, in
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other words, it always stays 1ével,'proof beyond a
reasonable doubt, it doesn'fréo up to an absoclute
certainty just because it gets to -be a more serious
case, do you understand?

Yes.

Just because this is a very ssrious case, do you
think you would make the State'prové iﬁs case to an
abgolute - certainty Qr could you keep the standard
where the law has instructed,_tp proof beyénd a
reasonable doubt? S

The reasonable doubt sounds to .me that you wquld hgve'
convinced me. )

Before I sit down, yo; told Mrf-Stonefield.you
thought about treason and...

Crimes against children.

And extremely brutal deaths, is that what you said?
Yes. .
Any other circumstances you c;n.think of that
wouldn't make it automatic or ¢ircumstances where yonu
think the death penalty_migﬁt bé appropriate?

Not really. I would think of something.

You would consider the aggravatiﬁg circumstances

instructed to vou by the Court?

Oh, yeah.

MR, GROFF: Thank you, sir. Pass for cause.

1671

APPENDIX 455




W

m

10
11

iz
13
14
i5

16
17

18
19
20
a1
22
23
24

25

e — e e e e —— e ———— e e,

THE COURT: Mr. Brown, you do now remaiﬁ a prospective
‘ juror on this ¢ase and I should tell you that we
probably will know tomorrow whether you'll be on the
final jury panel. In the meantime, it's very
important that you not discuss this case with anyone
or let anyone discuss it wifh'you and you should not
.8llow someone to discuss it in your presence even.
Also, you should not listen to or watech or read any
news media accounts concerning this case. (Can you

promise me you'll not do these things?

WILLIAM BROWN: Yes.

THE COURT: If vyou have not heard from us b¥ tomorrow
afterncon, would you please call the Clerk's QOffice
toe check din?

WILLIAM BROWN: Yes.

s

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. You are excused for now.
Could T see counsel for a minute? Who was the

prospective juror whe invertedifhe Golden Rule, do
unto to others as Ehgy'll do;;:_ l
MR. BUTLER: Frazey. T don't know if he...
THE COURT: I'm having some questions in my mind about
| this gentleman. I know there was a2 challenge.
MR. BUTLER: We were going to make a record that
requested an additional peremptory.

THE COURT: Well, I'm recongidering it, so if you want to
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(Prospective Juror JUDY SHAFER, having previously been

sworn, testified as follows:)

A Ukm-uhm.

Q . Mrs, Shafer, I'm Wayne Gilbgrt'and to your far left
is Joe Bulter and Mike Stonefield and the three of us
repregent Charles Rhinés, hé'szthé gentleman seated
here in the middle of the table with a gray ceoat on,
the Defendant in this case. <Could you look over that
list of names that's there in front of you and see if
any of them are familiar to yqﬁé

A No. ‘ ‘

0 Thg guestionnaire you filled out awhilé back, copies-
of that have been made available to us and obviously
not so we can pry inte your private affairs, but
because of the process that we ére going through in
méking sure that s fair and,éﬁgn minded jury can be
seated in this case. I just ﬁévé a couple of
éuestipns about sone éf the ﬁagters on the '

gquestionnaire. You are = single parent of two

children?

A Yes.

Q@ ° And you live in Hill City some distance away?

A Yes.
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1f you were seated as a juror in this case and had to

sit and come into Rapid City every day for three or

four weeks, would that present_any hardships or
probleme for vou as far as ydﬁr family is'concerned
in taking care of‘your.kids?

No. ?ﬁeir dad lives a block awvay. He has custody.
How about as fay as your work is conecerned, would it
be a problem? ‘

Not this time of year.

Before you came here a week ago yesterday for the
first time had you heerd anything abaut this case?
Very little io be honest with you. I knew that =a
young man was killed in a donut shop. I didn't know
if he was stabbed or shot. The other day I seen it
on the news, that the man théﬁthéd done it was, I
thought they said he was arreséed in a nearby state
like Colorado or something. 'Ofaer than that i don't

know too much about it.

-Based on what you have heard, do vou come hers today

with any ideas that Mr. Rhines is probably guilty of

this charge?

No.

You were called as & juror aﬁprbximately eight years
ago, you were called in, but didn't actually serve?

That's right.
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Ware you at.the point where'you were guestioned or
part of the group of people thﬁt were questionedé
No.-

Other £han that, you haven't sérved or a8 jury before?
No. . | -

Have vou or. any member of your family or ciose
friends ever been touched in some way by the ecriminal
justice systems, ﬁaybe subpoenaed as a witness or
been a victim of a crime or a befendént?

Ho.

Had you heard of the presumpﬁion of innocénca before
the Court's instructions that %ere'read to you a
little over a week ago yester&gf?

Yes.

Generally, are you in agreement with that idea?

Yes.

So, would you agree that the State has the burden of
proof beyond a reasonable doubt and that the '
Defendant is not obligated or shouldn't be expected
to put on any evidence at a11?' '

Yes,

‘If T were to ask you to assume;ﬁight now that Jjust

asgume that the defense in thié?case'doeén't plan‘on 
putting‘on any evidence at éil[;ﬁbuld that change how

vyou look at the case et all or would you sgtill
681
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Q@ Had you heard or did you know before you came here to

A Yes,

Q lo you have any general views or opinions about the

A TI.don't know. I guess I feel if you intentionally

benefit Mr. Rhines with the presumption of innocence?

& deiirndiinoaiease 4d

il

SESRANE ERTE R e e b
R Rhetr

Court a week ago yesterday thaﬁrthe State was

requesting the death penalty in this case?

death penslty?

take & 1life you maybe should be pfepared to give your

own. It would be real hard to do that, though, if

that was up to you.
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You mean it would be difficult to actually make the
decision? ‘

Right.

Well, before I get into somé,ﬁf'éhe_details about the
process involved, you said it ﬁould be difficult to
make & decision, but do you tﬁink, given your beliefs
about the death penalty, that you‘could be part of a
Jury that would make a decision one way or the other
on the death penalty?

Yes. _

Knowing it wéuld be difficult; but you could still do
it if you were called on? '

Yes.

When the State requests and asks that the Defendant
be executed if he's found guiif&,.there is a trial
here and once the jury is seatéd where the State
presénts the proof that it has and asks the jury to
fiﬁd the Defendant guilty of first degree murder.
Now, if the jﬁfy.is convinced beyond a reasonable
doubt that the State has proved it and that the
Defendant is guilty Bf first degree murder, then
there is a seéond phase. a second stage mayvybe even
like a second trial and at that second trial the
Judge would give you more instructions and would

define for you what is called?aégravating
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circumstances. fThese are situations which make a bad
thing worse, because if you get to the second phase
that would mean that the jury has unanimously found
the Defénéant guilty of first degree premeditated

murder. At the sescond stage then the Judge would

-define these things for. you cgllea aggravating

circumstances and you would be asked to make ancvther
decizjon, another tywo decisiggs, actually. The first
decision would be iflyou find that the aggravating
circumstances, that';ne or more of thém‘have been
proved beyond a reasonable dbﬁgt, if wyou are

convinced of that unsnimously, then you make a second

‘decision and that second_deciéion ig, should the

Defendant receive life imprisconment or should he be
exacuted. I want to tell you right now that, in
South Dakota life imprisonmept neans 1ife without
possibility of parolé. If the jury's final decision
in this case is that Mr. Rhines should receive a life
imprisonment term, he'll nevéiiéet out, It would be
the rest of his life in prison. If the jury's final

decision in this case is the death penalty, that will

.be carried out. In South Dakqtajthere won't be any

stay of execution or something tb happen to save his
life. So, it is the jury's decision and that doesn't

happen in any other kind of criminal case. TIn all
i684
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other kinds of criminal cases in Scuth Dakota the
judge'makeé the sentence, but because the death
penalty is involved here the jury makes the sentence.
It doesn't have to be the death penalty. There is no
gituation where the jury wouldlever have to. Even if
you find an aggravating circupstance, aven then you
make that decision should it bé death or l1ife without
yarole. :

When I asked you a few minutes,ago if there were
circumstances which yoﬁ could think about that the
deéth penalty would be appropriate, and'you said
something like, and I may get this wrong,. Where a
person intentionally takes sémébha else’'s iife‘then
he should be prepared mavbe to paf with his own. f
think you said something like fhat. Now, knowing
that there is this process ydﬁ,have to go through 'and
there are two stages and tha£ £ﬁe aggravating
circumstances have to be prové;?beyond a reasonable
docubt and even then you are not required to impose
the death penalty, do you think_that if at the end of
the first stage you aré'satisfied beyond a reagsonable
doubt that the Defendant haé been proved gullty of
first degree, premeditated murdeg; that you'd want
right then and there to impos& fhe death penalty or

would you want to know more or . think about it more?
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I think I would probably wanﬁrfo think about it more.
So there wouldn't be any autométic dec¢ision on your
part as far as the &eaihhpenalty is concerned?

No. -

Would you say that you are a religious;person?

Net a iot, no.

Do you believe in God?

Yes.

Is there anything about the beliefs that you have

about religion and God that‘éffect how you view a

. request for a death penalty in a case?

No. o
Would you éay that you place'a"high value on human
life? . k

Yes.

Is that why you said that it‘would be a difficult
degision to have -to make?

Yes.

Do wyou think that if you were on a jury that
unanimously found guilty of first degresa,
premeditated mirder, beyond é'feasonable doubt,'at
that point you'd be leaning oné’wég or the other?
Would you be kind of leaning towards the death

penalty or leaning away from the life imprisonmeht?

I don't know if I could say either way.
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You'd be entering that second phase if you get that
far with an open mind on that?

Uhm—-uhm.

Can you think of any eircuﬂstances in which you think
the death penalty oﬁght to be automatic, where you

don't even need to hear aboqt aggravating"

‘circumstances; Just think that what's happened is o

bad that it just ought to be the death penalty?

No. - RS ’ .

In other words, would it be fa%; to say that no
matter how horrible tﬁe murdef or crime was you'd
want to know more before you made a decigsion to have
a Defendant put to death? ' ‘

¥Yes,

MR. GILBERT: No further gquestions.

EXAMINATION BY MR. GROFF:

Q

Ma'am, I'm Dennis Groff and i‘g*the State's Attorney
and I am going to have the chance over the next
couple ﬁf_weaks to presenf thewétate's case to &ou
and because I am going to be dbing that, one of the
things I do first is te pick_a'ﬁury that could be
fair.to both sides and do you understand that the’
State has asked.and I have asked for the death

penalty in this case, and do you understand that now?

Yes.
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And do vou know from what Mr. Gllbert told you that
it's not the Jnge that doesvthat, 12 peeple that we
saelect here? ‘ ' |
Yes. .

Can you understand how importégt this process is?
Yes. |

As Mr., Gilbert was telling you, assuming you f£find NMr.
Rhines gullty of first degree murder, then there'd be
this second stage and I think you teld Mr., Gilbert
that you have high regard for human life?

Yes.

Just -based upon that aione, da-you think that somehow
you can't consider the daathrﬁéhaity?‘

No.

I need to let you take a momenéjhere, because ﬁe are
interested in your thoughts éﬁérviews,'eﬁeryoné in
this room, and can you think of not automaticglly at.

ali, but any circumstances at all where you think the

‘death penalty mightlbe appropriate. Just take a

moment?
Yes, . I think there are.
Now that you have thought about something that might

be there, I realize it is not automatic and you know
that too but some cases where it might be

appropriate, camn you tell us what you just thought of
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please?

I think if you intantionally.go to take someone's
life, then the death pénalty could be appropriate.
Not automatic, but it could be? .

Yas.

In this case when yoﬁ get to . that mecond sfage, the
Judge is going to tell you what aggravating
circumstances vou may consider, to see if the St;te's
proven them beyond a reasonablée doubt, and it's going
to be my job, the State’'s jdb-in that second case to
convince you that at least one of these aggravating
circumstances is present in this c#se and it takes it
out of this general éatagbry of first degree murdey
and takes it up one more step to murder that you can
consider the death penalty on;: do you understand?
Yes.

Do you believe that you can follow the Court's
instructions as tog what thcse”égg;ayating
c¢ircumstances are in éouth Dakoté?

Yos. W e

And even if you were to disagreg with those
instructions or never even tﬁégght about them,:do rYou
think you could still follow them? -

Yes.

Now, wvou said to Mr. Gilbert, and I made a note of it
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here, that you would be able té keep an open mind as
you went into that second stagé as to whether or not
it would be life or death, and then you also told him
that you thought in that se#ond stage You might want
to know more, is that right? .

Uhm—-uhm,

ﬁhat ié fhe more that you weré1ta1king about, what
more would you want to know in the second stage?

Maybe explaining a little bit more about the extra

circumstances.

1

Let me ask you this then.. I understand what you are

saying and I'l1l get back to it, but vou realize that

just because you have heard this gvidence in the

first part of the case where jou are going to decide
guilt or innocence, that same';;idenée would likely

be considered as to whether br-not on the how and why'
of it happening, whether or not c1rcumstances were
met that made it apecial, do you understand?

Yes.

You don’'t have to say we made fhat decision let's
leave that behind. You would take that into that
second stage with you, do you understand?

Yes.

You were just telling me that in the second stage you

would look at the evidence and you would do more
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analysis as to the why and how?

Yes.

Baged upon your review of thét‘evidence, you would
consjider whether or not oﬁe of thesg aggfabating
circumgstances was present, is that what you are
telling me? |

Yes.

I am going to have to go into this, because I need to
know. You said that it would be @ifficult to go

ahead and make that kind of a verdict?

I think it would be difficult for anyone.

I'm not trying to give you a hard tlme about that,
but what I need to do is get: you to visualize what
that might be 1ike, so if you can bear with me and
follow me for a minute. Do you remember when you got
the gquestionnaire? . |

Yes.

And #han_you got the guestionnaire and you filled it
out, did you think you might actually bg in a
courtroom -1like this deciding orlwe are deciding
whethgr Yyou can be a falr 5u:o;? Did you think you
woﬁld come down here? . o

Yes.

Could jou vignalize yoursalft‘éfen thoﬁgh'you had

thet piece of paper at home, being at home and
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thét’s what I want to'take arstep furthek. 'Without
holding anything against me, could you make some
assumptions? I'm not trying to get you to commit to
any decision, I am just going to try to get you into
that jury box, even though yéurare not there, and I
want you to assume for a moment that you ars picked
on thié 5urg, because thereyi?fa very real
possibility you will be. Assume vou are on that jury
and you listened to the first part of the case and
you weighed the evidence cafEE&liy and you conéidéred
the Court's instructions and ydu decided beyond a
reasonable doubt that Mr. Rhinés ig guilty of first

degree murder, okay?

Uhn-ubm.

The verdict has bheen brought back and then welcan get
to the second stage and let's asﬁume we get to the
second stage and you coﬁsider the evidence and you
carefully consider those aggfé?éting circumstances
and you congider everything ybﬁ hear in that second
stage and you:go back and del%ﬁéf&te and iet's,assume
that you, &s & jury,.find that one of those
aggravating circumstances is pfesent. Now you don't
have to at that point in time come to e conclusion
that the death penalty is appropriate, but you may.

Do you see what I'm saying?
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Uhm~uhn.

Let's assume for ﬁhe moment.thgt you come to tﬁat
conclusion based on the fagtsﬁkou heard and
instyruetions of the Court ahqﬁyou believe the death
péﬁalty is the appropriate veﬁdict, then &ou would
come back and YOu would sit‘iﬁvbne of these chairs if
we were in this courtroom, and the foreman of the
jury would read or pass to the Judge the verdict and
that verdict would be reéd in front of evefybody in
the court¥oom, the Judge, the Defendant, wi@h all of
you sitting there faciné the Defendant announcing
your verdict, which in that case would be putting Mr.
Rhines to &eath. As you thiﬁk}abOut your views, and
I realize you don't haveuanqug&té to work with, but
as you think about your views, if you were convinced
that was the right thing to dblido you think you I
could visualize yqurself being on a jury doing Jjust
that?

Yes.

Now, something else I need to warn yvou about, and
that is, if you are on .that jufy and it was a
unanimous decision, after the'yérdict was read
something elae could happen. ﬁhat could happen is

that each individual juror could be polled right out

there in frdnt of everyhody; is this your verdict
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putting Mr. Rhines to'deathk-éﬁd.they'd come to you,
ma'am, and ask vou and after théy asked your then
vou'd have to respond, yes or ho. Can you visualize
vourself saying, 1if you were convinced, it was the
right verdict, yes, that's my verdict ﬁutting Mr.
Rhihes to death; cgﬁ you visualize yourseif doing
that?

Yes.

Do you have any friends or :él&tives or acquaintances
who vou know are just adam&ntl} opposed to the death

penalty?

R SRS

No. '

Can you think of anyone out there, if you were to go
ahea¢ and make a decigion 1ike‘£his, T realize a
difficult and important decision, but if vou madé it
and you came héck in the courtrodm and gave a death
verdict, can yoﬁ think of anyone that would give you
a hara time,‘once you left the courtroom and got baék
wi;h ybur regular life?

No. A _

The last .thing I'wﬁnt to talk £p vou about is, just

the burden of proof. Do you”fémemher Judge EKonenkawp

" explained the burden of proof é;week ago Monday?

Uhm—-uhm.

That is the same burden that rumg throughout our
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Court system, whether it is a traffic ticket, a
D.Ww.1I. or theft'case, all the way to a murder case,
do you understand?

A Yes.

Q Even though .the cases méy seemyto get more serious,
the standards of prcoﬁ always étay the same. It
doesn’'t gb up just because this ig a serious case.

Do you think you would some héﬁ make the State prove
its case beyond what the law reéuireﬁ; that is beyond
+their level of beyond a reasonable doubt? Are you
with me 8o far?

A Yes.

Q Up t6 a level of absolute ceftainty, which is ﬁot

required. Do you think you'd make the State proof

law requires?

A I'm not sure. I think I'd want to be real, real

sure.
Q@ But if the Court told you that ."tliidn't mean you had to
be sBure to a perfection or an‘ébsolute certalnty, do
you think you could follow thafllaw?
A Yes. '
0 Same thing with the aggravating circumstance in the
second part, if the Court told you that bad to be

proven to a reasonable doubt, do you think you could
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make it be proven to a reaséﬂ;hlé doubt, but not take
it to this other level, Which:is not required by law
which is an aﬁsolute certaint§3

Yes.'

Now that you have thoudht aboﬁt it, do yoﬁ think you
have any reservations about ité

No.

One of the ressons you said you'd want te be so

'convinced is because you know jou might face +the

death penalty?

Yes.

Even knowing that you are gdin§ to face the death
prenalty possibly in terms of_fbﬁr deliberations, do
you think you can be fair to Both the Defendant and -
te the State? .

Yes, I think I'm a very fair.perBOn. '

GROFF: No other questions. Thank you. Pags for
cause. ' |

COURT: Ma'am, you remain a\prbspective juror.
GILBERT:- Your Honor, excuse mé} but could I ask dust
& couple more guestions?

COURT: Yes. ;

(Bg Mr. Gilbhert:) Miss Shafér;iI just want to, if I
could, and I'd like to ask yodfkﬁ elaborate a little

bit on the statement you made that an individual whe
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intentionally takes someone's'life should be prepared
to give hism own; Do you mean by that that you think
and believe in an eye for an eye type of thing? -

A No, T believe that there is always a possibility'that-
that could happen, and if theyidid there iz always
that possibility, not for sure, but the possibility,

Q You didn't mean like a retribution type of thing?

A No. No. _

MR. GILBERT: That’'s all.

THE COURT: As I was saying, yau éré a prospective jurorl
in the case. We should know by:tomorrow afternoon
whether or hot ydu are on the final jury panel. If
you haven't heard from us by tomorrow afterncon at
3:00, call the Clerk's Offiée to cheéﬁ in with us.
‘Now, it's.very important that jou not talk to anyone
about.thisAcase or let anyone talk to you.about it or
talk in your presence about it and vou should not.
listen to or read or watch aﬁf‘ﬁéws media accounts of
this case. Can ?ou promisze mé‘youfll not do those
things?

JUDY SHAFER: Yeé. :

THE COURT: Thank you. I'm goinﬁ:tb adj&urn for today.
I'd like to feconvene at.a& guarter to nine tomoribw
morning so we can hear the motion.for the additional

peremptory challenges, and after that we will proceed
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then to either decide on the ilssue of the peremptory
challeﬁges and then the duestion of how many and
under what method we will seélect our alternate
Jurors. I welcome your suggeétions on that tomorrow
morning as well.

THE COURT: Hearing is adjourned fé; today.

{At which time the proceedings ended for the day.)
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